cover photo: the dance of learning

During 2007, the South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA) developed a new metaphor for our work
of building the National Qualifications Framework (NQF). It was inspired by the work of Mozambican-born
sculptor Orlando de Almeida, and in particular his 1990 work Moving into Dance. An enlargement of the piece
originally created by De Almeida was made by a group of Johannesburg-based artists and was the first of many
artworks to be placed outside the Constitutional Court. It is described as a “sculpture of seven dancing figures,
representing harmony, fluidity, and change - symbolic of the transition that has taken place in the country”.
At the base of the sculpture is a plaque which reads: “The sculpture consists of seven figures in motion, a
representation of South African democracy, a harmonious collective gender, race and creed - a symbol of the
transition of our society as we move together from the old into the new South Africa. Sometimes in conflict,
but mostly in harmony”. The metaphor of the NQF dance, with all participants embracing harmony, fluidity
and change to make the dance of lifelong learning possible, holds promise as we engage in the next level of
NQF development.
Orlando de Almeida was so moved by the way SAQA draws inspiration from Moving into Dance that he has
re-arranged the seven bronze figures to create the sculpture seen on the cover of this Annual Report. It
is described as seven dancing figures, representative of all races, gender and creeds; six figures in a circle
and one in the middle, all engaged in the dance of learning; grounded in rock and breaking free to express
themselves individually and collectively; symbolic of teaching the rainbow nation the dance of quality lifelong
learning; and embodying the promises, hopes and dreams of a people in transition to democracy. The sculptor
has entitled the work The Dance of Learning.
Orlando and his wife, Hildegard, have very generously donated The Dance of Learning to SAQA, and the
sculpture has pride of place at SAQA House. We treasure this gift as a symbol of all South Africans participating
in quality learning and teaching.
Let us all join in the The Dance of Learning.

orlando de almeida

about the sculptor: orlando de almeida
Orlando de Almeida was born in Mozambique in 1936. He came to South Africa in 1962 and is now
proudly South African. He feels strongly about Africa. His sculptures are dynamic, energetic and
exceptionally creative. He has exhibited in more than 35 exhibitions worldwide. His works can be
found in many distinguished private collections such as former President Nelson Mandela, Sir Richard
Attenborough, Gary Player and Jonty Rhodes. His sculptures have been exhibited world-wide alongside
the works of Picasso, Dali, Goya and Velazques.
Orlando is particularly proud of the enlargement of his 1990 sculpture, Moving into Dance, outside the
Constitutional Court, which embraces his vision of the Rainbow Nation growing and working together
with exciting possibilities.
At the age of 72 Orlando is still going strong. In his own words: “Art is very important. I don’t think
any country can survive without it.” Orlando sees beauty in iron and metal that many of us don’t see.
Ricardo de Saavedra, a friend, captures this well: “When I stand before some of Orlando’s works of art
I am led to think that it was not Orlando who one day discovered iron as a vehicle for his expression,
but that one day iron found Orlando….”
South Africa and indeed Africa is truly blessed to number among its artists, a sculptor of the calibre of
Orlando de Almeida.
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As the National Qualifications Framework (NQF) has reached a new stage of
development following the long-awaited finalisation of the NQF Review, SAQA has
also moved into a new era, focusing on building strong relationships and synergies
of approach among key partners towards the achievement of our common goals
in terms of the NQF. Together with its partners, SAQA is actively preparing for the
changes to come.
SAQA is acutely aware of its responsibility to uphold the principles of the NQF
especially those of integration, access, portability and parity of esteem, in which the
hopes and dreams of many ordinary South Africans are vested. SAQA has undertaken
a number of initiatives in the year under report, with the purpose of increasing
learning opportunities for all.

prof. s walters,
chairperson of saqa

To this end, SAQA’s 7th annual Chairperson’s Lecture focused on SAQA’s role in
opening up non-formal and continuing learning opportunities, whereas the Q-Africa
Conference looked at the proposed new Quality Council for Trades and Occupations
(QCTO) and at new ways to approach the development and delivery of qualifications
with a specific occupational focus.
SAQA has also co-hosted the 5th International Conference on Researching Work and
Learning, and participated in and encouraged critical debate about the development
of the South African NQF. This signifies SAQA’s openness to intellectual scrutiny and
continuous improvement of the system.
The notion of continuous improvement is also evident from the manner in which
SAQA has carried out its existing legislative mandate in the past year, including the
move from compliance to performance auditing of Education and Training Quality
Assurance bodies (ETQAs), the much-improved submission of data by ETQAs to
SAQA for capturing on its National Learners’ Records Database (NLRD), and the
implementation of the Strengthening and Deepening of Standards Setting strategy.
I wish to recognise the contributions of the Authority, and of Samuel Isaacs, Executive
Officer, Joe Samuels, Deputy Executive Officer, and SAQA management - who gave
stable leadership in a time of uncertainty and change - and SAQA staff, in realising
these achievements.
I also wish to recognise the efforts of all SAQA’s partners, who have passionately
supported SAQA in the development and implementation of the NQF in the last
financial year.

Prof. S Walters
Chairperson: SAQA
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The end of the National Qualifications Framework (NQF) review and the tabling of the
new draft legislation, including the NQF Bill and Skills Development Act Amendment
Bill, in Parliament followed an exhaustive, yet collaborative process of debate,
amendment and strategic vision. The new legislation calls into being three Quality
Councils, one of which is the Quality Council for Trades and Occupations (QCTO). The
QCTO is designed to respond to the unique circumstances and philosophies related to
the acquisition of skills and specialised knowledge required to achieve competence
in trades and occupations. This body will coordinate, simplify and streamline the
work of the Sector Education and Training Authority (SETA) Education and Training
Quality Assurance bodies (ETQAs), and will increase cost-effectiveness and reduce
bureaucracy. The South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA) has participated in
the working groups preparing for the setting-up of the QCTO and I wish to thank them
for their contribution in this regard.
mms mdladlana, mp
minister of labour

We are beginning to see the fruits of our labour. For example, the learnership initiative
yielded great results and contributed to the growing skills base of the country. More
than half of formerly unemployed learners were employed on completion of their
learnership. Employer trends indicate that they recognise training as an area of priority
and many are spending double the amount the levy system requires of them.
We have also made considerable progress over the past two years in identifying
priority skills and constructing innovative partnerships to address these needs. We
are investing more in the education and training of our people and training more and
more workers in accordance with the NQF. In this, SAQA has played an active role, as
it was responsible for the development and registration of a number of qualifications
in response to national needs and the Joint Initiative for Priority Skills Acquisition
(JIPSA).
One noteworthy example is the specialist skills that are demanded by welding.
Investment by multinational companies and the advent of the Soccer World Cup
2010 necessitated the expansion of capacity for skills such as welding. SAQA took
the initiative of developing numerous welding qualifications at different levels,
comparable with best practice internationally.
SAQA’s National Learners’ Records Database (NLRD) has also continued to prove very
valuable to both the Department of Labour and the country as a whole, in terms
of providing information about the availability of skills in the country. To this end
JIPSA has commissioned research on the possible use of the NLRD as a key part of the
master database of skills in the country.
SAQA has created invaluable benchmarks and made great strides in establishing and
developing our NQF, which has impacted directly on the labour market. The labour
force is the lifeblood of the country’s economy. SAQA has been responsive to critical
and scarce skills needs in the economy and has developed the requisite qualifications
for these areas. As we move into the new NQF landscape, we thank SAQA for its
dedication, commitment and diligent work. We look forward to SAQA continuing to
fulfil its apex role by overseeing the further development and implementation of the
NQF.

MMS Mdladlana, MP
Minister of Labour
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I am pleased to note that the theme of this South African Qualifications Authority
(SAQA) annual report has echoed the theme that the Department of Education
articulated in 2007/08, i.e. affirming excellence and challenging mediocrity. Affirming
excellence and challenging mediocrity is the key educational challenge of our time.
This is the foundation for nation building, for socio-economic development and for
true liberation. Affirming excellence means that we refuse to tolerate excuses for
mediocrity in its many guises. Affirming excellence means recognising and celebrating
the positive aspects of our education system and encouraging those who work hard,
even in trying circumstances, to achieve excellence. Every educational institution can
take this theme forward in its own environment.
The Joint Policy Statement issued by myself and my honourable colleague the
Minister of Labour has been an important development in the year under review. This
gmn pandor, mp
minister of education

provided the basis for the draft NQF Bill and related legislation that will be considered
by Parliament during 2008. SAQA is tasked with an important oversight role in the new
NQF environment. I look forward to an improved and more effective approach to the
implementation of the NQF, and trust that SAQA will continue to provide leadership
and build goodwill among all NQF partners.
The high international esteem in which the South African National Qualifications
Framework is held is a source of pride for all of us. In an era where national and
continental borders are increasingly porous and in which we are increasingly
becoming a “global village”, the quality of one’s qualification is indeed important
currency. The participation of SAQA internationally both contributes to and benefits
from the international discourse and practices of national and regional qualifications
frameworks.
The Third South African Qualifications Authority completed its three-year term of
office on 26 October 2007. I am most grateful to the Third Authority for the positive
and cooperative spirit with which it approached its work during a period of sustained
uncertainty. I am especially grateful to Prof. Shirley Walters, the Chairperson of both
the Third and newly appointed Fourth Authority, for her leadership, and to Mr Samuel
Isaacs, the Chief Executive Officer, for keeping a firm eye on the continued executive
responsibilities of the South African Qualifications Authority during this time.
I have appointed the Fourth South African Qualifications Authority for the period
19 November 2007 until 18 November 2010, in consultation with my colleague, the
Minister of Labour. The principal challenge faced by the Fourth Authority is that of
ensuring collaboration, cooperation and ongoing dialogue among all role-players,
especially the three new Quality Councils.
I wish SAQA every success in the execution of this important role, and in supporting
our quest to achieve excellence and to improve the lives of all South Africans through
education and training.

GMN Pandor, MP
Minister of Education
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It is a pleasure to present this Annual Report, which accounts for the performance and
operations of the South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA) from 1 April 2007 to
31 March 2008.
Affirming excellence and challenging mediocrity is the theme of this report, as eloquently
outlined by the honourable Minister of Education, Naledi Pandor, when introducing the
debate on the education budget on 29 May 2007.
It is in this spirit that SAQA has opened itself to intellectual scrutiny and critical engagement
in forums such as the NQF Colloquium, the Chairperson’s Lecture, the Q-Africa Conference
and the International Researching Work and Learning (RWL) Conference.
During the year under review, SAQA has continued to carry out its mandate in terms of the
SAQA Act of 1995, but has also proactively prepared itself for the changing NQF landscape
and SAQA’s future role. The Authority has agreed to embrace the changes and to impact
positively on the new landscape.
samuel ba isaacs,
executive officer

SAQA has established a Research Directorate and has revised its research agenda
substantially, to build SAQA’s capacity to do longer-term evidence-based research.
Partnerships with universities and other research institutions have been entered into, to
ensure quality research.
SAQA has continually engaged with the Department of Education (DoE) and Department
of Labour (DoL), and its key partners, which are the Council for Higher Education (CHE) and
Umalusi, to achieve shared meanings, purposes and strategies. Issues such as the moving
of the responsibility for standards setting and quality assurance were discussed, with a
view to coherent planning and implementation. SAQA has also made substantial inputs into
the new legislation, to ensure that the changes to the NQF architecture will be beneficial to
the learners and the system as a whole.
Other achievements this year include:
ͻ ƌĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ^Y͛ƐϭϭƚŚƵŶƋƵĂůŝĨŝĞĚĂƵĚŝƚƌĞƉŽƌƚĨƌŽŵƚŚĞƵĚŝƚŽƌͲ'ĞŶĞƌĂů͘
ͻ ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ ƚŚĞ ĞĨĨŝĐŝĞŶĐǇ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ ĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ ŽĨ ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ ƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ ƌĞŶĚĞƌĞĚ
by SAQA, to the extent that it can deal with the increased demand within the agreed
timeframes. The new electronic system also enables SAQA to make available information
regarding the skills of foreign nationals entering the country, thus contributing to the
national understanding of the supply of scarce and critical skills.
ͻ ĐŽŵƉůĞƚŝŶŐ ƚŚĞ ĨŝƌƐƚ ƌŽƵŶĚ ŽĨ ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ ĂƵĚŝƚŝŶŐ ŽĨ dYƐ͕ ƚŚƵƐ ĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŶŐ ƚŚĞ
performance of ETQAs in preparation for the new system.
ͻ ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƚŝŽŶ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ E>Z ĂƐ ƚŚĞ ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ ŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů ĚĂƚĂ ƐĞƚ ŽŶ ƐŬŝůůƐ ŝŶ ƚŚĞ ĐŽƵŶƚƌǇ
and making important information regarding trends in higher education available to
decision-makers.
ͻ ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚŝŶŐ Ă ŶƵŵďĞƌ ŽĨ ^Y͛Ɛ /d ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ ƚŽ ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ ĞĨĨŝĐŝĞŶĐǇ ĂŶĚ
effectiveness.
ͻ ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ ĂŶ ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ ĂŶĚ ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ ƐǇƐƚĞŵ ĨŽƌ Ăůů
staff, including the implementation of broadbanding for staff at the levels of Assistant
Director and below.
SAQA’s key focus areas for the next financial year will be:
ͻ ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐƚŽĂŶĚĐƌĞĂƚŝŶŐĂĐŽŶƚĞǆƚĨŽƌƚŚĞEY&ŝůůĂŶĚƌĞůĂƚĞĚŶĞǁůĞŐŝƐůĂƚŝŽŶ͘
ͻ ŵĂŶĂŐŝŶŐ ƚŚĞ ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚŝŽŶ ŝŶ ƐƵĐŚ Ă ǁĂǇ ƚŚĂƚ ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ ĂƌĞ ŶŽƚ ĚŝƐĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞĚ ďǇ ƚŚĞ
changes. This includes proper arrangements regarding the hand-over of functions to
new bodies.
ͻ ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶĂŶĚĂĚǀŽĐĂĐǇŽĨƚŚĞEY&ĂŶĚƚŚĞŶĞǁEY&ĂƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĞĂŶĚĂƐƐŝƐƚŝŶŐ
role-players to understand the changes to the system.
ͻ ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ ^Y͛Ɛ ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ ĂŶĚ ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ ĂŶĚ ĐƌĞĚŝďŝůŝƚǇ ƚŽ ůĞĂĚ ƉŽůŝĐǇ͕
legislative and conceptual debates.
ͻ ĂĚǀĂŶĐŝŶŐ ůŝĨĞůŽŶŐ ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ ZĞĐŽŐŶŝƚŝŽŶ ŽĨ WƌŝŽƌ >ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ ;ZW>Ϳ ĂŶĚ ƌĞĚŝƚ
Accumulation and Transfer (CAT).

Samuel BA Isaacs
Executive Officer
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affirming excellence and challenging mediocrity in standards
setting
In the past financial year, SAQA strove to affirm excellence and challenge mediocrity
in every area of its work, including standards setting and development.

dr shamrita bhikha,
director: standards setting

In the previous financial year (2006/07), SAQA reviewed and revised the standards
setting process. This resulted in a strategy document entitled Strengthening and
Deepening Quality in Standards Setting and Development. During the reporting
period SAQA implemented the strategy in line with the Minister of Education’s call to
affirm excellence and challenge mediocrity. The implementation strategy focused on
the following key areas:
ͻ ŝŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐƚŚĞŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂůĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďŝůŝƚǇŽĨƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ
ͻ ƌĂƚŝŽŶĂůŝƐŝŶŐƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ
ͻ ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ ƚŚĞ ŝŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ ŽĨ ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ ŝŶ ƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ ĂŶĚ ŶĂƌƌŽǁ
consultation
ͻ ƌĞǀŝĞǁŝŶŐƚŚĞƋƵĂůŝƚǇŽĨƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ

and development

This strategy document gives strategic direction to standards setting, amid the
changing NQF landscape and resultant uncertainties.
SAQA also applies the following five enduring principles to its mandate of providing
leadership in the generation and registration of qualifications and standards:
ͻ ŚŝŐŚƋƵĂůŝƚǇ
ͻ ŶĂƚŝŽŶĂůƌĞůĞǀĂŶĐĞ
ͻ ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂůĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďŝůŝƚǇ
ͻ ǀĂůƵĞ
ͻ ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝǀĞŶĞƐƐ
An average turnaround time of between two and four months from the receipt of
qualifications by SAQA to their registration on the NQF was maintained throughout
the reporting period.
Strengthening standards generation through improving international comparability
International comparability remains a key component of the qualifications and
unit standards registered on the NQF. The criteria used for this purpose require
comparisons with international best practice, international accords and agreements,
and respected education and training offered internationally. This includes not only
countries where outcomes-based education is offered, but those known for best
practice in the specific field.
The section on international comparability in the SAQA Policy Document (SAQA
1340/00; 23 August 2005) entitled Criteria and Guidelines for the Generation and
Evaluation of Qualifications and Standards within the National Qualifications
Framework (NQF), was more rigorously applied, leading to a better alignment of NQF
qualifications with international best practice.
Rationalisation of qualifications and standards
In order to prevent the proliferation of qualifications on the NQF, SAQA embarked on
an initiative to rationalise qualifications and standards registered on the NQF. This was
part of a larger project called Project for Qualifications Excellence. The rationalisation
process ensured that unnecessary duplication and overlap between qualifications
and standards were eliminated.
Increasing the involvement of experts in qualification generation and narrow
consultation
Realising the important role that both subject-matter experts and qualification
design experts play in developing high-quality qualifications that suit the needs of
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jodi kgalane of dssd (left) with delegates at

bishop paul verryn (left) receives a donation for the

the nqf colloquium

refugees from joe samuels (deo) and dr shamrita bhikha

the sector, providers and learners, SAQA increased the expert
representation on standards setting structures. Experts from
commerce and industry as well as education and training
institutions and higher education were involved. Expert input
was also solicited from academics, practitioners, industry and
labour as part of the consultative process.

SAQA entered into 16 Joint Implementation Plans (JIPs) in
2007/08. Partners range from Sector Education and Training
Authorities (SETAs) and parastatal institutions to government
departments. SAQA has signed JIPs for the development of
qualifications and unit standards with the following partners:
ͻ Forest Industries Education and Training Authority (FIETA)

Following the NQF Colloquium at which Dr Etienne Wenger
shared his experience on establishing communities of practice,
SAQA has engaged in research on the development of
communities of practice in the standards-setting community
in order to improve understanding and the adoption of best
practice. The communities of practice approach to standards
setting promises to further improve the quality of the
qualifications and standards that are generated.

ͻ Department of Sport and Recreation
ͻ Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority
(PSETA)
ͻ Services Sector Education and Training Authority (Services
SETA) (four separate JIPs)
ͻ Education Training and Development Practices Sector
Education and Training Authority (ETDP SETA)
ͻ The South African National Defence Force (SANDF)

Reviewing the quality of registered qualifications and
standards
Qualifications and standards in their last year of registration
were rigorously evaluated to decide whether they should be
re-registered, replaced or allowed to expire. SAQA ensured
that re-registered and revised qualifications complied with the
increased demands of international comparability and sector
and learner relevance.

ͻ Health and Welfare Sector Education and Training Authority
(HWSETA)
ͻ Local Government Sector Education and Training Authority
(LGSETA)
ͻ Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT)
ͻ South African Management Development Institute
(SAMDI)
ͻ Commonwealth of Learning (COL)
ͻ Chemical Industries Sector Education and Training

Responsiveness to expressed national priorities
SAQA has registered qualifications and unit standards that are
responsive to national needs. A total of 160 new qualifications
and 1 876 new unit standards were registered during the
year under review, including qualifications in early childhood
development (ECD), public administration, credit management,
welding application and practice, water and wastewater
management, construction and disability employment. These
qualifications and standards will assist the education and
training system to respond to the critical and scarce skills
shortage in our country.
Commitment to partnerships
SAQA recognises that partnerships are essential for the
effective execution of its mandate and ensuring that it remains
responsive to national needs.
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Authority (CHIETA)
ͻ South African Air Force (SAAF)
Responding to the challenge of artisan development through
trade qualifications and standards
In response to the government’s objective of accelerating the
development of artisans in all sectors, SAQA has proactively
adopted a multi-sectoral, multi-disciplinary approach to the
development of artisan qualifications by establishing a Generic
Manufacturing, Engineering and Technology (GMET) Standards
Generating Body (SGB). The GMET SGB reviews the designated
engineering and related trade qualifications in the disciplines
of mechanical engineering, electrical engineering and civil
engineering.
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affirming excellence and challenging mediocrity in quality
assurance
SAQA’s key quality assurance activities are the monitoring and auditing of ETQAs to
ensure the quality of education and training delivery.
Foreign qualifications are evaluated by SAQA’s Centre for the Evaluation of Educational
Qualifications (CEEQ), which falls under the Directorate: Quality Assurance and
Development (DQAD). CEEQ ensures that the holders of foreign qualifications are
assimilated into the South African qualifications system by making recommendations
on the level of these qualifications in relation to the South African NQF.
The following significant outputs resulted from SAQA’s endeavours to affirm excellence
christo basson,
director: quality assurance and
development

and challenge mediocrity in the delivery of education and training in the country:
Education and training quality audits
SAQA implemented a new performance auditing system during the year under review.
The audit process uses quality indicators against which evidence was produced to
prove that policy led to procedures that were implemented and that the outcomes
made an impact on the quality of learning, down to the level of the provider and
learner. In other words, it is no longer just about input-output, but about quality
delivery on the ground.
The performance-auditing instrument was developed in consultation with the ETQAs
and the external quality lead auditors appointed by SAQA. It allows for sector-specificity
when determining the quality indicators against which evidence of performance is
gathered. The challenge was to get all involved to participate and to find agreement
on the instrument to be used. The performance auditing system measures the actual
quality of delivery in terms of three main categories: effectiveness, efficiency and the
economy with which policy and procedures were implemented.
The first 18 performance audits have been completed and the balance of the ETQAs
have been scheduled for the 2008/09 financial year. On completion of these audits
SAQA will, for the first time, be able to report comprehensively on the quality impact
made by its ETQA structures on the learners participating in the NQF.
SAQA has required ETQAs to submit development plans indicating the actions
planned to address shortcomings in their performance against set timelines and
will be monitoring their progress in this regard. The progress made in addressing
shortcomings will be taken into account in the reaccreditation process later in 2008.
Against the background of the proposed new NQF landscape and the proposed
implementation of a Quality Council for Trade and Occupations (QCTO), it becomes
even more imperative to measure ETQAs against performance targets and to have a
clear understanding of their level of performance against quality indicators. This will
inform the transition to the new NQF architecture. SAQA modelled its performance
audits around possible changes in future and the need to be receptive to such
changes. Conducting performance quality audits ensures that SAQA carries out its
current mandate, and also prepares the system for future changes.
Targeted monitoring
As part of its drive to ensure quality, SAQA identified critical areas of delivery that
would require monitoring interventions. These became known as targeted monitoring
interventions. In the past year, work in this regard was done in the electrical training
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and streamlining systems as proposed in the new NQF
dispensation.
Extension of accreditation
The processing of applications to extend the accreditation
of ETQAs for newly registered qualifications is an ongoing
responsibility. As new standards and qualifications are
registered, ETQAs are required to apply for accreditation and to
assure the quality of the standards and qualifications that fall
within their scope. This process is properly tracked to ensure
the uptake of qualifications by ETQAs for quality assurance
ronald mbungela, admin clerk, dqad

purposes.

delivery sector. The intervention ensured a consistent level of

During the year under review, SAQA launched a project to

quality in the area of electrical training. The challenge was to

determine the uptake of SGB-generated qualifications in

make recommendations across different sectors in an attempt

relation to the number of accredited providers, enrolled

to find consistency of delivery. Targeted monitoring of the new

learners and achievements per qualification.

welding qualifications is planned for the first quarter of the
2008/09 financial year.

The latest data uploaded to the NLRD on 31 July 2007 were
used to perform the quantitative part of this research. The

Cooperation between ETQAs

matter was then taken forward by way of interviews with ETQA

Providers of education and training must be accredited with the

managers to establish the reasons behind the apparent lack of

ETQA in their primary focus area. As not all qualifications offered

uptake of certain qualifications. A number of trends emerged

by a provider necessarily fall under one ETQA’s primary focus

from the project, which enabled SAQA to deal with the issues

area, it is necessary to have formal working relationships in the

in a constructive manner.

form of Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs) between quality
assurance bodies. These MoUs ensure access to qualifications

One of the challenges identified was the fact that there is

that would normally fall beyond the primary focus of a specific

not necessarily a need for the delivery of full qualifications,

ETQA. One of the challenges was to ensure that MoUs exist

but rather unit standards and part qualifications. SAQA was

where they are required; another was to ensure that they are

responsive to this need, and learner achievements against unit

implemented with roles and responsibilities being fulfilled.

standards are now recorded.

Following the system-wide monitoring of MoUs between

SAQA has to ensure the uptake of qualifications, the quality

ETQAs other than the band ETQAs, a task team of ETQAs under

delivery of these qualifications and the impact they have on

management of DQAD workshopped the process of establishing

raising the skills level of learners, are in line with national

MoUs between other ETQAs, to establish the effectiveness of

human resource development strategies. For these reasons, the

the process. A reviewed version, based on the Manufacturing,

uptake of qualifications has been included in the performance-

Engineering and Related Services SETA (MERSETA) / Energy SETA

auditing process.

(ESETA) model, was subsequently developed. This reviewed
version was shared with ETQAs at the ETQA Forum meeting

Quality assurance of generic qualifications

of 14 November 2007. The document was well received and

As part of SAQA’s responsiveness, it has developed and

implementation began in January 2008. All providers will now

implemented an approach to the quality assurance of generic

have access to a range of qualifications and in the process the

qualifications. Registering generic qualifications with a range

uptake of qualifications will be increased.

of learning programmes recorded against them, allows the
accreditation of ETQAs for the quality assurance of qualifications

A joint proposal between SAQA and the Council on Higher

at learning programme level, and the allocation of unique ID

Education (CHE) was developed that should resolve the

numbers on the NLRD for each learning programme under a

difficulties of MoUs between CHE and other ETQAs. This

generic qualification. This provides more ETQAs with access to

joint proposal was shared at the ETQA Committee meeting

one generic qualification.

on 1 November 2007. CHE will provide feedback after their
management meeting.

Quality promotion
The ETQA forum meetings add value to the system by offering

In developing and overseeing the implementation of MoUs,

a common platform for ETQAs and SAQA to share information

SAQA assists in ensuring closer working relationships

and experiences. Four of these meetings, where important and
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current issues were discussed and finalised for implementation,
took place during the period under review.

ͻ The second and third highest number of qualifications
came from India and the United Kingdom. Other nonAfrican countries from where a significant number

This communication conduit between SAQA and its strategic

of qualifications were imported include the People’s

partners is vital for the growth of the NQF. The issues covered

Republic of China, the United States of America,

include the performance auditing instrument and process

Germany and Cuba. Most of these qualifications are

as well as the registration of private Further Education and

held by Zimbabweans who studied abroad.

Training (FET) providers and MoUs.

ͻ Excluding Zimbabwe, 12 per cent of qualifications
originated from SADC countries. Including Zimbabwe

SAQA uses this platform to ensure that it remains open to

increases this number to almost three-quarters of

criticism and to increase the organisation’s responsiveness to

the total demand (as opposed to just over half in the

its clients’ needs.

2006/07 financial year).

Affirming excellence and challenging mediocrity in the

There has been a shift in the field scope of foreign qualifications.

evaluation of foreign qualifications

In the 2006/07 financial year there was an equal emphasis on
the following major fields as compared with other fields:

The evaluation service aims to provide support for making

ͻ ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ͕ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐĂŶĚĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ

decisions related to the placement of foreign workers and

ͻ ŵĂŶƵĨĂĐƚƵƌŝŶŐ͕ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐĂŶĚƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ

learners in South Africa. Through the generation, management

ͻ ƉŚǇƐŝĐƐ͕ŵĂƚŚĞŵĂƚŝĐƐ͕ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌĂŶĚůŝĨĞƐĐŝĞŶĐĞƐ

and sharing of information about foreign qualifications, SAQA

ͻ ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ͕ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐĞĂŶĚŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ

contributes to mobility and access to learning and employment
opportunities on a world-wide scale. At the same time it serves

The current emphasis, as shown in Figure 3, is as follows:

the national agenda of scarce skills importation and facilitates

ͻ Most foreign qualifications fall in the organising fields of

the development of people and society as a whole.

physical planning and construction and services. These two
areas make up 27 per cent of the total profile.

During the year under report, SAQA has endeavoured to
improve its evaluation service by making it more user-friendly
and efficient. To this end, the following actions were taken:
ͻ Staff capacity has been increased substantially and
continuous training and development have taken place

ͻ Health sciences and social services and human and social
studies each make up 11 per cent of the total.
ͻ Manufacturing, engineering and technology (10 per cent)
is followed by education, training and development and
business, commerce and management (9 per cent each).

throughout the year.
ͻ The contact centre was expanded and the management

Building strategic relationships is an important part of the

of client queries was linked to SAQA’s complaints

activities of the evaluation unit, as it enables SAQA to obtain

management system, to improve client satisfaction.

information and enhance cooperation regarding a range of

ͻ A web-based facility was implemented to expedite

strategic issues pertaining to the migration of skills.

the evaluation process itself, and business processes
were reviewed to ensure maximum effectiveness and

Relationships were established, or strengthened, with a

efficiency.

number of targeted stakeholders and partners. These included
the Department of Home Affairs, immigration consultants

The demand for evaluation continued to grow, with a record

and prospective employers importing scarce skills, other

total of 29 849 applications processed, of which 26 036 were

government departments, professional bodies, as well as a

new and 3 813 were reactivated. Figure 1 shows the trend

variety of peer evaluating agencies in Europe, the USA and

since the amendment of immigration policy in 2005.

elsewhere.

Based on a large sample of the qualifications evaluated, a
trends analysis of the distribution rendered the following
information (depicted in Figure 2):
ͻ The influx of learners and workers from Zimbabwe has
doubled since the 2006/07 financial year. This portion
now makes up 60 per cent of the total demand (as
opposed to 34 per cent in 2006/07).
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figure 1:
application trend since the amendment of immigration policy in 2005

figure 2:
countries of origin of qualifications evaluated in 2006/07

figure 3:
distribution across organising fields of qualifications evaluated
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the national learners' records database: excellence in an
information system
The NLRD is proving to be world-class and robust and comprehensive enough to be
under consideration as the national dataset on skills. Developed in modular fashion,
so that further information needs can be met as they arise, the NLRD has since its
inception accommodated qualifications and unit standards and learners’ achievements
of these. More recently it has been expanded to accommodate professional
designations and learnerships. With ever-increasing learner numbers flowing into the
NLRD from all of the SETA-ETQAs and almost all of the other ETQAs, SAQA is in a
position to perform various analyses of this information, to ensure that the uptake
of the qualifications and unit standards registered on the NQF is understood and that
verifications of learner achievements can be performed.
yvonne shapiro, director:

Providing valuable information for decision making

national learners' records database

The Minister of Education launched the report, Trends in Public Higher Education in
South Africa 1995 to 2004 in June 2007. In her speech, she stated that the NLRD “will
continue to be an important component of SAQA after the conclusion of the review of
the National Qualifications Framework.” Concerning the findings of the report itself,
the Minister highlighted the fact that, during the decade under review, the number
of graduates in the available pool in South Africa had grown from 542 398 to 1.18
million, with the number of black people in the pool increasing from one in four to
one in two. She added, “The depth of the historical legacy of apartheid damage and
distortion is evident in the simple fact that the majority of black graduates are in the
social sciences and not in the engineering sciences and technology.” She concluded
with a challenge to those present to consider how to respond to the data, and to pose
policy questions leading to a set of issues to address.
Dr Adi Paterson, the Chairperson of SAQA’s Information and Information Technology
Committee who presented the report, indicated that SAQA had produced a set of data
that suggested a number of policy interventions, pointing out that every page of the
report posed a policy question, including questions about mathematics education at
school level. The findings were also presented to the CHE Council, and they committed
themselves to cooperating with SAQA on further analysis of the findings.
Work on a similar report to analyse trends for the new qualifications registered since
the inception of the NQF, has commenced.
Information on the NLRD was given to delegations from Zambia, Kenya, Ethiopia
and Canada, as well as the South African Management Development Institute, the
conference of the Careers Exhibitions and Information Association and the Q-Africa
Conference on Information Management for Occupational Qualifications.
JIPSA commissioned research into whether the NLRD could become the national
dataset on skills. The NLRD had been proposed for this because it is the only such
database in South Africa, and has now reached a ‘critical mass’ in the amount of
learner data that it contains. The study is investigating the following issues:
ͻ ƚŚĞƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐĨŽĐƵƐŽĨƚŚĞE>Z
ͻ ƚŚĞE>Z͛ƐĐƵƌƌĞŶƚĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ͕ƐƵĐŚĂƐĚŽŝŶŐǀĞƌŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ
information on qualifications and unit standards
ͻ ƚŚĞƚǇƉĞƐŽĨƌĞƉŽƌƚƐƚŚĂƚǁŽƵůĚƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶͲŵĂŬŝŶŐĐŽŶĐĞƌŶŝŶŐƐŬŝůůƐ
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ͻ ƚŚĞ E>Z͛Ɛ ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶƐŚŝƉ ǁŝƚŚ ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ ďŽĚŝĞƐ ƐƵĐŚ ĂƐ

Number of

professional councils, especially concerning professional

learners for

Number of

Number of

registration; with ETQAs concerning how their data is

provider-

learners for

learners for

based

new

analysed; with government departments concerning their
own datasets; and with Statistics South Africa concerning
the NLRD’s compliance with the national quality standard

SETA-ETQA

unit

qualifications qualifications

AgriSETA

standards

4 506

666

272

1 673

1 674

2 533

2 560

3 316

930

796

ESETA

2 796

1 191

ETDP SETA

4 313

74 838

1 300

67

596

7

560

642

for databases.
BANKSETA

SAQA developed a utility to verify whether specific qualifi-

CETA

cations meet the requirements for reregistration without

CHIETA

undergoing an extensive review process.

CTFL SETA

Assisting the ETQAs to submit their data
By February 2008, 28 ETQAs had proved their compliance

15 486

FASSET

with the requirements for submitting data to the NLRD, thus
meeting the requirements of the compliance league table for

FIETA

ETQA data loads. In keeping with moving towards performance

FOODBEV SETA

8 534

13 914

rather than simply compliance, a performance league table was

HWSETA

3 290

2 141

initiated as well, to measure which ETQAs were now submitting

INSETA

790

4 831

data that illustrated learners’ uptake of qualifications and unit

ISETT SETA

672

3 210

1 809

standards. In both July 2007 and January-February 2008, only

LGSETA

4 743

1 331

480

1 123

2 403

14 673

10 161

16 204

196 446

271

304

75

25 470

341 353

six ETQAs (including the CHE) achieved ‘green’ status (a traffic-

MAPPP SETA

light rating system is used, where green is the highest possible
rating) on this far more challenging league table.

MERSETA

33 583

MQA

The mini-uniform resource locator (URL), www.saqa.org.za/

PSETA

nlrdinfo.asp, giving all the relevant load specifications, lookup

SASSETA

tables and Edu.Dex (data-testing system) updates, was further

SERVICES SETA

3 965

22 945

25 808

TETA

1 799

5 097

4 204

88

9 217

14 143

3 315

4 567

improved in that the list of providers (where ETQAs can find the
codes of all providers, for use in learner achievement records)
is refreshed every 24 hours.

THETA
W&RSETA

Extra support, in the form of capacity-building meetings, was
offered to the few ETQAs that were still struggling to meet

table 1: summary of uptake statistics for
seta-etqas

the requirements, and SAQA produced qualification and unit
standard uptake statistics for each ETQA. NLRD partners’ forum
meetings were utilised to ensure that the numbers loaded onto

the searchable databases of qualifications and unit standards.

the NLRD, as shown in Table 1 for the SETA-ETQAs, matched

These searchable databases acquired their most helpful

the numbers that the ETQAs expected to be present.

enhancement to date: the ‘word search’ option is used to
search for a word or words appearing anywhere at all in the

SAQA commenced a three-year project to offer intensive

qualifications or unit standards. A close second was, for those

assistance to the CHE’s Higher Education Quality Committee

that preferred it, the facility to search all qualifications and unit

(HEQC), to gather information on private Higher Education in

standards at once, regardless of their registration status. Yet

an information system (such as other ETQAs have) and load it

another enhancement was to add the display of last date for

onto the NLRD. To this end, a Higher Education Quality Council

enrolment and last date for achievement (calculated according

Information System (HEQCIS) was designed, built and hosted

to registration end date and qualification type) for each

by the NLRD on a SAQA server. Load specifications including

qualification and unit standard. The average number of visits

a minimum standard for data submissions were written, the

per month to the searchable databases during the reporting

necessary staff put in place and preparation for the roll-out to

period was 92 000.

the first 100 providers has commenced.
The Extensible Markup Language (XML) service allowing
Client service

subscribers to download the full records of registered

A searchable database of trades (recorded on the NLRD,

qualifications and unit standards into their own databases

based on information transmitted by the DoL) was added to

continued.
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SAQA continued to provide alerts when information on
qualifications or unit standards was corrected, as well as
notifications concerning replacement qualifications and unit
standards.
SAQA’s Project for Qualifications Excellence ensures that
information about qualifications, as well as their linkages to
other elements of the NQF, is correctly recorded and reported
upon.
Verification of learner achievements
The verifications service consists of several options, the main
ones being that individuals contact SAQA concerning their own
records and receive a free transcript of their records held on
the NLRD, while subscribing organisations request third-party
verifications of the learning achievements of prospective or
current employees, on a small scale (up to about 100 learners)
or a large scale (even hundreds of thousands of verifications);
the latter is known as the bulk verification service.
A total of 613 free verifications of people’s own records were
completed, more than double the number in the previous
year.
A total of 832 third-party verifications, concerning the
qualifications of 548 people, were completed for 47 subscribing
clients (a total of 79 organisations, including many national
and provincial government departments) during this reporting
period, an increase of more than 50 per cent over the previous
period.
The bulk verification service was further automated and
developed, and was run for several provincial government
departments.
A contract was signed with the DoL, for SAQA to support
their Employment Services of South Africa (ESSA) project by
matching data from the ESSA database with verification data
from the NLRD, thereby providing acknowledgement from
SAQA for all the matched records in the ESSA database.
Support to other organisations
A request for information on how to commission and establish
a system such as the NLRD was received from the National
Accreditation Board of Malaysia, and responded to in detail.
Closer to home, SAQA provided support to the DoE’s Committee
on Education Data Standards, the DoL (working group on
Education, Training and Development Training Providers and
Training Interventions / Learner Records), and the South
African Council for Educators working group developing the
information system for continuous professional development
of teachers.
Learnership
The Information Administrator learnership, hosted by the
NLRD at SAQA and funded by the ETDP SETA, completed the
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example of an achievement report sent to a graduate

first year of its third two-year cycle. At the end of 2007, these
learners had the best first-year Unisa results ever achieved on
this learnership. There were a total of 39 passes for 56 exams
written by the eight learners. One of the learners passed all
seven modules outright (the first time this has happened for
any intake of this learnership). Two supplementary exams were
written in May, and fifteen subjects had to be repeated.
Research into the successes and failures of the same learnership
at the time when it was implemented at ETQAs (mostly during
2004 and 2005), was conducted. The key findings were that it
is essential to manage the mutual expectations of the learners
and the ETQAs, and to maintain excellent communication
between all stakeholders for the entire duration of the
learnership.
Maintenance and development
The last items were put in place in preparation for the launch
of NLRD Version 2. This would result in improved data loading,
file structures and functionality. The enhancements included,
for the first time, the capacity to record the completion
of learnerships, as well as preparation to accommodate
professional designations as soon as this was required.
Once again, SAQA staff and external service providers jointly
ensured that the NLRD was well supported, that database
administration was of the highest quality, that the required
enhancements and developments were correctly specified
and implemented, that disaster recovery measures would be
available if required, and that the NLRD system continued to
function robustly.
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summary of information held on the nlrd as at
31 march 2008
Learners: approximately 8 000 000
ͻ YƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ ŽĨ ƚŚĞƐĞ ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ͗ ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ
7 500 000 (some learners have unit standards only)
ͻ KĨƚŚĞƐĞ͕ϭϯϯϭϰϴĂƌĞĂĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚƐƐƵďŵŝƚƚĞĚďǇĂůůϮϯ^dͲdYƐ
against 312 SGB-generated qualifications.
ͻ hŶŝƚƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚĂĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚƐŽĨƚŚĞƐĞůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ͕ƐƵďŵŝƚƚĞĚďǇƚŚĞ
SETA ETQAs: 2 644 520 (Fundamental, Core and Elective; many unit
dr a paterson, chairperson of the i & it
committee, speaks at the trends in higher
education launch

standards per learner)
Assessors: 36 088
Standards Generating Bodies (SGBs):
ͻ ƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ͗ϯϲ
ͻ ,ĂǀĞĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚƚŚĞŝƌƌĞŐŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͗ϭϱϭ
ͻ WƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ͗Ϯϳ
ͻ ĞƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚŽƌǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁŶ͗ϲϬ
New qualifications:
ͻ ƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ͗ϴϴϵ;ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐϱϰƌĞƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚͿ
ͻ ,ĂǀĞĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚƚŚĞŝƌĨŝƌƐƚĐǇĐůĞǁŝƚŚŽƵƚďĞŝŶŐƌĞƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ 
(some havebeen replaced): 189
ͻ /ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞŝŶĐƵƌƌĞŶƚƌĞŐŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶƐĚƵƌŝŶŐƚŚŝƐƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐƉĞƌŝŽĚ͗ϭϭϴ
Provider-based qualifications and learning programmes: 8 024

nlrd learners (from left) portia manaiwa,
lazarus sekopa, lati tloubatla, nonhlanhla
dlamini, percy mahaba and veronica vuma.

Qualifications used in Learnerships: 723
New unit standards:
ͻ ƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ͗ϵϱϯϵ;ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐϱϭϵϯƌĞƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚͿ
ͻ ,ĂǀĞĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚƚŚĞŝƌĨŝƌƐƚĐǇĐůĞǁŝƚŚŽƵƚďĞŝŶŐƌĞƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ 
(some have been replaced): 3 318
ͻ /ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞŝŶĐƵƌƌĞŶƚƌĞŐŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶƐĚƵƌŝŶŐƚŚŝƐƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐƉĞƌŝŽĚ͗ϳϭϯ
Education and Training Quality Assurance bodies: 31
ETQA accreditations to quality-assure qualifications: 7 733
(884 new qualifications and 6 849 provider-based qualifications and
learning programmes, mostly Higher Education linked to CHE)
Provider accreditations:
ͻ 2 090 Providers accredited to offer 6 820 qualifications
(318 new qualifications and 6 448 provider-based qualifications
and learning programmes, mostly Higher Education linked to
CHE)
ͻ 2 068 Providers accredited to offer 2 966 unit standards
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researching the nqf: clearing the undergrowth
After 13 years’ experience of the challenges of transforming a large-scale education
and training system, South Africans have become all too aware of the difficulties
of education change, the persistence of inequalities, learners’ lack of access and
success, weak management practices and poor teaching practices. One assumption
guiding SAQA’s research is that NQFs are best understood as a work-in-progress and
as contestable artefacts of modern society. NQFs can contribute in a modest way
to how a society manages the relations between education, training and work by
finding common ground through developing understandings of the similarities and
differences between distinct forms of learning and, through better understanding,
articulation between these forms of learning and workplace practices.

prof. ben parker,
director: research

Access, redress, mobility, portability and progression all depend in one way or
another on the assumption that it is possible to recognise and evaluate ‘something’
that is comparable between different qualifications or different forms of learning.
Building opportunities for lifelong learning requires a clear understanding of
‘comparability’ and ‘transferability’ and reiterates the importance of initiatives such
as Credit Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) and Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL),
which are understood to have the potential to improve access, progression, mobility
and portability. SAQA believes that this can best be done through a strong researchdriven collaborative approach to NQF development that seeks ‘means of portability’,
ways of enabling boundary crossings, improving quality and relevance and improved
understanding of different forms and sites of learning. It is in this sense that SAQA’s
research contributes to ‘clearing the undergrowth’ by trying to clarify some key
concepts and practices that are essential to developing the NQF.
The 2007/08 financial year has seen a further strengthening of SAQA’s research
capacity. Building on progress made in 2006/07, the Authority established a research
committee and, by October 2007, a research directorate had been formed and a
research director appointed. The research agenda balances short-term research
projects with longer-term research programmes and is oriented towards partnerships
with experts and organisations that work within different fields. This includes working
with higher education institutions, research organisations and other NQF partners
such as Umalusi, the CHE, the DoE and the DoL by participating in research-focused
discussions, forums and working groups.
Completed research projects
SAQA has completed the following research projects in this financial year:
ͻ ĂŶŝŶǀĞƐƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶŝŶƚŽ&ƵƌƚŚĞƌĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶĂŶĚdƌĂŝŶŝŶŐĞƌƚŝĨŝĐĂƚĞƐ
ͻ ĂƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶƉĂƉĞƌŽŶŐĞŶĞƌŝĐƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐĐƌŝƚĞƌŝĂ
ͻ ĂƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶƉĂƉĞƌŽŶƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƚŝŽŶƐ
ͻ ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐƚŽĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ
ͻ ĂŶŝŶŝƚŝĂůĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐŽĨE>ZĚĂƚĂƌĞůĂƚĞĚƚŽĞƋƵŝƚǇĂŶĚƌĞĚƌĞƐƐ
ͻ ĂŶĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐŽĨĚŝƐĐŽƵƌƐĞƐĂƌŽƵŶĚƚŚĞEY&ĨƌŽŵϭϵϴϴƚŽϮϬϬϳ
ͻ ĂŶ ŝŶǀĞƐƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶ ŝŶƚŽ ƚŚĞ ƵƐĞ ŽĨ ĐƌŝƚŝĐĂů ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ ŝŶ ĚƵůƚ ĂƐŝĐ ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ ĂŶĚ
Training (ABET) qualifications
ͻ ĂŶŝŶǀĞƐƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶŽĨŚŽǁŬĞǇEY&ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĐƵƌƌŝĐƵůƵŵĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ
ͻ Ă ƐŵĂůůͲƐĐĂůĞ ƉŝůŽƚ ƐƵƌǀĞǇ ŽĨ ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ ƉĞƌĐĞƉƚŝŽŶƐ ŽĨ ŐƌĂĚƵĂƚĞ ĂƚƚƌŝďƵƚĞƐ ŝŶ
partnership with Higher Education South Africa
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New research projects
SAQA has embarked on six longer-term research projects in partnership
with researchers based at universities and other research organisations.
These are:
ͻ Ă ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚŝĞƐ ŽĨ ƉƌĂĐƚŝĐĞ ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ ƚŽ ĨŽƌŵƐ ŽĨ ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ ĂŶĚ
assessment and to organisational forms relevant to SAQA and NQF
practices (especially the concepts of assessment, transparency and
transferability)
ͻ ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ ĂŶĚ ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ ƉƌĂĐƚŝĐĞƐ ŝŶ
workplaces
ͻ ĂĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ͕ ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶƚŝĂů ĂŶĚ ǁŽƌŬƉůĂĐĞ ĚŝŵĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ ŽĨ ĐƵƌƌŝĐƵůĂ͕
pedagogic and assessment practices in FET colleges
ͻ ƚŚĞŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞEĂƚŝŽŶĂůĞƌƚŝĨŝĐĂƚĞ͗sŽĐĂƚŝŽŶĂů

samuel ba isaacs (eo) and prof. shirley walters
(chairperson) at the nqf colloquium

ͻ ZĞĐŽŐŶŝƚŝŽŶŽĨWƌŝŽƌ>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ
ͻ ŝŵƉĂĐƚŽĨƚŚĞEY&
A highlight of the year was a week-long visit by Dr Etienne Wenger, an
international expert on understanding and using communities of practice
approaches. SAQA hosted the NQF Colloquium where Dr Wenger was the
main speaker, and workshops were held at SAQA and at the Universities of
the Western Cape and the Witwatersrand.
SAQA has participated in an Organisation for Economic Cooperation and
Development (OECD) international research programme on RPL and
produced a country report on South Africa.
Two workshops were held for SAQA staff on aspects of the research

prof. ian moll (left), research associate, and dr

programme; one volume of the SAQA Bulletin was produced; and a

etienne wenger at the nqf colloquium

research page on the SAQA website was developed, to provide access to
research reports and other research-oriented documents and to act as a
communications platform for those interested in NQF research. SAQA cohosted the fifth international Researching Work and Learning Conference in
Stellenbosch with the Universities of the Western Cape and Cape Town and
the HSRC. SAQA facilitated a symposium on qualifications frameworks as
part of the conference programme, which received strong commendations
from participants and in the media for the way it opened up critical debate
about South Africa’s NQF.
Support policy development
SAQA participated in the policy discussions around the NQF review, the
Joint Policy Statement and the draft NQF Bill and in formal interactions
with the CHE, Umalusi and the DoL. These discussions were supported
through careful and rigorous analyses, which help to clarify concepts and
issues that lie at the root of misunderstandings and contestations. During
the course of the year, SAQA produced six different briefing and position
papers on its evaluative role, professional qualifications, RPL, CAT, quality
assurance of private FET providers and lifelong learning.
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strategic support
The Directorate: Strategic Support encompassed four areas in this financial year:
communications, information services, international liaison and research. Following
a decision taken by the Authority, a separate Research Directorate was established in
October 2007. The report of the Research Directorate is set out on the previous page.
The key focus of the Directorate: Strategic Support is communications and advocacy
of the NQF and SAQA to the broad public and key participants in the education and
training landscape. A range of strategies are pursued to meet this objective, including
publications, conferences, colloquia, lectures, websites, exhibitions and international
liaison.
Communications
stephen sadie,
director: strategic support

ͻ Communications strategy
In order to streamline and sharpen communication with key stakeholders, SAQA
developed a comprehensive communications strategy. This helped to identify
SAQA’s key target markets and develop appropriate messages for each target
market. The initial aspects of the communications strategy were implemented
and will continue into the 2008/09 financial year. Workshops with SAQA staff were
held, providing guidance on marketing requirements and priorities. A range of
designs for an advertising campaign incorporating web banner ads, posters, print
ads, advertorials, brochures, directories and share-of-desk items were developed.
The communications strategy is based on the concepts of access and currency,
which are captured in the form of a wallet, a passport, a bunch of keys and an
access card.
ͻ Database
In order to communicate directly with key role-players in the education and
training field, the SAQA database was improved and updated with new contacts.
The database contains more than 3 000 contacts in different categories. Copies
of SAQA publications such as the quarterly SAQA Update newsletter, conference
proceedings, research reports and the SAQA Bulletin are regularly mailed to
recipients on the database. The database ensures SAQA publications reach the
key role-players in education and training in South Africa.
ͻ Events
Trends in Higher Education report launch
The Minister of Education, Ms Naledi Pandor, launched the second major report
on Trends in Higher Education on 15 June 2007. The launch was held at the
Agricultural Research Council in Pretoria and was attended by 200 people. This
report highlights qualifications by types, NQF levels, population groups, gender,
and fields of study for the period 1995-2004, providing information of key strategic
importance to decision-makers in the education and training field. Also refer to
the section on the NLRD for more information on the report.
Chairperson’s lecture
Short courses have become the dominant paradigm in education and training.
It was decided to focus on short courses in the 7th annual Chairperson’s Lecture
titled Enhancing system-wide quality continuing education. The Chairperson’s
Lecture attracted approximately 100 people representing a variety of stakeholders
in education and training. Professor Shirley Walters, Chairperson of SAQA,
presented the lead paper titled Where can I find a conference on short courses?
The possible impact of the discourse of ‘short courses’ in South Africa. Other
panel members included SAQA Executive Officer Samuel Isaacs, Professor Wally
Morrow of the Continuing Professional Development for Teachers Task Team and
Ms Christa North, Quality Manager at the University of Pretoria.
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An interactive format was followed, with extensive
participation from all delegates. The questions raised by
the paper, together with the responses of other panel
members, led to a lively discussion, and the conclusion
that more interaction on short courses was required.
Exhibitions
SAQA had exhibition stands at a number of conferences
and exhibitions to increase its visibility. Copies of SAQA
publications and information brochures were distributed
to members of the public at the following events:
ͻ sŽĚĂĐŽŵ ĂƌĞĞƌ ǆƉŽ͕ ŚĞůĚ ŝŶ Ɖƌŝů Ăƚ ƚŚĞ WƌĞƚŽƌŝĂ
Showgrounds
ͻ ^ŚĞƌĐŽŶ͕ŚĞůĚŝŶƉƌŝůĂƚŝƌĐŚǁŽŽĚŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞĞŶƚƌĞ͕

jodi kgalane of dssd and prof. shepherd mayatula (right),
chairperson of the parliamentary portfolio committee on
education at q-africa 2007

Boksburg
ͻ /ŶƚĞƌƉŽů͕ŚĞůĚŝŶƉƌŝůĂƚŵƉĞƌŽƌƐWĂůĂĐĞ͕ŽŬƐďƵƌŐ
ͻ ,ƵŵĂŶZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚĨƌŝĐĂ͕ŚĞůĚŝŶ:ƵŶĞĂƚ
Gallagher Estate, Midrand
ͻ ZĞƐĞĂƌĐŚŝŶŐtŽƌŬĂŶĚ>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ͕ŚĞůĚŝŶĞĐĞŵďĞƌŝŶ
Stellenbosch
ͻ ^ƉŽƌƚƐ ĂŶĚ ZĞĐƌĞĂƚŝŽŶ ^ŽƵƚŚ ĨƌŝĐĂ ŚĞůĚ ŝŶ &ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ
2008 at Kopanong, Benoni
ͻ ^ĐŝĞŶĐĞ hŶůŝŵŝƚĞĚ ŚĞůĚ ŝŶ DĂƌĐŚ Ăƚ ƚŚĞ WƌĞƚŽƌŝĂ
Showgrounds
ͻ hŵĂůƵƐŝ͕ ŚĞůĚ ŝŶ DĂƌĐŚ Ăƚ ƚŚĞ ^/Z /ŶŶŽǀĂƚŝŽŶ ,Ƶď͕
Pretoria
ͻ Conferences
NQF Colloquium
SAQA continued to deepen the quality of the NQF
through the third NQF Colloquium, which was held at
Velmoré Conference Estate, Tshwane, in June 2007. Dr
Etienne Wenger, an educational theorist and practitioner
best known for his work in the field of communities of

samuel isaacs (saqa), elizabeth thobejane (dol) and dr
peer ederer (lisbon council), at q-africa 2007

Sector SETA (INSETA); Henry Lovell from DaimlerChrysler
SA; and Gideon Malan from BMW SA. A major thrust of
the conference was the QCTO. SAQA created a platform
whereby the critical issues pertaining to the new QCTO
could be openly debated.

practice, visited South Africa to lead the NQF Colloquium.
What emerged was the awareness that the concept of
community of practice is influencing theory and practice in
many domains. SAQA’s Research Directorate is also doing
further work in this field.

The response from delegates was very positive, in the
sense that they felt the conference offered a wide range of
topics and outcomes that were relevant to their particular
situations. A special section was created on the SAQA
website which featured presentations, papers, and a photo
gallery of the conference.

Q-Africa
Q-Africa 2007, which took place on the 22nd and 23rd

Researching Work and Learning
SAQA co-hosted the 5th International Conference on

November, had the theme Occupationally-directed
qualifications within qualifications frameworks. Over 250
people attended the conference, which focused on how
to address a number of national challenges through the
development of occupationally-directed qualifications. Key
speakers included Elizabeth Thobejane of the DoL; Dr Peer
Ederer of the Lisbon Council; the German Ambassador
Mr Dieter Haller; Chris Vorwerk, Meg Pahad, and Santa
de Jager of the German Agency for Technical Cooperation
(GTZ), consultants to the DoL; Chris de Villers, CEO of the

Researching Work and Learning together with the
Universities of the Western Cape and Cape Town and
the Human Sciences Research Council. The theme was
Rethinking the centre and the margins in researching
Work and Learning. The conference was attended by 350

Institute of Chartered Secretaries of South Africa; Theo
Bhengu, Acting Deputy Executive Director of the HEQC;
Shirley Steenekamp, ETQA manager of the Insurance
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delegates from 33 countries. SAQA was responsible for the
marketing component of the conference. SAQA developed
the logo of the conference and the T-shirts for marshals.
Media coverage was extensive, including articles in Business
Day, Cape Times and the African Cleaning Review, and
interviews on SAFM, Bush Radio and Cape Talk. Professor
Walters was interviewed on CNBC Africa television, and
articles appeared on the Skills Portal website.
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ͻ International visits
SAQA hosted visitors from Africa and overseas during the year under review. A
variety of countries requested visits to SAQA which specifically helped to build
the organisation’s African connections. Topics ranged from general education and
training issues to specific questions on the South African NQF or the recognition
of foreign qualifications. Visits were received from the following countries:
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ͻ Publications
SAQA Update
The SAQA Update is SAQA’s newsletter, which keeps stakeholders up to date on
the latest developments regarding the NQF.
ͻ sŽů͘ ϭϬ EŽ͘ ϯ͕ ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ ŝŶ :ƵŶĞ ϮϬϬϳ͕ ǁĂƐ Ă ƐƉĞĐŝĂů ĞĚŝƚŝŽŶ ŽŶ YƵĂůŝƚǇ
Assurance and the Evaluation of Foreign Qualifications.
ͻ sŽů͘ϭϬEŽ͘ϰ͕ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚŝŶĞĐĞŵďĞƌϮϬϬϳ͕ǁĂƐĂĚŽƵďůĞĞĚŝƚŝŽŶĂŶĚĨŽĐƵƐĞĚ
on a number of relevant issues including good governance, leading the

saqa update, vol 10 no 3
june 07

debate, responsive qualifications, information systems and online learning,
and building African connections.
SAQA Bulletin
The SAQA Bulletin is more academic in nature and reflects key debates with the
NQF. Volume 10 No 2 was published in August 2007 and featured the second NQF
Colloquium, which had as its theme The NQF as a socially inclusive and cohesive
system. The Bulletin contained papers by Jim Gallagher (Scotland), Samuel Isaacs,
Dr Ben Parker, Dr Ken Harley, Prof Yusef Waghid, Prof Mary Metcalfe and Melissa
King.
ECD report
SAQA published a report entitled The uptake and impact of qualifications and unit
standards in the sub-field: Early Childhood Development. SAQA endeavours to
share the results of its research with the key stakeholders who would benefit from
such research. The study investigated the extent to which qualifications in new
and emerging fields of learning such as early childhood development (ECD) are
taken up by the sector, and the impact that such qualifications may have in terms
of relevance to the needs of the sector. The study also determined the impact of
the qualifications on both individuals and on the sub-field of ECD. The publication
was well received, particularly by institutions involved in the ECD field.

saqa update, vol 10 no 4
december 07

Conference proceedings
The proceedings of the Chairperson’s Lecture, which was held on 7 November,
were published. The proceedings of the 7th Q-Africa Conference which was
held on 22 and 23 November were also published. A pocket handbook entitled
Governance matters was published to assist new members of the board in
becoming acquainted with their corporate governance responsibilities.
ͻ Media/information
Magazine articles on SAQA appeared in the ASGISA special edition on how SAQA
supports JIPSA, a special edition on skills development in the Succeed magazine,
and in a special feature on SETAs in CEO magazine.
saqa bulletin, vol 10 no 2
august 07
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the uptake and impact of qualifications and unit
standards in the sub-field:
early childhood development
august 07

trends in public higher education in
south africa 1995 - 2004
june 07

chairperson’s lecture 2007
march 08

annual report 2006 - 2007
august 07

nqf colloquium poster
june 07

keeping you informed poster
september 07

q-africa conference proceedings
march 08

quality qualifications brochure
march 08

nqf support link brochure
july 07
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SAQA has printed information brochures explaining the NQF and
advising prospective FET and HE learners how to choose a reliable
education and training provider that is properly accredited by an
ETQA. SAQA also produced a poster entitled Keeping you informed,
which featured a range of SAQA’s publications.
Information Services
NQF Support Link project
SAQA enhanced excellence in education and training by providing
custom-designed learning resources through the NQF Support Link.
The NQF Support Link is a broad national programme, specifically

ntsiki gumbe (left), deputy director of information

designed to clarify and promote competence in using the NQF. It

services and barbara dale-jones (right), general

provides comprehensive and accessible information about the NQF, its

manager of edegree, promote the nqf support link

philosophy, practices and approaches. A key driver of the NQF Support
Link is the broadening of access to learning about the NQF as a lever
for quality improvement and systems change.
Available in print, on CD-ROM and online, the NQF Support Link
learning resources provide learners with the necessary skills to plan
provision, assess providers and programmes, design curriculum and
learning support materials, match learning to organisational needs
and manage education and training projects and processes.
Following a launch year of marketing activities, which included strategic
advertising, editorials, interviews, exhibitions and conference speaker
opportunities, awareness of the NQF Support Link has grown steadily.
Progress has been made in penetrating the SETAs, some government
departments, the FET sector and the private sector, particularly human

q-africa 2007 was well attended

resource and skills development managers. Awareness has been
created through advertisements, interviews, advertorials in various
skills development and human resources publications and through
conference presentations and exhibitions at targeted events.
Between June 2007 and March 2008, a total of 16 workshops were
held in Johannesburg, Pretoria, Cape Town and Durban. These were
attended by 228 participants. The enrolment has largely been from
the SETAs (49 per cent) due to high-level marketing aimed at this
target audience to build the capacity of staff in order to accelerate the
implementation of the NQF.
SAQA website
The SAQA website is not only a trusted source of information on the
NQF - it has also become an effective tool for disseminating information
electronically to SAQA stakeholders and the general public. In the year
under review, the popular website received 173 448 visits. There were
also 8 434 subscribers to the SAQA email alert. The subscribers come
from a variety of sectors including private providers of education and
training, public institutions, learners, ETQAs and private companies.
This alert informs subscribers of the latest SAQA and NQF news,
publications, information for public comment, and new qualifications
and unit standards.
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A new-look SAQA website went live in August 2007. This was

Records management project

aimed at improved user-friendliness and replaced a look and

SAQA has undertaken a records management project in order

feel designed in 2003.

to manage its information resources in terms of the broad
policy guidelines contained in the National Archives and

NQF Gateway

Records Service of South Africa Act (Act No. 43 of 1996) and its

The NQF Gateway plays a critical role in making the NQF Support

regulations. Records management is the process of ensuring

Link learning programmes widely available for the benefit of

the proper creation, maintenance, use and disposal of records

those who cannot afford to enrol as learners. It also provides

throughout their life cycle, to achieve efficient, transparent

a forum where those involved in education and training can

and accountable governance.

share ideas and best practice for the implementation of the
NQF.

The first phase of the project was an organisation-wide
information audit. The audit included interviews with key staff

The Gateway is also used to keep NQF Support Link learners

members and office visits to obtain an overview of records-

and NQF practitioners informed of the changes in the NQF

related resources and office equipment, assess current

landscape. This information is easily accessible, thus allowing

volume of records and establish growth patterns and archival

learners and practitioners to be proactive in their approach to

needs, obtain information on existing records management

learning and their work.

systems, and map all business processes for the purpose of
developing a file plan. The outcome of this project is an audit

The upgrading and enhancing of the NQF Gateway, which

report reflecting the state of the record management of the

was aimed at improving the collaboration facilities, the NQF

organisation and recommendations on the development of a

resources available and ease of navigation, were completed

file plan, which will be the second phase of the project.

successfully in the period under review.
International liaison
SAQA Community Gateway
The SAQA Community Gateway, an internal portal, has been

The main objective of international liaison is to collaborate

upgraded to facilitate easier and more effective internal

with international partners on all matters of mutual interest

communication. The latest information, including news relating

concerning national and regional qualifications frameworks.

to the NQF, is posted on this portal and members of staff are
encouraged to post comments in the discussion forum, thus

This collaboration assists countries that are in the process of

encouraging strategic conversations electronically. It is also a

developing their own frameworks, as they can benefit from

one-stop shop where staff members can access internal and

the lessons learnt in the South African context, and also inform

external documents, presentations, staff forms and templates.

the development and implementation of the South African

Members of staff undergoing electronic training can access the

qualifications framework through involvement in international

Learner Management System from the Community Gateway.

best practice.

The Human Resources Directorate also has a page dedicated to
communicating directly with members of staff.

In working with other countries SAQA focuses primarily on
giving technical assistance and developing capacity. Specific

Resource and Information Centre

projects include:

The Resource and Information Centre continues to provide
support to the NQF-focused work of SAQA through the

SADC

collection, management and dissemination of information

SAQA conducted a study on the benchmarking of quality

resources and services. The latest publications on relevant

assurance across the Southern Africa Development Community

subjects are acquired and information sources such as online

(SADC) region, upon request of the SADC Technical Committee

databases and newspapers are also made available to staff to

on Certification and Accreditation. The report was submitted

keep them abreast of current developments.

to the SADC Education Ministers in Maseru in July 2007.
The Ministers responded positively to the report. The SADC

The Resource and Information Centre houses an RPL archive

Secretariat subsequently approached potential providers to

consisting of both published and unpublished material. The

conduct work based on the recommendations. This study

Joint Education Trust (JET) Information Services donated a

was aimed at determining the current status of quality

substantial amount of material to the collection. The published

assurance systems in SADC member states in order to inform

material is available even to people outside SAQA through the

the development of a framework for the improvement of the

inter-library loan service, while the unpublished material can

quality assurance systems.

only be consulted in the Resource and Information Centre.
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Commonwealth
SAQA developed a teacher qualifications comparability table
for a sample of the 53 Commonwealth Member States, at the
request of the Commonwealth Secretariat. The research report
was presented at the 16th Conference of Commonwealth
Education Ministers (16CCEM) in Cape Town, and was well
received. SAQA has been recontracted to develop a full
comparability table between April 2008 and March 2009,
based on the results of the survey of the recognition of teacher
qualifications and teacher professional status.

zambian delegates at the launch of the
trends in higher education report

Seychelles
SAQA is assisting the Seychelles Qualifications Authority (SQA)

OECD
SAQA is participating in an OECD initiative to investigate the
recognition of non-formal and informal learning across OECD
countries. The OECD’s investigation is aimed at identifying
evidence that may exist in the policies and practices of such
recognition and validation systems in various countries, and
establishing best practice. This initiative included a country visit
to South Africa in February 2008 as well as two international
consultations. A report on the country visit is being prepared.

with NQF development at the request of the United Nations
Development Programme. With SAQA’s support the SQA
completed a draft set of NQF regulations, including wideranging consultations.
The objective of this project is to contribute to sustainable
economic and social development in Seychelles, by
empowering state and non-state actors through capacity
building and training. This will entail the provision of more

Ethiopia
SAQA is supporting the development and implementation
of the Ethiopian Qualifications Framework, with a view to
harmonising and rationalising the sometimes overlapping
qualification systems in the country, and regulating national
standards of knowledge, skills and wider competences by
defining qualification levels with descriptors based on learning
outcomes.

skilled and qualified labour to the economy, the strengthening
of the capacity of non-state actors through training and the
reinforcement of local capacities.
The specific objectives of this project include:
ͻ

training the staff of SQA

ͻ ĂƐƐŝƐƚŝŶŐ ŝŶ ƚŚĞ ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ ĂŶĚ ƌĞǀŝĞǁ ŽĨ ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ ĂŶĚ
regulations deriving from the Act establishing the SQA
ͻ ĂƐƐŝƐƚŝŶŐĂŶĚĂĚǀŝƐŝŶŐƚŚĞ^YƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐƚŚĞŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶ

The SAQA team assists with liaison with all relevant stakeholders
in Ethiopia in order to ensure that there is a common and
deep understanding on the national qualifications framework
(genesis, approaches, methods and uses), and with the
development of generic descriptors for each cycle/level.
SAQA is helping the local taskforce to develop a consultative
document for the development of an NQF for Ethiopia, to be
submitted to the Ministry of Education.

of the NQF
Following a request from SAQA, the Health Professions Council
of South Africa (HPCSA) has participated in the investigation of
the accreditation appeal process of a private medical institute
operating from the Seychelles with sites in Dubai, India and the
United Kingdom. The constructive recommendations of the
HPCSA representative, Dr Mosia, were well received and will
assist the SQA to improve the quality of education and training
in the Seychelles, and also to contribute to the improved
harmonisation of education and training within the SADC.
Mauritius
An MoU with the Mauritius Qualifications Authority, for
technical support in its development of their NQF, has been
presented. The MoU will be considered based on a joint

Commonwealth of Learning
SAQA has been contracted by the Commonwealth of Learning
to develop a concept document for the proposed Transnational
Qualifications Framework. The document was discussed at a
workshop in Singapore in February 2008, and is currently being
finalised.
Angola
Following an initial workshop in 2005, SAQA participated in
a UNESCO initiative in February 2008 to support the Angolan
Ministry of Education with the development of a teacher
qualifications framework.

collaboration.
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human resource management
Broadbanding
The implementation of SAQA’s broadbanding system at the levels of Assistant
Director and below has been the key focus area of the Human Resource (HR)
Directorate during the reporting period.
The objective of the broadbanding system is to establish a broad skills base in
the organisation by ensuring skills development and application. The system
shifts the focus from paying the job to recognising and paying the individual for
his or her contributions. It offers the individual employee growth opportunities
and gives the organisation better resource utilisation and flexibility.

victor booysen,
director: human resources

Learning and development
In an effort to maintain high-performance work practices for the delivery of
quality education and training, SAQA embarked on an exercise of aligning
learning and development with the overall business plan in order to achieve
organisational, directorate and individual aims and objectives. Key aspects of
the learning and development strategy have been holistically implemented
and achieved as follows:
ͻ ŐƌŽǁƚŚŝŶůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉĂŶĚŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞŶĞƐƐ
ͻ ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚŝŶƚŚĞŝŶĐƵůĐĂƚŝŽŶŽĨĂƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ^YŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƚŝŽŶĂůĐƵůƚƵƌĞ
ͻ ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞĚĐŽŵƉĞƚĞŶĐĞĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬƚŚĂƚŝƐďĂƐĞĚŽŶ 





performance and a development management system
ͻ ŶŽƚŝĐĞĂďůĞƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌŽĨŶĞǁůǇĂĐƋƵŝƌĞĚƐŬŝůůƐŝŶƚŽƚŚĞǁŽƌŬƉůĂĐĞ
ͻ ďĞƚƚĞƌƌĞƚƵƌŶŽŶŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ
Learning activities that have been coordinated, facilitated and implemented
in line with employees’ personal development plans addressed various levels
of identified skills gaps from core, general and functional competencies. A
key intervention during this period was the capacity-building of all staff and
management as a run-up to the implementation of the broadbanding system.
A total of 780 person-hours, facilitated by HR, were devoted to ensuring a clear
and common understanding of the system.

HR arranged for SAQA staff to create a food garden at Boitumelo
Community Centre, Soshanguve, for World Aids Day.
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In an attempt to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of learning and development within SAQA, a Learning Management System
(LMS) has been acquired and customised to meet SAQA’s requirements.
Investors in People Standard
SAQA uses the Investors in People Standard (IIP) as a management tool that assists in ensuring that SAQA maintains good peoplemanagement and high-performance work practices, and continually improves these. It assesses, inter alia, the opportunities available
to staff for growth and development.
Following the last assessment that SAQA underwent in February 2007, the suggested improvement actions on the approved IIP action
plan are being implemented through various management and HR interventions.
Employment Equity

TARGET

VARIANCE

PERCENTAGE

TOTAL

EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPUTY EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTORS

DEPUTY DIRECTORS

ASSISTANT DIRECTORS

PERSONAL ASSISTANTS

ADMIN OFFICERS

SECRETARIES

ADMIN CLERK

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

SAQA’s employment equity performance is within acceptable tolerances of the target as indicated in Table 2.

NUMBER OF STAFF

2

24

9

9

2

30

15

8

1

1

99

AFRICAN MALE

0

9

1

2

0

7

7

0

1

0

27 27.3%

AFRICAN FEMALE

1

12

6

5

1

7

2

0

0

0

33 33.3% -2.1% 31.2%

COLOURED MALE

0

0

0

0

0

2

0

1

0

1

4

4.0% -0.2%

3.8%

COLOURED FEMALE

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

1.0%

3.1%

4.1%

INDIAN MALE

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.0%

2.8%

2.8%

INDIAN FEMALE

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

1

1.0%

1.5%

2.5%

WHITE MALE

1

0

0

1

0

5

2

5

0

0

13 13.1%

WHITE FEMALE

0

3

1

1

1

9

4

1

0

0

20 20.2% -6.2% 14.0%

5

0

0

1

6

0

0

0

0

12

29

9

9

3

36

15

8

1

1

111

VACANCIES
STAFF COMPLEMENT

4

0.9% 28.2%

0.4% 13.5%

table 2: employment equity as at 31 march 2008
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information technology
Following a number of application development projects in the 2006/07 financial
year, the key focus was on upgrading IT hardware and enhancing the robustness of
the IT systems.
Two new Intel servers were acquired enabling full redundancy of the virtual servers.
This ensured that in the case of hardware failure SAQA would be able to continue
working within minutes on any virtual server including SAQA’s financial, payroll,
antivirus and antispam systems. In addition, more than 50 new desktop computers
were purchased to equip new staff and to replace desktop computers that were more
than five years old.
A number of application development projects are ongoing:
ͻ dŚĞƐĞĐŽŶĚƉŚĂƐĞŽĨƚŚĞYƐǇƐƚĞŵǁĂƐĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ͘ƉŝůŽƚŽĨƚŚŝƐƚĞŵƉůĂƚĞͲ
driven evaluation model was completed and will be fully implemented early

dr herman ohlhoff,
director: information technology

in the 2008/09 financial year. The purpose of this phase was to enable the
electronic evaluation of repetitive applications. (The first phase was called the
registration model and enabled CEEQ to register applications for the evaluation
of foreign qualifications, gather statistics and communicate with the applicants
automatically).
ͻ dŚĞ>D^ĂĐƋƵŝƌĞĚŝŶƚŚĞϮϬϬϲͬϬϳǇĞĂƌǁĂƐĐƵƐƚŽŵŝƐĞĚĨŽƌ^Y͛ƐƵƐĞ͘dŚŝƐǁŝůů
enable SAQA to track learning and development of its staff and assess the impact
of training against the defined core competencies.
ͻ Ŷ ĞůĞĐƚƌŽŶŝĐ ďƌŝĞĨŝŶŐ ŶŽƚĞ ƚƌĂĐŬŝŶŐ ƐǇƐƚĞŵ ǁĂƐ ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ ĂŶĚ ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ͕
facilitating the tracking of briefing notes which form an integral part of SAQA’s
financial and supply chain management procedures.
ͻ  ƐŝŶŐůĞ ƐŝŐŶͲŽŶ ƐǇƐƚĞŵ ǁĂƐ ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ͕ ĞŶĂďůŝŶŐ ƵƐĞƌƐ ƚŽ ĂĐĐĞƐƐ ŵŽƐƚ
applications with the same user-ID and password.
Business continuity
The Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan developed in the 2006/07
financial year was implemented and is revised regularly. With regard to security,
monthly health checks were conducted in order to monitor and maintain the integrity
of SAQA’s network and data.
An automated shutdown system was implemented to ensure that SAQA’s servers
shut down automatically in case of power failures, thus protecting SAQA’s data.
The SAQA Finance Committee has also approved, in principle, the purchase of a
standby electricity generator, in order to maintain SAQA’s productivity levels during
the electricity crisis in the country, and the tender process began in the year under
report.
Opensource technology
A pilot project on Opensource technology was completed in January 2008. This led to
a decision of the I & IT Committee to replace Microsoft Office with Open Office in due
course, and to investigate alternatives to other existing Microsoft Office applications.
Staffing
A Deputy Director position was created and filled, bringing much-needed additional
high-level capacity to this high-risk area.
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finance and administration, budgeting and funding
SAQA is primarily funded by government and received R35 691 000 from the DoE
during the financial year under review. SAQA raised a further R9 061 506 during the
financial year under review through income generated through Joint Implementation
Plans (JIPs), the rental of office space in SAQA House, interest income and payment
for certain NLRD services. SAQA also charges fees for the evaluation of foreign
qualifications by CEEQ, a service that has grown substantially during the year under
review. Fees are charged for the service so that the revenue produced is sufficient
to cover all the costs related to the rendering of the service. During the year
R14 196 377 was generated by this CEEQ service. SAQA furthermore received approval
during the financial year to use R18 471 906 of excess funds that were carried forward
from earlier financial years.
mark albertyn,
director: finance

The income derived from the above sources was included in the budget submitted
to and approved by the Minister of Education, along with an approved budget
expenditure of R72 131 626 for the year.
The Finance Directorate produces monthly management accounts, as well as quarterly
reports to the DoE, which enables SAQA to manage its funds responsibly and in line
with its approved budget.
During the financial year under review, SAQA began construction of a three-level
parking garage to accommodate the growing parking needs of SAQA House tenants
and SAQA staff. The project was approved by the Minister of Education and the
National Treasury. The project was substantially completed by December 2007.
However, some problems with the second-floor slab were identified and remedial
work was needed to bring this to the required specifications. The remedial work was
completed in May 2008.
SAQA’s office facilities were also expanded to accommodate the expansion of staff
dealing with the evaluation of foreign qualifications and the establishment of a
research directorate.

staff of the directorate: finance
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corporate governance
Composition of the Authority
Following the completion of the three-year term of the Third Authority on 26 October
2007, the Minister of Education, in consultation with the Minister of Labour, appointed
the Fourth Authority for the period 19 November 2007 to 18 November 2010.
The Fourth Authority consists of 25 members, of which national stakeholders in
education and training nominated 22 members, two were appointed at the Ministers’
discretion, and one was co-opted by SAQA with the approval of the Ministers.
Functions of the Authority
In terms of the SAQA Act (Act No. 58 of 1995), the functions of the Authority are to:
ͻ KǀĞƌƐĞĞƚŚĞĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚĂŶĚŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞEY&ďǇ͗
-

registering or accrediting bodies responsible for establishing education and
training standards or qualifications and assigning functions to them

-

registering national qualifications and unit standards

-

accrediting bodies responsible for monitoring and auditing achievements in
terms of such qualifications and unit standards

-

taking steps to ensure that registered qualifications and unit standards are
internationally comparable

ͻ &ŽƌŵƵůĂƚĞĂŶĚƉƵďůŝƐŚƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐĂŶĚĐƌŝƚĞƌŝĂĨŽƌ͗
-

the registration of bodies responsible for establishing education and training
qualifications and unit standards

-

the accreditation of bodies responsible for monitoring and auditing
achievements in terms of such qualifications and unit standards

ͻ ƉƉƌŽǀĞďƵĚŐĞƚƐ͕ŵĂũŽƌĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐĂŶĚŽƚŚĞƌĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐĞŶƚĞƌĞĚŝŶƚŽ
ͻ ŽŶƚƌŽůƚŚĞĨŝŶĂŶĐĞƐŽĨƚŚĞƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ
Activities of the Authority
During the year under review the Third Authority met four times and the Fourth
Authority twice. With the exception of Mr John Arnesen who was employed by SAQA
from 26 July 2004 to 31 December 2005, all members are independent.
In addition to the members, meetings of the Authority are attended by the Deputy
Executive Officer and all directors. The Deputy Executive Officer and relevant directors
also attend Committee meetings.
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Attendance by members of the Third Authority at Authority and Committee meetings other than that of the Executive and Audit
Committees, which are reported on separately, is shown in Table 3.

Name

Initials

Title

Appeals

ETQA

Finance

I & IT

Q&S

Remunerations

Research

SAQA

1

Badat

S

Dr

2

Cele

M

Mr

3

Cooke

JA

Prof.

4

De Klerk

EW

Mr

5

Du Pré

R

Prof.

6

Giba

L

Mr

7

Hall

K

Mr

2/3

8

Isaacs

SBA

Mr

3/3

9

Lolwana

P

Dr

10 Mabena

AVR

Mr

11 Makhubu

RL

Ms

S

Ms

13 Morrow

WE

Prof.

14 Mothiba

P

Mr

15 Müller

CS

Ms

16 Niebuhr

GA

Dr

17 Nkosi

DL

Mr

18 Paterson

AW

Dr

19 Pillay

J

Prof.

2/4

20 Qhobela

M

Dr

0/4

21 Rajab

R

Ms

22 Toni

M

Mr

23 Van Rooyen

M

Ms

24 Vieira

A

Ms

25 Vinjevold

P

Ms

26 Walters

S

Prof.

27 Williams

EAB

Mr

12

MokhoboNomvete

0/2
0/3

3/4
5/9

1/3

0/6

1/2

1/9

3/4
1/4

1/2

1/4
0/4

1/3

5/6

1/3

6/6

3/3

4/4
2/2

4/4
0/4

2/9

3/4
2/4

0/3

3/4
2/3

1/2

3/4
1/4

9/9

4/4
1/4

2/3

1/3

2/4
2/3

1/1*

2/3

2/4

3/4
2/4

2/3

1/3

2/4
6/6

2/4
3/4
2/2

3/4
2/4

* by invitation

table 3: attendance at third authority meetings and committee meetings
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Attendance by members of the Fourth Authority at Authority and Committee meetings other than the Executive and Audit
Committees, which are reported on separately, is shown in Table 4.

Name

Initials

Title

Appeals

ETQA

Finance

I & IT

Q&S

1

Ankiewicz

PJ

Prof.

2

Arnesen

J

Mr

3

Baatjes

I

Mr

4

Brown

M

Mr

5

Cele

M

Mr

6

De Klerk

EW

Mr

7

Du Pré

RH

Prof.

8

Isaacs

SBA

Mr

9

Lolwana

P

Dr

10 Mabena

AVR

Mr

0/2

11 Maboye

M

Ms

2/2

12 Magnus

G

Ms

13 Makhubu

RL

Ms

14 Mncube

P

Ms

0/0

1/1

15 Nkosi

DL

Mr

0/0

1/1

16 Ogude *

N

Prof.

17 Paterson

AW

Dr

18 Qhobela

M

Dr

19 Rajab

R

Ms

20 Ramgoolam

A

Mr

21 Reddy

G

Ms

22 Thobejane

E

Ms

23 Toni

M

Mr

24 Walters

S

Prof.

25 Williams

EAB

Mr

Remunerations Research

2/2

2/2

1/1

2/2
0/0

0/1
0/0

0/0

0/0

1/2
1/2

1/1
1/1

SAQA

1/2
0/1

1/1

2/2

0/0

1/2

1/2
0/0

0/2

0/0

2/2
1/2

0/0

2/2
2/2

1/1

0/0

2/2
0/2
2/2

0/0

0/2
0/1

2/2

0/0

0/2
1/2

1/1

2/2
2/2

0/2
0/0

2/2
1/2

1/2

1/2
0/0

0/0

2/2
1/2

* Appointment to the Authority announced on 13 December 2007

table 4: attendance at fourth authority meetings and committee meetings
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The representivity of the Fourth Authority as at 31 March 2008 is shown in Table 5.

Race

Gender

%

Male

%
20

20

8

8

Male

36

36

Female

32

32

Male

20

Female

20

White
Female

Black

African

Male

8

Female

4

Male

8

Female

8

Coloured

Indian

One member chooses not to declare race

4

4
100

table 5: representivity of the fourth authority members
as at 31 march 2008

Committees
The Third Authority had the following committees:
ͻ ǆĞĐƵƚŝǀĞ 



ͻ ƵĚŝƚ 





ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƌ<ĞŶDŽĐŬůĞƌ

ͻ dYƉƉĞĂůƐ 



ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƐDĂƌŝģƚƚĂǀĂŶZŽŽǇĞŶ





ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇWƌŽĨ͘^ŚŝƌůĞǇtĂůƚĞƌƐ

ͻ dY 







ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƐDĂƌŝģƚƚĂǀĂŶZŽŽǇĞŶ

ͻ &ŝŶĂŶĐĞ







ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƐŶĂďĞůsŝĞŝƌĂ

ͻ /Θ/d 







ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇƌĚŝWĂƚĞƌƐŽŶ

ͻ YΘ^ 







ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƐ^ƵĞDƺůůĞƌ

ͻ ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ 



ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇWƌŽĨ͘^ŚŝƌůĞǇtĂůƚĞƌƐ

ͻ ZĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ 



ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇWƌŽĨ͘^ŚŝƌůĞǇtĂůƚĞƌƐ



The Fourth Authority had the following committees:
ͻ ǆĞĐƵƚŝǀĞ 
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ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇWƌŽĨ͘^ŚŝƌůĞǇtĂůƚĞƌƐ

ͻ ƵĚŝƚ 







ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƌ<ĞŶDŽĐŬůĞƌ

ͻ dY 







ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƌĂŶEŬŽƐŝ

ͻ dYƉƉĞĂůƐ 



ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƌĂŶEŬŽƐŝ

ͻ &ŝŶĂŶĐĞ







ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƌDĂůĐŽůŵƌŽǁŶ

ͻ /Θ/d 







ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇƌĚŝWĂƚĞƌƐŽŶ

ͻ YΘ^ 







ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇDƌĚĚŝĞĚĞ<ůĞƌŬ

ͻ ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ 



ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇWƌŽĨ͘^ŚŝƌůĞǇtĂůƚĞƌƐ

ͻ ZĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ 



ĐŚĂŝƌĞĚďǇWƌŽĨ͘^ŚŝƌůĞǇtĂůƚĞƌƐ
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Executive Committee
During the year under review, the Executive Committee of the Third Authority met three times. Attendance by members of the
Executive Committee is shown in Table 6.

Authority members
1

Giba, L

1.1

De Klerk, E

2

Hall, K

2.1

Mabena, AVR

3

Isaacs, SBA (EO)

3.1

Samuels, J (Act. EO)

4

Mothiba, P

4.1

Toni, M

5

Müller, CS

5.1

Cooke, Prof. J

6

Paterson, Dr AW

7

Qhobela, Dr M

7.1

Vinjevold, P

8

Van Rooyen, M

8.1

Nkosi, D

9

Vieira, A

117th

118th

Annual Report

14-Jun-07

16-Aug-07

2007/08

A

A

A

a

0/3

a

D

A

a

0/3

D

2/3

a

0/1

D

D

D

3/3

A

A

A

0/3

a

D

D

a

D

1/3

A

2/3
a

D

D

A

D

(Chairperson)

0/1

A

A

2/3

A

a

Walters, Prof. S

10

116th
5-Apr-07

0/3

a

D

a

0/3

D

3/3

A

A

A

0/3

D

D

D

3/3

A: Main member absent
a: Alternate member absent
table 6: attendance by members of the executive committee of the third authority at meetings of the committee during
2007/08

The Executive Committee of the Fourth Authority met twice. Attendance by members is shown in Table 7.

Authority members

119th

120th

6-Feb-08

12-Mar-08

Annual Report 2007/08

1

Brown, M

D

D

2/2

2

De Klerk, E

D

A

1/2

3

Isaacs, SBA (EO)

D

D

2/2

4

Mabena, AVR

D

D

2/2

4.1

Arnesen, J

5

Maboye, MM

A

D

1/2

6

Nkosi, D

A

D

1/2

7

Paterson, Dr AW

A

A

0/2

8

Qhobela, Dr M

D

A

1/2

9

Thobejane, E

A

D

1/2

10

Walters, Prof. S (Chairperson)

D

D

2/2

0/0

A: Main member absent
table 7: attendance by members of the executive committee of the fourth authority at meetings of the committee during
2007/08
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The Audit Committee of the Third Authority met three times. Attendance of these
meetings is shown in Table 8.

Annual Report
Names

Initials

Title

2007/08

A Members
1 Adler

D

3/3

1 Brown

MJ

3/3

2 Mockler

K

3 Molalekoa

N

2/3

4 Nepfumbada

MP

2/3

5 Vieira

A

2/3

(Chairperson)

3/3

B Invitees

0/3

C Office of the Auditor-General

3/3

D External auditors contracted by the Auditor-General

3/3

E Representatives of the internal auditors

3/3

table 8: attendance by members of the audit committee of the third authority
at meetings of the committee during 2007/08

The Audit Committee of the Fourth Authority met once. Attendance of these meetings
is shown in Table 9.

Annual Report
Names

Initials

Title

2007/08

A Members
1 Adler

D

1/1

2 Baatjes

I

1/1

3 Brown

MJ

1/1

4 Mockler

K

5 Molalekoa

N

1/1

6 Nepfumbada

MP

0/1

7 Vieira

A

1/1

(Chairperson)

1/1

B Invitees

0/1

C Office of the Auditor-General

1/1

D External auditors contracted by the Auditor-General

1/1

E Representatives of the internal auditors

1/1

table 9: attendance by members of the audit committee of the fourth authority
at meetings of the committee during 2007/08
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The summarised Terms of Reference of the committees are as
follows:
Executive
ͻ ƉƉƌŽǀĞĐŚĂŶŐĞƐƚŽƚŚĞƐƚĂĨĨĐŽŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ͘
ͻ ZĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚƉŽůŝĐǇĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶƐƚŽƚŚĞƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ͘
ͻ ƉƉƌŽǀĞƐŽůĞƐŽƵƌĐŝŶŐŽƌƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĨŽƌƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ
in excess of R500 000.
ͻ ƉƉƌŽǀĞƚŚĞƌĞŐŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚƵŶŝƚ
standards.
ͻ DŽŶŝƚŽƌ ƚŚĞ ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ ŚĂŝƌƉĞƌƐŽŶ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ
Authority, its committees and management.
Audit
ͻ ƐƐŝƐƚ ƚŚĞ ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ ŝŶ ĨƵůĨŝůůŝŶŐ ŝƚƐ ŽǀĞƌƐŝŐŚƚ
responsibilities.
ͻ ZĞǀŝĞǁƚŚĞĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗
- financial reporting process
- system of internal control
- system to manage risks
- governance processes
- fraud prevention, detection and reporting policies and
procedures
- internal and external audit process
- process for monitoring compliance with laws,
regulations and the Code of Ethics
- Annual Report, which includes the annual financial
statements
SAQA Education and Training Quality Assurance
ͻ ZĞǀŝĞǁƚŚĞdYůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉĞĂŶĚƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐƚŽ
ensure that providers can be accredited.
ͻ ŶƐƵƌĞƚŚĂƚƚŚĞƉŽůŝĐǇĂŶĚŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ
are in accordance with SAQA policy.
ͻ DŽŶŝƚŽƌĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐĨŽƌdYĂĐĐƌĞĚŝƚĂƚŝŽŶ͘
ͻ ZĞǀŝĞǁƚŚĞƋƵĂůŝƚǇĂƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞŵŽĚĞůƚŚĂƚŝƐŝŵƉůŝĐŝƚŝŶƚŚĞ
ETQA regulations and make recommendations on quality
management systems.
ͻ DŽŶŝƚŽƌĂŶĚĂƵĚŝƚƚŚĞƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞŽĨdYƐ͘
ͻ ZĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ ƚŚĞ ĚĞƌĞŐŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ ŽĨ ĂŶ dY ŝĨ ŝƚ ŝƐ ŶŽƚ
compliant with the ETQA regulations.
ETQA Appeals
ͻ ZƵůĞǁŚĞƚŚĞƌƚŚĞƉƉĞĂůƐŽŵŵŝƚƚĞĞŚĂƐƚŚĞũƵƌŝƐĚŝĐƚŝŽŶ
to hear an appeal.
ͻ DŽŶŝƚŽƌƚŚĞŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚŽĨƚŚĞĂƉƉĞĂůƐƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͘
ͻ ZƵůĞ ŽŶ ĂƉƉĞĂůƐ ĂŶĚ ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞ ƚŚĞƐĞ ƌƵůŝŶŐƐ ƚŽ ƚŚĞ
parties involved.
Finance
ͻ ZĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ ĂŶĚ ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ ƚŽ ƚŚĞ
Authority.
ͻ ZĞǀŝĞǁĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞĂŐĂŝŶƐƚďƵĚŐĞƚƐ͘
ͻ ZĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ ƚŚĞ ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů ŽĨ ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ ďƵĚŐĞƚƐ ƚŽ ƚŚĞ
Authority.
ͻ ƉƉƌŽǀĞǀŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐŽǀĞƌZϮϱϬϬϬϬĂŶĚĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐŽǀĞƌ
R500 000.
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Information and Information Technology
ͻ ZĞǀŝĞǁ Ăůů ŽĨ ^Y͛Ɛ /ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ ĂŶĚ /d ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ ĂŶĚ
procedures, especially in the area of data security and
disaster recovery, for audit compliance, effectiveness and
efficiency.
ͻ ĞǀĞůŽƉĂŶĚŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĂĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůŵŽĚĞůĨŽƌƚŚĞůŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵ
sustainability of the NQF databases.
ͻ DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ ĂŶǇ ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚĞĚ ŝŶƚŽ ƚŚĞ ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů
options for the NLRD and other information of which SAQA
is the custodian, and ensure that ongoing advocacy for the
NLRD is undertaken.
ͻ ŶƐƵƌĞƚŚĂƚ^YĐŽŵƉůŝĞƐǁŝƚŚƚŚĞWƌŽŵŽƚŝŽŶŽĨĐĐĞƐƐ
to Information Act, the Protection of Privacy Act and the
Electronic Communications and Transactions Act.
ͻ ZĞǀŝĞǁƚŚĞ/Θ/dŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉĞ͕ŝŶŽƌĚĞƌƚŽĂĚǀŝƐĞ
SAQA about its IT architecture, future planning, purchases
and tenders relating to information and IT, as well as about
I & IT staffing and capacity issues.
ͻ ŶƐƵƌĞƚŚĞĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞĂŶĚĞĨĨŝĐŝĞŶƚƵƐĞĂŶĚĐŽŵƉĂƚŝďŝůŝƚǇŽĨ
the NQF’s information resources.
SAQA Qualifications and Standards
ͻ DŽŶŝƚŽƌĂůůƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐƚŽĞŶƐƵƌĞƚŚĂƚ͗
- they meet the objectives of the NQF.
- strategic areas are covered and gaps identified, with
particular reference to national strategies for human
resources and skills development.
Remuneration
ͻ ƉƉŽŝŶƚ ƚŚĞ ĞƉƵƚǇ ǆĞĐƵƚŝǀĞ KĨĨŝĐĞƌ ĂŶĚ ,ĞĂĚƐ ŽĨ
Directorates and determine their remuneration.
ͻ DĂŬĞ ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶƐ ƚŽ ƚŚĞ ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ ŽŶ ƚŚĞ
appointment and conditions of service of the Executive
Officer.
Research
ͻ WƌŽǀŝĚĞŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞĨŽƌƚŚĞƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚĂŐĞŶĚĂǁŝƚŚŝŶƚŚĞ
organisation.
ͻ /ŶƚĞƌƌŽŐĂƚĞĂŶĚƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚƚŚĞƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚĂŐĞŶĚĂ͕
including the research focus for a particular cycle/financial
year.
ͻ ůĂƌŝĨǇƚŚĞƉƵƌƉŽƐĞŽĨƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚǁŝƚŚŝŶƚŚĞŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ
and make recommendations to the Authority in this
regard.
ͻ DŽŶŝƚŽƌĂŶĚĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ͘
ͻ ZĞǀŝĞǁĂŶĚƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚƉŽůŝĐǇŐŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ
activities.
ͻ DŽŶŝƚŽƌƐƚƵĚŝĞƐŽĨĂƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐŶĂƚƵƌĞ͘
ͻ ZĞǀŝĞǁĂŶĚŵĂŬĞƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶƐŝŶƌĞŐĂƌĚƚŽƚŚĞ
appropriate allocation of the research budget.
ͻ ŶŐĂŐĞǁŝƚŚƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚƌĞƉŽƌƚƐ͘
Evaluation of the performance of committees
The Authority assesses the duties of all committees and
evaluates their performance annually. The Chairpersons of the
Authority and the committees also evaluate each individual
member’s performance annually.
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Management Committees
Management operates through (i) an Executive Management
Committee and (ii) a Management Committee.

structures and staff members. The members of the Authority
believe that the ethical standards and the criteria included in
its Code of Ethics are being met.

(i) The Executive Management Committee comprises the
Executive Officer (on request or when he or she wishes to
attend), the Deputy Executive Officer, the eight Heads of
Directorate and the Deputy Director: Secretariat.

Remuneration
The remuneration philosophy of SAQA is to employ people
with the appropriate ethical attitude and the required skills, or
who can acquire these skills reasonably quickly. They are paid
market-related remuneration, pitched at the 50th percentile.
Surveys and benchmarks are frequently conducted to align the
organisation with the market and the Public Service to ensure
competitiveness and skills retention.

(ii) The Management Committee consists of members of the
Executive Management Committee and the remaining
Deputy Directors.
The Management Committee formulates strategy and develops
policy for consideration by the Authority and ensures that
appropriate internal policies, procedures and financial controls
are developed and maintained. The Executive Management
Committee is responsible for implementation and the day-today operations of the organisation. It also ensures adherence
to legislation, regulations and procedures.
Internal audit
Owing to the nature and size of the staff, the Authority
considers it inappropriate to establish an in-house internal
audit function. However, the Audit Committee continually
monitors the need for the establishment of such a function and
also reviews the present function. The internal audit function
is currently outsourced to a firm of auditors.
Professional advice
Members of the Authority are entitled to seek professional
advice about the affairs of the Authority at the Authority’s
expense, provided that they follow the procedures laid down
by the Authority.
Equity development and employee participation
The Authority is committed to an equity development policy,
which is an integral component of its strategic plan.
Members of staff at all levels are encouraged to participate in
education and training programmes in order to achieve their
highest potential.
The Authority believes that the equity development policy
and education and training initiatives will, together, enable
individuals of ability and application to pursue rewarding
careers at SAQA, regardless of race, gender, religious persuasion
or extent of disability.
The policies and procedures developed at SAQA undergo an
extensive consultation process with staff and the recognised
organised labour organisations at SAQA, i.e. the South African
Democratic Teachers’ Union (SADTU) and the SAQA Staff
Association.

Sustainability
Management policies and practices are designed to ensure
appropriate responses to the transformation, ethical, safety,
health and environmental issues. The Authority ensures
that these issues are given due weight in the standards and
qualifications it registers on the NQF. Through the Authority’s
quality assurance activities, it ensures that providers of
education and training deliver according to those standards.
The Authority has adopted an HIV/Aids strategic plan and
policies to address and manage the impact, actual and
potential, of the disease on SAQA.
Formal procurement policies that take into account the need
for black economic empowerment are applied.
Human capital
The employment equity profile as at 31 March 2008 appears
on page 36 of this report.
This table represents the composition of staff by race, gender
and job level, and indicates the extent to which SAQA achieved
the employment equity target by the end of March 2008.
This target is based on paragraph 8.4.2 of the Code of Good
Practice of the Employment Equity Act (Act No. 55 of 1998),
which suggests that the following factors should be considered
when developing numerical goals:
ͻ ƵŶĚĞƌͲƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶŽĨĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͕ŝ͘Ğ͘ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚƐƚĂĨĨŝŶŐ
ͻ ƚŚĞƉŽŽůŽĨƐƵŝƚĂďůǇƋƵĂůŝĨŝĞĚƉĞƌƐŽŶƐ͕ŝ͘Ğ͘ƚŚŽƐĞǁŚŽŚĂǀĞ
a level of education at secondary and higher
ͻ ƚŚĞĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚƚƵƌŶŽǀĞƌŽĨĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ
The goals take into account:
ͻ ƚŚĞ ŝŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ ŽĨ ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ ĂƐ ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ ŝŶ ƚŚĞ ŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ
Equity Act
ͻ ƚŚĞĞƋƵĂůǁĞŝŐŚƚŝŶŐŽĨĞĂĐŚŽĨƚŚĞƐĞĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ
ͻ ƚŚĞĨůĞǆŝďŝůŝƚǇĂŶĚŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƚŝŽŶĂůŝŶƚĞƌƉƌĞƚĂƚŝŽŶĐĂƚĞƌĞĚĨŽƌ
in the Employment Equity Act

Code of Ethics
The Authority has adopted a Code of Ethics applicable to
members of the Authority, persons serving on Authority
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responsibility statement
Introduction
The Authority sets strategy and policy. Management formulates strategy and makes policy proposals for consideration by the Authority.
Management also implements the decisions made by the Authority and maintains systems of internal control as well as accounting
and information systems. The Authority monitors the performance of management.
Financial statements
The Authority is responsible for ensuring that the Annual Report, which includes the annual financial statements, fairly presents
the state of affairs of SAQA, its business, its financial results, its performance against its predetermined objectives and its financial
position as at the end of the financial year, in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) 1999 (Act No. 1
of 1999).
In so doing, the Authority ensures that the financial statements are prepared on the basis of appropriate accounting policies,
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
The financial statements set out on pages 48 to 85 meet the above criteria and were approved by the Authority on 25 June 2008 and
signed on its behalf by the Chairperson and the Executive Officer.
Accounting records and internal control
The Authority is responsible for ensuring that adequate accounting records, information systems and an effective system of internal
control are maintained and implemented by management. The internal financial controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded, that the risks of error, fraud and loss are reduced in a cost-effective manner, and that
transactions are executed and recorded in accordance with the Authority’s policies and procedures. These controls are implemented
by trained, skilled staff with clearly defined lines of accountability and appropriate segregation of duties. The controls include a
comprehensive budgeting and reporting system, operating within strict deadlines and an appropriate control framework.
Risk management
The Authority is responsible for the process of risk management and for establishing risk and control policies and communicating
them throughout the organisation.
The Authority, through the Audit Committee, using the internal auditors, ensures that there is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks facing the organisation.
An effective system is in place to ensure that risks are managed in a way that provides reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that
they are mitigated to the extent considered acceptable.
This process was in place for the year under review and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Report and financial
statements.
Disaster management
The Authority is responsible for ensuring that there is a documented and tested process in place that will allow the organisation to
continue its critical business processes in the event of a disaster impacting on its activities.
Internal audit
The Authority is responsible for ensuring that an internal audit function is in operation. This function operates unimpeded and
independently from operational management and has unrestricted access to the Audit Committee. It appraises, evaluates and,
when necessary, recommends improvements in the system of internal control and accounting practices. Its work includes conducting
operational, financial and specific audits and liaising with the external auditors.
Corporate Governance
SAQA adheres to the principles of good corporate governance in line with the recommendations of the King II report.

Prof. S Walters
SAQA Chairperson
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SBA Isaacs
Executive Officer
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report of the audit committee
Introduction
The Audit Committee comprises non-executive members, one of whom is a member
of the Authority. The Executive Officer and representatives of the external and
internal auditors also attend meetings by invitation. The external and internal auditors
hold regular meetings separate with the Audit Committee, without the presence of
management. The representatives of both the internal and external auditors have
unrestricted access to the Audit Committee and its Chairperson.
Audit Committee’s responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from
Section 38 (1)(a) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee
also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in accordance
with the Audit Committee Charter, regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter
and discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.
The main responsibilities of the committee are set out on page 45. In addition,
the committee performs the role of a Risk Management Committee. It monitors
compliance with the risk management strategy through periodic risk reports by
management. The minutes of the committee meetings are made available to all
members of the Authority.
The effectiveness of internal control
The system of internal control is adequate and has been effective during the year
under review. The various reports of the internal auditors, the audit report on the
annual financial statements and the management letter of the Auditor-General have
not cited any significant or material non-compliance with prescribed policies and
procedures. The risk assessment for the Authority was revised during the year under
review and SAQA’s governance processes were reviewed.
Management quarterly reports
The committee is satisfied with the content and quality of the quarterly reports
prepared and issued by the accounting officer on behalf of the Authority during the
year under review, as required by the PFMA.
Evaluation of financial statements
The Audit Committee:
ͻ ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚĂŶĚĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚǁŝƚŚƚŚĞƵĚŝƚŽƌͲ'ĞŶĞƌĂůĂŶĚƚŚĞĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐŽĨĨŝĐĞƌƚŚĞ
audited annual financial statements to be included in the Annual Report
ͻ ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚƚŚĞƵĚŝƚŽƌͲ'ĞŶĞƌĂů͛ƐŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚůĞƚƚĞƌĂŶĚŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛ƐƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ
ͻ ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚĐŚĂŶŐĞƐŝŶĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐĂŶĚƉƌĂĐƚŝĐĞƐ
ͻ ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐƌĞƐƵůƚŝŶŐĨƌŽŵƚŚĞĂƵĚŝƚ
ͻ ĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞĚƚŚĞĂŶŶƵĂůĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐĂŶĚƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚƚŚĂƚƚŚĞǇďĞ 
adopted

K G Mockler
Chairperson: Audit Committee
31 July 2008
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report of the auditor-general
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

OF THE SOUTH AFRICAN QUALIFICATIONS AUTHORITY (SAQA)

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2008

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s

Report on the financial statements

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in

Introduction

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

the South African Qualifications Authority which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2008,

An audit also includes evaluating the:

statement of financial performance, statement of changes in

ͻ ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞŶĞƐƐŽĨĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐƵƐĞĚ

net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended,

ͻ ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞŶĞƐƐ ŽĨ ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐ ŵĂĚĞ ďǇ

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

management

explanatory notes, as set out on pages 52 to 85.

ͻ ŽǀĞƌĂůůƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘

Responsibility of the accounting authority for the financial

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient

statements

and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

Basis of accounting

with the basis of accounting determined by National Treasury,

The public entity’s policy is to prepare financial statements on

as set out in accounting policy note 1.1 to the financial

the basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury,

statements and in the manner required by the Public Finance

as set out in accounting policy note 1.1 to the financial

Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). This

statements.

responsibility includes:
ͻ ĚĞƐŝŐŶŝŶŐ͕ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚŝŶŐĂŶĚŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐŝŶƚĞƌŶĂůĐŽŶƚƌŽů

Opinion

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial

In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all

statements that are free from material misstatement,

material respects, the financial position of the South African

whether due to fraud or error

Qualifications Authority as at 31 March 2008 and its financial

ͻ ƐĞůĞĐƚŝŶŐĂŶĚĂƉƉůǇŝŶŐĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ

performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in

ͻ ŵĂŬŝŶŐ ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐ ƚŚĂƚ ĂƌĞ ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ ŝŶ ƚŚĞ

accordance with the basis of accounting determined by the

circumstances.

National Treasury of South Africa as set out in note 1.1 to
the financial statements and in the manner required by the

Responsibility of the Auditor-General

PFMA.

As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic
of South Africa, 1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit

Other matters

Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)] and section 13 of the South

Without qualifying my audit opinion, I draw attention to the

African Qualifications Authority Act, 1995 (Act No. 58 of 1995),

following matter that relates to my responsibilities in the audit

my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

of the financial statements:

statements based on my audit.
Matters of governance
I conducted my audit in accordance with the International

The PFMA tasks the accounting authority with a number of

Standards on Auditing and General Notice 616 of 2008, issued

responsibilities concerning financial and risk management

in Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008. Those

and internal control. Fundamental to achieving this is the

standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and

implementation of certain key governance responsibilities,

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

which I have assessed as follows:

whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
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Other reporting responsibilites
Matters of governance

Yes

No
Reporting on performance information

Audit committee

I have reviewed the performance information as set out on
pages 88 to 113.
ͻ The public entity has an audit

D

committee.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority
The accounting authority has additional responsibilities as
required by section 55(2)(a) of the PFMA to ensure that the

ͻ The audit committee operates in

annual report and audited financial statements fairly present

accordance with approved written terms

D

of reference.

the performance against predetermined objectives of the
public entity.

ͻ The audit committee substantially

Responsibility of the Auditor-General

fulfilled its responsibilities for the year,
as set out in section 77 of the PFMA and

D

I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13
of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) read with

Treasury Regulation 3.1.10/27.1.8.

General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette No.

Internal audit

31057 of 15 May 2008.

ͻ The public entity had an internal audit

In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing

function in operation throughout the

D

procedures of an audit nature to obtain sufficient appropriate
evidence about the performance information and related

financial year.

systems, processes and procedures. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement.
ͻ The internal audit function operates in
terms of an approved internal audit plan.

D

Audit findings (performance information)
I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to report that no significant findings have been

ͻ The internal audit function substantially
fulfilled its responsibilities for the
year, as set out in Treasury Regulation

identified as a result of my review.

D
Appreciation

3.2/27.2.

The assistance rendered by the staff of the South African
Qualifications Authority during the audit is sincerely

Other matters of governance

appreciated.
The

annual

financial

statements

were

submitted for audit as per the legislated

D

deadlines (section 55 of the PFMA).
Pretoria
The financial statements submitted for audit
were not subject to any material amendments

21 July 2008

D

resulting from the audit.
No significant difficulties were experienced
during the audit concerning delays or the
unavailability of expected information and/or

D

the unavailability of senior management.
The prior year's external audit recommendations

have

been

substantially

D

implemented.
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accounting authority report
Nature of Entity
The Authority is a public enterprise domiciled in South Africa.
Nature of Entity’s Operations
The nature of the entity’s operations is set out in The South African Qualifications
Authority Act No. 58 of 1995, and is to oversee the development and implementation
of the National Qualifications Framework.
Principal Activities
ͻ WƌŽǀŝĚĞůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉĂŶĚƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůĞǆƉĞƌƚŝƐĞƚŽĞŶƐƵƌĞƚŚĂƚŚŝŐŚͲƋƵĂůŝƚǇ͕ŶĂƚŝŽŶĂůůǇ
relevant and internationally comparable unit standards and qualifications are
registered on the NQF.
ͻ WƌŽǀŝĚĞůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉƚŚƌŽƵŐŚƐǇƐƚĞŵĂƚŝĐŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐĂŶĚĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌĐŽŶƚŝŶƵŽƵƐ
quality improvement of education and training.
ͻ DĂŝŶƚĂŝŶƚŚĞE>ZĂƐƚŚĞŬĞǇŶĂƚŝŽŶĂůƐŽƵƌĐĞŽĨŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌŚƵŵĂŶƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ
development in South Africa.
ͻ DĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ ĂŶĚ ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ Y ĂƐ ƚŚĞ ŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƚŝŽŶ ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ ĐĞŶƚƌĞ ĨŽƌ
foreign and domestic learning and qualifications.
ͻ ZĞƐĞĂƌĐŚĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶĂŶĚƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͘
Donors / Projects
Project support continued to play a role in the realisation of SAQA’s achievements. The
members are grateful for the contributions to the Authority by the project partners
for the year.
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Deferred income – Revenue items

Refundable
to donor /
1 April 2007 adjustments Current Year Current Year

R

R

31 March
2008

Income

Expenditure
/ Release

Balance

R

R

R

Balance
reflected in
Accounts
Payable –
Other

Balance
reflected in
Deferred
Income

31 March
2008

31 March
2008

R

R

Donors
European Union

337,644

7,583

0

Joint Education Trust (DANIDA)

369,931
707,575

122,671
130,253

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Projects
Council on Higher Education
Services SETA
HWSETA
SASSETA
ISETT SETA
ETDP SETA
TETA
LGSETA
INSETA
W&R SETA

0
0
(122,999)
0
315,007
0
2,321,543
500,000
164,200
0

0

0

345,227

0

(247,260)
(247,260)

0
0

0
345,227

0
0

648,000
1,237,500
811,235
130,000
200,000
937,500
300,000
0
0
500,000

(343,643)
0
(545,011)
(60,000)
(293,348)
(774,252)
(1,232,756)
(360,251)
(74,382)
(227,537)

304,357
1,237,500
143,225
70,000
221,659
163,248
1,388,787
139,749
89,818
272,463

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

304,357
1,237,500
143,225
70,000
221,659
163,248
1,388,787
139,749
89,818
272,463

(100,000)
(63,395)

0
186,605

0
0

0
186,605

Department of Environmental Affairs
& Tourism
Department of Sports & Recreation

0
0

0
0

100,000
250,000

Department of Public Service &
Administration

0

0

100,000

0

100,000

0

100,000

Forest Industries Education and
Training Authority
CHIETA
City & Guilds

0
0
0

0
0
0

406,000
150,000
400,000

0
0
0

406,000
150,000
400,000

0
0
0

406,000
150,000
400,000

38,719

0

0

0

0

0

3,216,470

0

6,170,235

(4,113,294)

5,273,411

0

5,273,411

3,924,045

130,253

6,170,235

(4,360,554)

5,273,411

345,227

5,273,411

DIDTETA
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Accrued interest held
Current year
Current year
1 April 2007
R
281,774
281,774

European Union

Interest
R

Release
R
65,282
65,282

0
0

31 March 2008
R
347,057
347,057

Deferred income – Capital items
Current year
Current year

Canadian International Development Agency
Department of Education
European Union
Joint Education Trust (DANIDA)

1 April 2007
R
7,467,275
8,939,757
4,157,975
6,245
20,571,252

Expenditure
R
0
1,676,825
0
1,676,825

Release
R
(1,866,818)
(2,629,628)
(421,004)
(4,684)
(4,922,134)

31 March 2008
R
5,600,457
7,986,954
3,736,971
1,561
17,325,943

Going concern
The Authority believes that SAQA will continue to be a going concern for the financial
year ahead. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements. In arriving at this view, the Authority took into account the
current sound financial position and the ongoing commitment of the Department of
Education to fund the Authority’s activities.
Post-balance-sheet event
No material events have occurred since the end of the financial year to the date of
this report.
Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets
There were no changes in the nature of property, plant and equipment or in the
policy regarding their use during the year. The estimated useful lifetime of the central
airconditioning system was, however, revised in the 2006/07 financial year. Previously,
the central airconditioning system was reflected as part of Land and Buildings and
thus written off over a useful life of 20 years. Management reviewed this estimate
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and revised the estimated useful lifetime upon purchase to 10 years. The book value
at the beginning of the 2006/07 financial year for this asset was R1,457,300.59, and it
had a remaining estimated useful lifetime of seven years.
The estimated useful life of the NLRD software was changed from two years to
four years during 2007. As this was a change in accounting estimate, the figures for
2006/07 were not amended. The remaining useful life of the NLRD software as at 31
March 2008 is three years.
Durring the 2007/08 financial year, SAQA began construction of a new parking garage.
The costs incurred to date have been capitalised to fixed assets. No depreciation has
been provided as the parking garage has not yet been completed and brought into
use. It is estimated that the parking garage will be completed by the end of May 2008
at a further cost of R478,238.66.
Revenue from operating leases has been recognised in accordance with IAS 17Leases.
Capital expenditure for the year amounted to R 7,035,916 (2007: R 3,261,073). Details
are contained in Notes 4 and 5 to the financial statements.
Remuneration
The remuneration of the Chairperson is determined by the Minister of Education,
with the concurrence of the Minister of Finance. A portion of the remuneration of
Professor Shirley Walters is paid to her employer, the University of the Western Cape.
Allowances paid to other non-executive members of the Authority are determined by
the Authority.
Remuneration and allowances paid to members of the Authority for the year under
review were as follows.

saqa annual report 2007/2008

55

Attendance

Other services

Travel costs

TOTAL

fees
Paid to

Paid to

Paid to

employer

member

member

Executive
Mr SBA Isaacs (See note 3 of AFS for split)

861,741

861,741

Non-Executive
Prof. S Walters – Chairperson of Third and Fourth
Authority
Third Authority
Prof. John Cooke
Mr DL Nkosi
Mr E de Klerk
Ms R Rajab
Ms S Nomvete
Ms A Vieira
Ms M van Rooyen
Mr M Toni
Fourth Authority
Prof. PJ Ankiewics
Mr J Arnesen
Mr I Baatjes
Mr M Brown
Mr E de Klerk
Mr V Mabena
Ms M Maboye
Mr DL Nkosi
Ms R Rajab
Ms G Reddy
Mr M Toni

0

60,127

120,274

1,299

181,700

0
0
0
11,106
9,255
23,349
0
11,106

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

3,271
3,156
1,594
3,014
1,868
403
3,217
1,024

3,271
3,156
1,594
14,120
11,123
23,752
3,217
12,130

0
0
0
9,255
0
0
0
0
3,702
0
1,851
69,624

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
60,127

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
982,015

2,463
1,497
296
254
3,236
1,259
799
631
1,005
2,467
171
32,922

2,463
1,497
296
9,509
3,236
1,259
799
631
4,707
2,467
2,022
1,144,688

In addition, Note 3 to the financial statements discloses emoluments paid to senior management of the Authority during the period 1 April
2007 to 31 March 2008.
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Financial statements
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting standards as set
out in note 1.1 to the financial statements.
Auditors
The Auditor-General will continue in office as external auditor in accordance with
Section 13(1) of the South African Qualifications Authority Act. The Auditor-General
expresses an opinion on the financial statements. The audit has been performed in
terms of Section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act 1996, read
with Sections 4 and 20 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and Section
13(1) of the South African Qualifications Authority Act 1995 (Act No. 58 of 1995). The
audit is conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Fair presentation
The financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of SAQA at 31 March 2008,
the results of its operations, and cash flow information for the year then ended. These
were signed by the Chairperson and the Executive Officer on behalf of the Authority
on 25 June 2008.
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statement of financial performance
for the year ended 31 march 2008

Notes

2008

2007

R

R

Revenue

2

59,986,116

60,720,311

Less: operating expenses

3

64,457,942

60,088,980

(4,471,826)

631,331

Financial Income – Interest

3,110,873

2,996,572

(Deficit)/surplus for the year

(1,360,952)

3,627,903

58

saqa annual report 2007/2008

statement of financial position
as at 31 march 2008

Assets

Notes

Non-current assets

2008

2007

R

R
23,551,662

21,510,944

Property, plant and equipment

4

21,525,466

20,571,589

Intangible assets

5

1,954,671

894,432

71,524

44,923

Operating lease receivable
Current assets

31,257,110

32,610,928

Inventories

6

112,974

101,455

Trade and other receivables

7

1,011,260

1,170,545

284,043

253,885

29,848,833

31,085,043

54,808,772

54,121,872

21,940,695

23,301,648

21,940,695

23,301,648

13,661,402

13,990,291

19,206,674

16,829,934

Prepaid expenses
Cash and cash equivalents

8

TOTAL ASSETS
Net assets and liabilities
Net assets
Accumulated surplus
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income – Long-term assets

9

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

10

8,299,606

6,184,482

Deferred income

9

10,907,068

10,645,452

54,808,772

54,121,872

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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statement of changes in net assets
for the year ended 31 march 2008

Accumulated surplus
Notes

Balance at 31 March 2006
Surplus for the year

R

19,673,745
3,627,903

Balance at 31 March 2007

23,301,648

Deficit for the year

(1,360,952)

Balance at 31 March 2008

21,940,695
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cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 march 2008

2008
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash generated from/(utilised by) operations

Notes
11

2007

R

R
5,784,490
2,673,617

(522,318)
(3,518,890)

35,691,000
6,357,735
18,167,898
(57,543,016)

38,991,000
3,652,119
9,139,831
(55,301,840)

Interest received

3,110,873

2,996,572

Cash outflow from investing activities
Acquisition of assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

(7,020,700)

(3,253,719)

15,216
(5,769,515)
(1,266,400)

7,354
(2,335,798)
(925,275)

(1,236,210)
31,085,043

(3,776,037)
34,861,080

29,848,833

31,085,043

Government grant received
Project funding received
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees

4
5

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
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notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 march 2008

The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the SAQA Authority on 27 June 2008.
1. Accounting Policies
1.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the South African Statements of
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP), including any interpretations of such statements
issued by the Accounting Practices Board, with the effective Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board replacing the equivalent
GAAP Statement as follows:
Standard of GRAP

Replaced statement of GAAP

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial

AC101: Presentation of financial

statements

statements

GRAP 2: Cash flow statements

AC118: Cash flow statements

GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes

AC103: Accounting policies, changes in

in accounting estimates and errors

accounting estimates and errors

Currently the recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP statements
do not differ or result in material differences in items presented and disclosed in the financial
statements. The implementation of GRAP 1, 2 and 3 has resulted in the following changes in the
presentation of the financial statements:
1.1.1
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Terminology differences:
Standard of GRAP

Replaced statement of GAAP

Statement of financial performance

Income statement

Statement of financial position

Balance sheet

Statement of changes in net assets

Statement of changes in equity

Net assets

Equity

Surplus/deficit

Profit/loss

Accumulated surplus/deficit

Retained earnings

Contributions from owners

Share capital

Distributions to owners

Dividends
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1.1.2. The cash flow statement can only be prepared in accordance with the direct method.
1.1.3. Specific information has been presented separately on the statement of financial
position, such as:










ͻ ƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐĨƌŽŵŶŽŶͲĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ͕ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐƚĂǆĞƐĂŶĚƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ











ͻ ƚĂǆĞƐĂŶĚƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐƉĂǇĂďůĞ











ͻ ƚƌĂĚĞĂŶĚŽƚŚĞƌƉĂǇĂďůĞƐĨƌŽŵŶŽŶͲĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘

1.1.4. The amount and nature of any restrictions on cash balances is required.
Paragraphs 11 - 15 of GRAP 1 have not been implemented because the local and
international budget reporting standard is not effective for the 2007/08 financial year.
Although the inclusion of budget information would enhance the usefulness of the
financial statements, non-disclosure will not affect their objective.
The following statements and interpretations are not yet effective and have not been
applied in preparing the financial statements of SAQA. The effect of the changes to the
financial statements of SAQA, if any, once implemented, will not be material. The effective
date for implementation of the GRAP statements is 1 April 2009.










ͻ 'ZWϰdŚĞĞĨĨĞĐƚƐŽĨĐŚĂŶŐĞƐŝŶĨŽƌĞŝŐŶĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƌĂƚĞƐ











ͻ 'ZWϱŽƌƌŽǁŝŶŐĐŽƐƚƐ











ͻ 'ZWϲŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞĚĂŶĚƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ 'ZWϳ/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐŝŶĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞƐʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ 'ZWϴ/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƐŝŶ:ŽŝŶƚǀĞŶƚƵƌĞƐʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ 'ZWϵZĞǀĞŶƵĞĨƌŽŵĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ











ͻ 'ZWϭϬ&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐŝŶŚǇƉĞƌŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶĞƌǇĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĞƐʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ 'ZWϭϭŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ 'ZWϭϮ/ŶǀĞŶƚŽƌŝĞƐ











ͻ 'ZWϭϯ>ĞĂƐĞƐ











ͻ 'ZWϭϰǀĞŶƚƐĂĨƚĞƌƚŚĞƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐĚĂƚĞ











ͻ 'ZWϭϲ/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚWƌŽƉĞƌƚǇʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ 'ZWϭϳWƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͕ƉůĂŶƚĂŶĚĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ
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ͻ 'ZWϭϴ^ĞŐŵĞŶƚƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ 'ZWϭϵWƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ͕ĐŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶƚůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐĂŶĚĐŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶƚĂƐƐĞƚƐ











ͻ 'ZWϮϯZĞǀĞŶƵĞĨƌŽŵŶŽŶͲĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ 'ZWϮϰWƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶŽĨďƵĚŐĞƚŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶŝŶĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ











ͻ 'ZWϭϬϬEŽŶͲĐƵƌƌĞŶƚĂƐƐĞƚƐŚĞůĚĨŽƌƐĂůĞĂŶĚĚŝƐĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ











ͻ 'ZWϭϬϭŐƌŝĐƵůƚƵƌĞʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ 'ZWϭϬϮ/ŶƚĂŶŐŝďůĞĂƐƐĞƚƐ











ͻ /W^^ϮϮŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞŽĨĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĂďŽƵƚƚŚĞŐĞŶĞƌĂůŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚƐĞĐƚŽƌ











ͻ /&Z/ϴ;ϰϰϬͿ^ĐŽƉĞŽĨ/&Z^ϮƐŚĂƌĞͲďĂƐĞĚƉĂǇŵĞŶƚʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ /&Z/ϵ;ϰϰϭͿZĞĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚŽĨĞŵďĞĚĚĞĚĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐʹŶŽŝŵƉĂĐƚ











ͻ /&Z/ϭϭ;ϰϰϯͿ/&Z^ϮŐƌŽƵƉĂŶĚƚƌĞĂƐƵƌǇƐŚĂƌĞƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ











ͻ /&Z/ϭϮ;ϰϰϰͿ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞĐŽŶĐĞƐƐŝŽŶĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐʹŶŽƚĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments at fair value, as disclosed in the notes below.
The financial statements are presented in South African Rand.

1.2

Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Where parts of an item of property, plant or equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items.
Costs include expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
In the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, SAQA recognises the cost of replacing
part of such an item when the cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefit
embodied within the item will flow to SAQA and the cost can be measured reliably. All other costs
are recognised in the statement of financial performance when incurred.
The Authority regularly maintains the property, plant and equipment in such a way that it does not
incur any further costs for restoration expenses.
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Depreciation is charged to the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not
depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings

20 years

Central airconditioning system

10 years

Computer equipment

3 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

NLRD software and hardware

7 years

Office furniture and equipment

5 years

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values are re-assessed annually.

1.3

Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised at cost if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the Authority. Amortisation is charged on a systematic basis over the estimated useful lives of the
intangible assets.
The estimated useful life of intangible assets in respect of software developed is five years.
Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only if it increases the future
benefits embodied in the asset to which it relates. The carrying amounts are reviewed at financial
position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. The estimated useful
lives and residual values are re-assessed annually.

1.4

Inventories
Inventories which consist of stationery are carried at either cost or net realisable value, whichever
is lower. The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their existing location and condition, and is determined using the first-in, firstout method. Obsolete, redundant and slow-moving inventory is identified on a regular basis and
written down to its estimated net realisable value.

1.5

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method less impairment losses.
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1.6

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the balance on the current and call investment accounts and
the cash on hand.

1.7

Provisions
Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when SAQA has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate which reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived from the
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting the obligation under the contract.
A provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is
established, SAQA recognises any impairment loss on the asset associated with the contract.

1.8

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at fair value.

1.9

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.
The provisions for employee entitlements to wages, salaries, annual and sick leave represent the
amount that SAQA has a present obligation to pay as a result of employees’ services provided to the
date of the statement of financial position. The provisions have been calculated at undiscounted
amounts on current wage and salary rates.
Defined contribution plans
Contributions are charged against income as incurred.

1.10

Revenue
NLRD services
Verification fees of learner achievements are recognised when they become receivable.
Commissioned data analyses fee income is recognised upon completion of the analysis.
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Support for the Information Administrator Learnerships is recognised in the period during which
the learnerships are undertaken.
Sales of books and CDs with published information are recognised on date of sale.
Evaluation fees
Evaluation fees are recognised when the evaluation reports are delivered.
Government, donor and project grants
Any government and international donor grant is initially recognised in the statement of financial
position as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to it
will be complied with and that the grant will be received.
Grants for the purpose of giving immediate financial support with no future-related costs
are recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period in which they become
receivable. Grants that compensate for the cost of an item of property, plant or equipment are
recognised in the statement of financial performance on a systematic basis over the useful life of
the item.
Grants that compensate the entity for expenses or losses incurred are recognised as revenue in
the statement of financial performance on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses or losses are incurred.
Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total
rental income.
1.11

Finance income
Interest is recognised on a time-proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and
the effective rate over the period to maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue
to the entity.

1.12

Expenses
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of financial performance
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
statement of financial performance as an integral part of the total lease expense.
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1.13

Financial instruments
Measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the company’s balance sheet when
the company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. In the case of financial assets or liabilities not
classified as at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument are added to the fair value. Financial assets
are derecognised if the authority’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets
expire, or if the group transfers the financial assets to another party without retaining control
or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the
authority’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at their amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method less impairment losses.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value, based on the relevant exchange rates at
reporting date.
Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt
less principal payments, using the effective interest rate method less any impairment losses and
amortisations.
Gains and losses on subsequent measurement
Gains and losses arising from a change in fair value of financial instruments that are not part of
a hedging relationship are included in net surplus or deficit in the period in which the change
arises.
Offset
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position when SAQA has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Foreign currency transactions and balances
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
transaction date. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the financial position date. Gains or losses arising on translation are credited to
or charged against the statement of financial performance.
1.14

Impairment of assets
The carrying amounts of SAQA’s assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired, its recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflow, the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of financial performance whenever the carrying amount of the cashgenerating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
asset group that generates cash flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

1.15

Related parties
The Authority operates in an economic environment currently dominated by entities directly or
indirectly owned by the South African government. As a result of the constitutional independence
of all three spheres of government in South Africa, only parties within the national sphere of
government will be considered related parties.
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2. Revenue

2008

2007

R

R

40,613,959

46,443,570

34,014,175

41,732,817

Department of Education: grants amortised

2,629,628

1,764,913

Extra budgetary institutions: project revenue

3,970,156

2,945,841

2,292,507

4,315,428

0

0

2,292,507

4,315,428

14,196,377

7,490,038

NLRD services

621,748

474,122

Q-Africa conference

399,704

7,742

1,358,728

1,378,321

NQF Support Link royalty income

15,479

0

Profit on disposal of fixed assets

3,569

0

484,044

611,090

59,986,116

60,720,311

Grants
Department of Education: grant revenue

Donors
International institutions: revenue
International institutions: grants amortised
Evaluation fees

Rent

Sundry
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3. Operating expenses

Audit fee

2008

2007

R

R

857,842

1,110,936

External audit

655,390

710,504

Internal audit

202,452

400,432

861,741

904,783

784,183

758,905

77,558

77,558

0

68,320

282,947

260,230

120,274

120,274

60,127

60,127

1,299

113

Authority members’ remuneration
Executive Officer
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
PAYE paid to SARS for air flight cost fringe benefits received up
to the end of the 2005/06 financial year
Non-executives
Chairperson
remuneration to chairperson
remuneration to employer
paid for travel on SAQA business
Members
attendance at meetings

69,624

54,315

other services

31,623

25,401

26,202,195

23,560,870

23,090,839

20,766,145

460,013

382,182

Personnel expenses (excluding Executive Officer listed above)
Wages and salaries
Compulsory statutory payments and social contributions
Contributions to retirement plan

2,651,343

2,412,542

4,803,991

6,263,752

Building

460,040

448,145

Central airconditioning system

208,186

208,186

Depreciation

Computer equipment

2,006,529

1,635,927

NLRD

1,866,819

3,733,637

262,417

237,857

206,162

30,843

0

23,772

Office furniture and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Profit)/loss on exchange rate differences
Professional and consulting fees

(20,642)
11,058,097

4,562
7,995,608

Transport, subsistence and accommodation – non-staff

5,533,855

5,397,660

Printing costs

3,266,346

2,536,827

Other operating expenses
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11,405,407

11,999,139

64,457,942

60,088,980
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4. Property, plant and equipment
2008

Land

2007

Accumulated

Carrying

Cost

depreciation

value

R

R

R

Accumulated

Carrying

Cost

depreciation

value

R

R

R

515,455

0

515,455

515,455

0

515,455

Buildings

9,313,876

2,334,942

6,978,934

9,121,275

1,874,902

7,246,373

Parking garage

3,696,778

0

3,696,778

Central airconditioning system

1,684,349

643,420

1,040,929

1,684,349

435,234

1,249,115

Computer equipment

8,600,013

5,534,540

3,065,473

7,600,131

4,208,606

3,391,525

Motor vehicles

105,409

105,409

0

105,409

105,409

0

NLRD software

26,135,462

20,535,005

5,600,456

26,135,462

18,668,187

7,467,275

Office furniture and equipment

2,638,689

2,011,249

627,440

2,452,386

1,750,540

701,846

52,690,031

31,164,565

21,525,466

47,614,467

27,042,878

20,571,589

The estimated useful life of the NLRD software was changed from two to four years during 2007. As this was a change in accounting
estimate, the figures for 2006/07 were not amended. The remaining useful life of the NLRD software as at 31 March 2008 is three years.
During the 2007/08 financial year, SAQA began construction of a new parking garage. The costs incurred to date have been capitalised to
fixed assets. No depreciation has been provided as the parking garage has not yet been completed and brought into use. It is estimated
that the parking garage will be completed by the end of May 2008 at a further cost of R478,238.66.
Reconciliation of the movement of the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
Current year

Land
Buildings
Parking garage

Carrying value

Carrying value

1 April 2007

Additions

R

R
515,455

Disposals

Depreciation

R
0

31 March 2008

R

R

0

0

515,455

7,246,373

192,602

0

460,040

6,978,934

0

3,696,778

0

0

3,696,778

Central airconditioning system

1,249,115

0

0

208,186

1,040,929

Computer equipment

3,391,525

1,684,053

3,576

2,006,529

3,065,473

Motor vehicles

0

0

0

0

0

NLRD software

7,467,275

0

0

1,866,819

5,600,456

701,846

196,083

8,071

262,417

627,440

20,571,589

5,769,515

11,647

4,803,991

21,525,466

Office furniture and equipment

72

saqa annual report 2007/2008

Previous year
Carrying value

Land

Carrying value

1 April 2006

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

31 March 2007

R

R

R

R

R

515,455

0

0

0

515,455

Buildings

7,442,764

251,754

0

448,145

7,246,373

Central airconditioning system

1,457,301

0

0

208,186

1,249,115

Computer equipment

3,376,569

1,677,451

26,568

1,635,927

3,391,525

Motor vehicles

0

0

0

0

0

NLRD software

11,200,913

0

0

3,733,638

7,467,275

537,667

406,593

4,558

237,856

701,846

24,530,669

2,335,798

31,126

6,263,752

20,571,589

Office furniture and equipment

SAQA acquired the land and buildings at 1067 Arcadia Street, Hatfield, Pretoria (Erf 637 Hatfield) on 1 October 2002 for R5,400,000.
Improvements to land and buildings to date amount to R6 113 681 (2007: R5 921 079).

Cost price
Improvements
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2008

2007

R

R

5,400,000

5,400,000

2002

551,259

551,259

2003

0

0

2004

5,041,314

5,041,314

2005

17,222

17,222

2006

59,530

59,530

2007

251,754

251,754

2008

192,602

0

11,513,681

11,321,079
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5. Intangible assets
2008

2007

Accumulated

Carrying

Cost

amortisation

value

R

R

R

Accumulated

Carrying

Cost

amortisation

value

R

R

R

Intangible asset:computer software

2,191,675

237,004

1,954,671

925,275

30,843

894,432

Reconciliation of the movement of the carrying value of intangible assets

Current year
Carrying value

Intangible asset: Computer software

Carrying value

1 April 2007

Additions

Disposals

Amortisation

31 March 2008

R

R

R

R

R

0

206,162

894,432

1,266,400

1,954,671

Previous year
Carrying value

Intangible asset: Computer software

Carrying value

1 April 2006

Additions

Disposals

Amortisation

31 March 2007

R

R

R

R

R

925,275

0

0

30,843

894,432

6. Inventories

The inventory consists of consumables that have been stated at cost.
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2008

2007

R

R

112,974

101,455
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7. Trade and other receivables

Rent

2008

2007

R

R

7,590

18,378

VAT

298,177

0

Recoverable expenditure/debtors

705,493

1,152,167

1,011,260

1,170,545

Credit quality of trade and other receivables
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.

Fair value of trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables

1,011,260

1,170,545

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables that are past due are not considered to be impaired as SAQA is confident that all
amounts outstanding will be recovered in full. At 31 March 2008 R1,011,260 (2007: R 1,170,545) was past due
but not impaired.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
one month past due

234,629

1,012,900

two months past due

610,677

39,008

more than three months past due

165,954

118,637

1,011,260

1,170,545

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Authority
does not hold any collateral as security.
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8. Cash and cash equivalents

Bank account balances

2008

2007

R

R
894,652

2,257,461

3,282

570

28,076,723

27,778,685

874,176

808,894

0

239,433

29,848,833

31,085,043

2008

2007

R

R

Opening balance

8,939,758

7,446,487

Funds received during the year

1,676,825

3,258,183

Transferred to income

(2,629,628)

(1,764,913)

Closing balance

7,986,955

8,939,758

11,631,495

15,946,923

0

0

Petty cash
Corporation for public deposits
European Union bank balance
Danish International Development Agency (DANIDA) (JET) bank balance

The amounts reflected as European Union bank balance and the DANIDA (JET) bank
balance held by SAQA are not available for SAQA's use as the amounts are dedicated to
use specified by the European Union and DANIDA (JET).
9. Deferred income

Long-term
Deferred income: long-term assets
Department of Education grant

International governmental institutions
Opening balance
Funds received during the year
Transferred to income

(2,292,507)

(4,315,428)

Closing balance

9,338,988

11,631,495

Total

17,325,943

20,571,253

Less: short-term portion

(3,664,541)

(6,580,962)

Total deferred income: long-term assets

13,661,402

13,990,291
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2008

2007

R

R

Short-term portion of deferred income: long-term assets

3,664,541

6,580,962

Centre for the Evaluation of Educational Qualifications

1,811,700

763,740

157,416

0

5,633,657

7,344,702

Joint Implementation Projects

5,273,411

3,300,750

Council for Higher Education

304,357

0

Education Training and Development Practices SETA

163,248

0

ISETT SETA

221,659

315,007

1,388,787

2,321,543

LGSETA

139,749

500,000

INSETA

89,818

164,200

1,237,500

0

SASSETA

70,000

0

HWSETA

143,225

0

W&R SETA

272,463

0

Department of Sports and Recreation

186,605

0

Department of Public Service and Administration

100,000

0

Forest Industries Education and Training Authority

406,000

0

CHIETA

150,000

0

City & Guilds

400,000

0

10,907,068

10,645,452

Short-term

Commonwealth Secretariat

TETA

Services SETA
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10. Trade and other payables
2008

2007

R

R

Trade payables

6,300,109

3,312,882

Short-term employee accruals

1,473,687

1,767,486

0

25,105

525,810

1,079,009

8,299,606

6,184,482

2008

2007

R

R

VAT
Other

SAQA pays all its trade and other payables within 30 days in accordance with the terms of the
PFMA and Treasury regulations.

11. Cash flow from operating activities

(Deficit)/surplus per statement of financial performance

(1,360,952)

3,627,903

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables

159,286

Increase in inventories

(11,519)

(45,985)

(Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses

(30,158)

44,453

(Increase)/decrease in operating lease receivable

(26,602)

44,246

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
(Profit)/deficit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

2,115,124
(3,569)

4,659,953

(1,941,058)
23,772

Non-cash items: depreciation and amortisation

5,010,153

6,294,595

Non-cash items: grants on assets amortised

(4,922,134)

(6,080,341)

Net movement in deferred income

4,854,862

(7,149,855)

5,784,490

(522,318)
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12. Operating leases

Leases as lessor
SAQA leases out offices in the Hatfield building under operating leases. The future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

Operating lease accrual recognised
Amount to be recognised in future periods

2008

2007

R

R

800,885

939,508

1,159,387

320,487

0

0

1,960,272

1,259,995

1,885,453

1,143,904

74,819

116,091

1,960,272

1,259,995

13. Taxation
SAQA is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 10 (1) cA of the Income Tax Act.
14. Financial instruments
Risk management
Exposure to credit risk arises in the normal course of SAQA’s business. Exposure to currency and interest-rate risk is minimal. SAQA has
an overall risk management plan that is approved by the Authority and is reviewed by the Audit Committee annually. The Authority has
approved written policies covering specific areas such as investment policy and credit risk that SAQA’s management adheres to.
Credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Where no credit ratings are available, SAQA assesses the credit quality
of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Reputable financial institutions are used for
investing and cash-handling purposes.
At the statement of financial position date there was no significant concentration of credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position.
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Liquidity risk management
SAQA manages liquidity risks by monitoring forecasted cash flows and ensuring that the necessary funds
are available to meet any commitments which arise. SAQA further manages liquidity risk by only spending
according to its approved budget, which is fully funded. The budget is reviewed and approved annually by
the Authority and by the Minister of Education. Cash that is not needed immediately is invested with the
Corporation for Public Deposits (CPD). As funds are needed, the necessary cash is transferred to SAQA’s
operations account.
Interest-rate risk
SAQA’s exposure in terms of interest-rate risk relates to the call deposit held with the CPD. The interest
rate is updated weekly and is linked to the Treasury Bill rate. SAQA reviews the rate at regular intervals
and compares the rate received to the rates available in the market from other large commercial banking
institutions to ensure that it is receiving competetive rates. In terms of SAQA’s budget, the income derived
from interest is conservatively estimated and does not hold any major risks to SAQA. The funds held with
the CPD are available on the same day if requested before 12h00.
On an average cash balance of R27,9 million, a 1 per cent rise or fall in the interest rate would have an
effect on income of either increasing income or decreasing it by R279,000 being an effect of 0,47 per cent
of total income.
Fair values
The fair values of all financial instruments are substantially the same as carrying amounts reflected in the
statement of financial position.
15. Retirement benefit obligations
SAQA operates a defined contribution retirement plan covering all qualifying employees. The fund is
governed by the Pension Funds Act, 1956 (Act No. 24 of 1956).
The assets of the fund are held in trust under the control of the umbrella Board of Trustees of the Orion
Money Purchase Pension Fund (SA). Old Mutual is the fund underwriter. Fund assets consist primarily of
monthly contributions paid over to the fund on behalf of the members by the participating employers. The
underlying assets are invested in listed shares, fixed income securities, cash and deposits.
The total cost charged to income of R2,728,901 (2007: R2,490,100) represents contributions payable to
the scheme by SAQA according to the rates specified in the rules of the scheme.
As at 31 March 2008 all contributions had been paid over to the scheme.
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16. Related parties
16.1

Identity of related parties
The entity has a related party relationship with public entities within the national sphere of government. The ultimate parent of
SAQA is the government, represented by the Department of Education.
Transactions with members of SAQA consist of remuneration and are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements. The names
are detailed in the Accounting Authority Report.

Funds received for

2008

services to

Balance owing

Grant

be rendered

to/(due by)

R

R

R

Transactions with SAQA’s principal departments and their
public entities:
Department of Education
Council for Higher Education
Umalusi

35,691,000

0

0

648,000

0

0

1,725

1,237,500

0

Department of Labour including the following public
entities under its control:
Services SETA
HWSETA

811,235

0

SASSETA

130,000

0

ISETT SETA

200,000

0

ETDP SETA

937,500

(539,460)

TETA

300,000

(2,500)

W&RSETA

500,000

0

CHIETA

150,000

0

THETA

0

(17,100)

DIDTETA

0

38,719

406,000

0

Department of Environmental Affairs & Tourism

Forest Industries Education and Training Authority

100,000

0

Department of Sports & Recreation

250,000

0

Department of Public Service & Administration

100,000

0

R 5,770,235
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(R518,616)
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Funds received for

2007

services to

Balance owing

Grant

be rendered

to/(due by)

R

R

R

Transactions with SAQA’s principal departments and their
public entities :
Department of Education

38,991,000

0

0

Department of Labour including the following public entities
under its control:
Services SETA

70,000

HWSETA

660,000

SASSETA

120,000

TETA

2,000,000

LGSETA

1,050,000

INSETA

250,000

PSETA

112,119

DIDTETA

R 4,262,119

82

(122,999)

38,719
(R84,280)
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16.2

Transactions with key management
Transactions with key management consisted of remuneration as below, excluding that of the Executive Officer which is disclosed
in Note 3 to the financial statements.
Other executives' remuneration
Deputy Executive Officer
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
Director: Standards Setting
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
Director: Quality Assurance (appointed 1 Aug 2005)
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
Director: Human Resources (Resigned 30 November 2006)
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
Director: Human Resources (Appointed 1 January 2007)
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
Director: Information Technology (Resigned 31 March 2007)

2008

2007

R

R
706,503

650,156

633,622

584,119

72,881

66,037

486,526

453,745

436,732

412,691

49,794

41,053

486,526

455,113

437,166

409,793

49,360

45,320

0

292,138

0

265,081

0

27,056

637,735

142,118

569,689

126,198

68,046

15,920

0

576,391

remuneration

0

526,824

contribution to retirement plan

0

49,568

639,786

142,690

573,360

126,939

Director: Information Technology (Appointed 1 January 2007)
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
Director: Finance and Administration (appointed 24 July 2006)
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
Director: Research (Appointed 01 September 2007)
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
Director: Strategic Support (appointed May 2006)
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
Director: NLRD
remuneration
contribution to retirement plan
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66,426

15,750

716,560

439,403

644,887

392,360

71,673

47,043

483,868

0

431,729

0

52,140

0

557,024

492,499

499,364

443,606

57,660

48,893

551,980

522,636

489,688

465,980

62,292

56,656

5,266,509

4,166,888
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17. Subsequent events
There were no subsequent events of any material significance after 31 March 2008.
18. Accounting estimates and judgments
After due consideration management believes that the accounting policies used are appropriate and
estimates made are reasonable.
19. Investment property
The Authority sub-lets a portion of the Hatfield Forum West building, but has decided not to treat this
property as an investment property as the Authority occupies a significant portion of the building for
administration purposes. Accordingly, the leased floor space is treated as an operating lease of property,
plant and equipment.
20. Contingent liabilities/assets
The Authority is not aware of any contingent liabilities or assets that existed as at 31 March 2008.
21. Commitments
21.1

Project commitments
The Authority has committed to the following projects for
the 2008/09 financial year:
Joint Implementation Plans
CHE Database Project

84

2008

2007

R

R

4,969,054

3,300,750

304,357

0

5,273,411

3,300,750
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21.2

Capital commitments
The Authority has committed to the following projects for the 2008/09 financial year:
Completion of a 3-level parking garage with remaining estimated costs of R478,238.66

22. Public Finance Management Act
The Authority is not aware of any material losses during the year from any criminal conduct and has not
incurred any irregular, unauthorised or fruitless and wasteful expenditure during the financial year. It has
therefore not had to carry out any criminal or disciplinary steps in this regard.
The Authority has assessed the levels of materiality to be
ͻ ĂŶǇĂŵŽƵŶƚǁŚŝĐŚĂƌŝƐĞƐĨƌŽŵĐƌŝŵŝŶĂůĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ
ͻ ZϭϬ ϬϬϬ ĂŶĚ ĂďŽǀĞ ǁŚŝĐŚ ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ ĨƌŽŵ ŝƌƌĞŐƵůĂƌ͕ ĨƌƵŝƚůĞƐƐ Žƌ ǁĂƐƚĞĨƵů ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ ĐĂƵƐĞĚ ďǇ ŐƌŽƐƐ
negligence; or
ͻ ZϮϱϬϬϬϬĂŶĚĂďŽǀĞ͕ďĞŝŶŐĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇϬ͕ϱƉĞƌĐĞŶƚŽĨŐƌŽƐƐƌĞǀĞŶƵĞŝŶƌĞƐƉĞĐƚŽĨŝƌƌĞŐƵůĂƌ͕ĨƌƵŝƚůĞƐƐ
or wasteful expenditure caused by any other circumstance.
SAQA received R35,691,000 (2007: R33,991,000) from the government during the year, of which R1,676,825
(2007: R3,261,073) was used for capital expenditure and R34,014,175 (2007: R30,729,927) for personnel
and administration. No financial commitments were made on the government’s behalf.
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glossary of abbreviations and acronyms

16th Conference of Commonwealth
Education Ministers
Adult Basic Education and Training
ABET
Agricultural Sector Education and Training
AgriSETA
Authority
Accelerated and Shared Growth Initiative for
AsgiSA
South Africa
Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment
BBBEE
Credit Accumulation and Transfer
CAT
Centre for the Evaluation of Educational
CEEQ
Qualifications
Chief Executive Officer
CEO
Construction Education and Training
CETA
Authority
Council on Higher Education
CHE
Chemical Industries Sector Education and
CHIETA
Training Authority
Canadian International Development Agency
CIDA
Control Objectives for Information and
COBIT
Related Technology
Commonwealth of Learning
COL
Continuing Professional Teacher
CPTD
Development
Clothing, Textile, Footwear and Leather
CTFL SETA
Sector Education and Training Authority
Diplomacy, Intelligence, Defence and Trade
DIDTETA
Education and Training Authority
Department of Education
DoE
Department of Labour
DoL
Department of Public Service and
DPSA
Administration
Directorate: Quality Assurance and
DQAD
Development
Directorate: Standards Setting and
DSSD
Development
Early Childhood Development
ECD
Energy Sector Education and Training
ESETA
Authority
Education, Training and Development
ETDP SETA
Practices Sector Education and Training
Authority
Education and Training Quality Assurance
ETQA
body
Finance, Accounting, Management
FASSET
Consulting and other Financial Services
Sector Education and Training Authority
Further Education and Training
FET
Forest Industries Education and Training
FIETA
Authority
FOODBEV SETA Food and Beverages Manufacturing Industry
Sector Education and Training Authority
General Education and Training
GET
Generic Manufacturing, Engineering and
GMET SGB
Technology Standards Generating Body
Higher Education Quality Committee
HEQC
Higher Education South Africa
HESA
Health Professions Council of South Africa
HPCSA
Human Resources
HR
Human Resource Development
HRD
16CCEM
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HSRC
HWSETA
I & IT
IIP
IMPSA
INSETA
ISETT SETA

ITIL
JET
JIP
JIPSA
LGSETA
MAPPP SETA

MERSETA

MoU
MQA
NLRD
NQF
NSB
OECD
OLA
PDP
PFMA
PSETA
QCTO
RPL
SACE
SADC
SADTU
SAMDI
SANDF
SAQA
SASSETA
SETA
SGB
TETA
THETA
UCT
UNDP
UWC
W&RSETA
XML

Human Sciences Research Council
Health and Welfare Sector Education and
Training Authority
Information and Information Technology
Investors in People
Institute of Municipal Personnel
Practitioners of Southern Africa
Insurance Sector Education and Training
Authority
Information Systems Electronics and
Telecommunication Technologies Sector
Education and Training Authority
Information Technology Infrastructure
Library
Joint Education Trust
Joint Implementation Plan
Joint Initiative on Priority Skills Acquisition
Local Government Sector Education and
Training Authority
Media, Advertising, Publishing, Printing and
Packaging Sector Education and Training
Authority
Manufacturing, Engineering and Related
Services Sector Education and Training
Authority
Memorandum of Understanding
Mining Qualifications Authority
National Learners’ Records Database
National Qualifications Framework
National Standards Body
Organisation for Economic Cooperation and
Development
Operation Level Agreement
Personal Development Plan
Public Finance Management Act
Public Service Sector Education and Training
Authority
Quality Council for Trades and Occupations
Recognition of Prior Learning
South African Council for Educators
Southern African Development Community
South African Democratic Teachers Union
South African Management Development
Institute
South African National Defence Force
South African Qualifications Authority
Safety and Security Sector Education and
Training Authority
Sector Education and Training Authority
Standards Generating Body
Transport Education and Training Authority
Tourism Hospitality and Sport Education and
Training Authority
University of Cape Town
United Nations Development Programme
University of the Western Cape
Wholesale and Retail Sector Education and
Training Authority
Xtensible Markup Language
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annexure a: programme performance

programme purpose and measurable objectives

programme 1: administration and support
Purpose:

This programme covers the activities of the Executive Office and the following Directorates: Finance
and Administration, Human Resources, Information Technology, Strategic Support and Research.

Measurable objectives:

ͻ Partner major stakeholders to ensure systemic coordination, coherence and resource alignment
to the benefit of learners in line with the national Human Resource Development Strategy.
ͻ Advise and inform policy-makers on all matters relating to the NQF, through conducting
and commissioning research on national imperatives, NQF impact, policy development and
implementation.
ͻ Make recommendations, at least every two years, through a flagship report, concerning
remedial and development work to enable the South African education and training system to
meet the objectives of the NQF.
ͻ Conduct ongoing strategic advocacy for the NQF.
ͻ Represent South Africa on international qualification framework forums; and support the
development of qualification framework initiatives, especially SADC and NEPAD.
ͻ Ensure the aligned development of human, financial and infra-structural resources to support
the achievement of the organisational objectives.

programme 2: standards setting
Purpose:

ͻ Continue to provide leadership and professional expertise to ensure that high-quality,
nationally relevant and internationally comparable unit standards and qualifications are
registered on the NQF.
ͻ Support targeted learning communities – national, provincial and local – in their delivery of
NQF benefits to learners.

Measurable objectives:

ͻ Ensure the ongoing rationalisation of the NLRD Database of Qualifications.
ͻ Provide leadership of the NQF in key areas of standards setting development.
ͻ Identify appropriate short courses for conversion to unit standards for inclusion in new
qualifications and to support skills programmes.
ͻ Ensure the development of a stable and sustainable standards setting system for the future
NQF landscape.
ͻ Build capacity for standards writing especially amongst academic institutions and previously
disadvantaged communities.
ͻ Take on advocacy and provide leadership with regard to the development and registration of
new qualifications and standards.
ͻ Ensure staff retention and sustain high morale.
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programme 3: quality assurance
Purpose:

ͻ Continue to provide leadership through systemic monitoring and evaluation for continuous
quality improvement of education and training.
ͻ Support targeted learning communities – national, provincial and local – in their delivery of
NQF benefits to learners.

Measurable objectives:

ͻ Provide leadership and engage with Quality Councils on the proposed accreditation and quality
assurance policies and processes of implementation.
ͻ Monitor the implementation of the systems and procedures on a systemic level, including:
ͳ

Moderate the implementation models of accreditation and quality assurance.

ͳ

Engage with the DoL to assist its SETA Support Unit in implementing the National Skills
Development Strategy.

ͳ

Fulfil a supporting role within SAQA to engage with the relevant stakeholders in strategic
advocacy for the new NQF.

programme 4 : national learners' records database (NLRD)
Purpose:

SAQA, as the apex organisation in respect of the NQF, will continue to be recognised, through the
NLRD, as the key national source of information for human resource development in South Africa.
The NLRD Directorate will actively support all of SAQA’s objectives.

Measurable objectives:

ͻ Populate the NLRD with all available data, ensure that it is of acceptable quality, and manage it
appropriately. Ensure availability of previously inaccessible data.
ͻ Ensure that SAQA has the authority to gather this data.
ͻ Provide appropriate system and application tools to exploit the research potential of the NLRD,
including the development of key reports and services.
ͻ Provide a service for the verification of the achievement of registered qualifications by South
African learners.
ͻ Ensure system support other than OnLineDBA for the NLRD.
ͻ Support all of SAQA’s objectives.
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programme 5: national centre for the evaluation of foreign qualifications (CEEQ)
Purpose:

Maintain and develop the role of CEEQ as the national recognition information centre for foreign
and domestic learning and qualifications.
ͻ Build infrastructure and resources to adequately support the information role and evaluation

Measurable objectives:

function of the unit.
ͻ Build strategic relationships to enhance the function, expand capacity and build a favourable
environment.
ͻ Monitor and co-ordinate, where relevant, national, regional and international perspectives and
developments in the field.
ͻ Provide leadership:
ͳ

on a national basis with regard to the general evaluation of foreign qualifications in South
Africa.

ͳ

on a regional basis with regard to the role of a national recognition information centre.

ͻ Advocate CEEQ as the national recognition information centre for foreign qualifications.

summary of budget/expenditure per programme

Programme

Budget for 2007/2008

Programme 1

Administration and Support
1.1

Executive Office including secretariat

1.2

Finance and Administration

1.3

Human Resources

1.4

Information Technology

1.5

Strategic Support

1.6

Research

Budget

Expenses
for 2007/08

Net

37 021 573

32 552 902

4 468 671

Programme 2

National Standards Setting and Development

18 665 632

17 543 586

1 122 046

Programme 3

National Quality Assurance and Development

3 678 749

3 240 788

437 961

Programme 4
Programme 5

National Learners’ Records Database (NLRD)
National Centre for the Evaluation of Foreign

3 630 686
9 134 986

3 642 816
10 024 652

(12 130)
(889 666)

72 131 626

67 004 744

Qualifications
Totals
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

programme 1: administration and support
Finance and
Administration
Maintain effective and
efficient financial and facilities management.

ͻ Strategic plan and
ͻ The 2008/9 strategic plan was developed,
decision-making through
budget with scenarios.
which included three financial scenarios.
ͻ Unqualified audits.
ͻ Monthly management accounts given to
financial scenario
ͻ Monthly and quarterly
Directors.
planning and maintain
financial information and ͻ Management reports are given to the SAQA
effective and efficient
Executive Committee, the Finance Committee
reports.
financial and facilities
and the SAQA Board meeting.
management.
ͻ A quarterly narrative and financial report is
provided to the DoE.

1. Support strategic

2. Effectively operate a cash ͻ Unqualified audits.
management system
ͻ Monthly and quarterly

ͻ The cash management system functions well

as evidenced by the internal audits carried
that ensures adequate
out, payments made timeously and cash flow
financial information and
cash flow that enables
projections made to the Finance Committee.
reports are available.
the organisation to meet ͻ Good relationships with ͻ Weekly cash reports are produced and are
all commitments in
donors.
available.
respect of the execution ͻ Additional funding
ͻ A number of Joint Implementation Plans,
secured for specific
funded by partner organisations, have been
of operations timeously.
projects.
signed.
ͻ A healthy cash balance was maintained
throughout the year.
ͻ Funds were invested and managed well as
evidenced by interest income being in excess of
that budgeted for.

3. Effectively monitor and
control the procurement
operations to ensure
that the organisation
is able to meet all
commitments in respect
of the execution of
approved operations
timeously.

ͻ Policies and procedures
are in place and
monitored regularly.

ͻ Supply chain management policy and
procedure are in place. The policy and
procedure were reviewed and a number of
changes made to ensure optimal effectiveness.
ͻ There was continuous monitoring by the
DD:SCM and CFO.
ͻ Credit notes were obtained from the
government printers after discovery of
incorrect invoicing on their part.
ͻ Training and support on matters such as the
preparation of tenders was provided to all
Directorates by DD:SCM.

ͻ Monthly and quarterly
ͻ Monthly management reports are given to the
and efficient system
financial information and
Finance Committee and to the Directors. These
that ensures accurate
reports are available.
reports are available. Any feedback is noted
ͻ Good relationships with
recording of financial
and action taken to remedy any misallocations
donors.
information and relevant
or errors.
ͻ A quarterly narrative and financial report is
and timeous reporting of ͻ Additional funding
secured for specific
provided to the Finance Committee and to the
the results of operational
projects.
DoE.
activities, meeting all
ͻ The reports of the internal auditors have
legislative and donor
reflected that SAQA’s internal controls are both
requirements.
adequate and effective.

4. Maintain an effective

5. Facilitate the
occupational health and
safety of SAQA staff.
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ͻ SAQA meets health and
safety requirements.

ͻ SAQA developed the necessary policies and
procedures including the appointment of SAQA
staff to the Emergency Management Task Team
Committee.
ͻ SAQA makes every effort to ensure that it
meets the health and safety requirements.
Its compliance must be reviewed after the
completion of the new parking garage.
Measured drawings have already been
drawn up of all the floors in SAQA House and
submitted to the registered consultant who had
been contracted to conduct an inspection and
assessment to ensure that SAQA House meets
the safety requirements.
ͻ SAQA maintains an accurate and up-to-date
asset register.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

programme 1 - administration and support
Finance and
Administration
(continued)

6. Facilities management
and safeguarding the
assets of SAQA.

7. Train and assist
non-financial staff to
understand and use
financial systems,
information and reports
(including King 1 and
2, PFMA, PPPFA and
Treasury regulations).

Information Technology
Ensure the development and
maintenance of a sustainable, secure and flexible
information technology
environment.

1. Deliver a robust,
sustainable, secure and
responsive technology
environment that
supports SAQA’s mission
and objectives.

ͻ SAQA’s assets are secure ͻ SAQA’s Facilities Manager controls and
and operational.

ͻ Senior staff are able to

ͻ The Creditors Clerk trains new users on the
prepare budgets and
AccPac Purchase Order system.
explain budget variances. ͻ CFO provides guidance and training to Finance
ͻ Training sessions are
staff and other SAQA staff.
held.
ͻ The CFO meets with Directors to discuss
budgets and management accounts on a
regular basis.
ͻ The CFO explains and clarifies financial
policies to Directors and Deputy Directors in
Management Committee meetings.
ͻ The CFO points out areas of improvement to
Directors on an individual basis.
ͻ The senior management of SAQA works with
the CFO in the compilation of the budget and is
responsible for managing individual budgets.
ͻ Provide a reliable,
available and stable
technology environment.

ͻ Provide an information
technology environment
that supports SAQA’s
mission and objectives.

ͻ Review and implement
the asset replacement
plan.

ͻ Test, review and update
the business continuity
plan.

ͻ Review and update
selected policies
annually, ensuring
new laws, regulations
and rules are not
compromised.

saqa annual report 2007/2008

monitors the outsourced security and cleaning
functions of SAQA House. Cleaning services
tender awarded during the current financial
year for a three-year period.
ͻ The Facilities Manager has regular meetings
with the CFO and DD: SCM to itemise and plan
facilities maintenance and issues.
ͻ SAQA began construction of a three-level
parking garage during the financial year.

ͻ A system was installed in August 2007 to shut
down servers automatically in the event of a
power outage.
ͻ A project was launched to acquire a generator
to be used in a power outage. The generator is
expected in the 2008/09 financial year.
ͻ The Storage Area Network was upgraded in
March 2008 to provide extended storage space.
ͻ The telephone system (PABX) was extended to
provide 16 additional extensions.

ͻ Projects to integrate SAQA’s IT systems with
the business to ensure maximum efficiency,
continued. This includes customising the new
LMS system, the addition of the HR category to
the Briefing Note system, and the introduction
of the Goldmine customer complaints
management system.
ͻ The data and network infrastructure was
extended to offices on the 2nd floor to
accommodate Research and CEEQ expansions.

ͻ Two new Intel servers to replace older
equipment were purchased during the last
quarter of the financial year. These servers,
along with the new Intel server purchased
in the previous year, are used to run virtual
servers with full redundancy.
ͻ More than 50 desktop computers were
replaced with new equipment.

ͻ A disaster recovery test was conducted in
September 2007 and the results were very
positive. The business continuity plan was
revised and a new version published in March
2008.

ͻ SAQA is in the process of formulating a
policy on records management in line with
requirements of the National Archives. A new
policy on electronic records will consequently
be developed in the 2008/09 financial year.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ Monitor the security

ͻ Monthly health checks have continued during

programme 1 - administration and support
Information Technology
(continued)

systems and ensure
they provide a safe
environment.

ͻ Review and update
the ITP (Architecture
and Strategy) annually
to ensure strategic
alignment to SAQA’s
mission and objectives.

2. Build and integrate
modular systems
that support the core
business and integrate
into existing technology.

ͻ Optimise current
applications in order to
increase the productivity
of SAQA staff.

ͻ Design or purchase
innovative applications
that support SAQA in
achieving its mission and
objectives.

ͻ Integrate existing
applications in order to
make effective use of
current applications.

ͻ Build applications to
meet the standards set
out in the ITP.

ͻ Implement a
management and
support system that will
assist in the integration
of applications
(metabase).

ͻ Continue to implement
a Customer Relations
Management system.

the year with regular upgrades to the antivirus
system.
ͻ SAQA also acquired an anti-spam system that
was deployed successfully in May 2007.
ͻ New, more effective air-conditioning units were
acquired for the server room to protect the IT
equipment.

ͻ The plan is under review and will be presented
to the I & IT committee for approval in the
2008/09 financial year.

ͻ All software was upgraded to the latest
available versions, thus ensuring maximum
productivity, for example VIP, AccPac, Lotus
Notes, Oracle, IRX operating system for the IBM
servers.

ͻ The Goldmine Helpdesk system was acquired
and customised to serve as a complaints
management system for SAQA. A pilot project
dealing with stakeholder information is
underway.

ͻ A single sign-on system was implemented
at SAQA by integrating Microsoft’s Active
Directory and IBM’s Lotus Notes.

ͻ Software development continued with the
completion of Phase II of the CEEQ system (an
automated template-driven evaluation system),
the development of an electronic briefing
note system, customising the LMS system,
and upgrades and enhancements to the NQF
Gateway and the SAQA Gateway (SAQA’s
Intranet).

ͻ The development of the integration engine
continued. This will lead to full integration
of the CEEQ application and SAQA’s financial
system, AccPac.

ͻ The Goldmine system was implemented as a
stakeholder management tool and customised
to meet SAQA’s needs in terms of its business
processes.

ͻ Continue to converge the ͻ The CEEQ digital contact centre was expanded
voice and data capability
of SAQA.

3. Ensure the current
applications are
consolidated and
optimised to SAQA’s
benefit.

ͻ User service that will
exceed expectations.

ͻ Contract with users to
formalise expectations
and provide a basis for
operational excellence
(Operation Level
Agreements (OLAs)).
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from three to 10 users in January 2008.

ͻ All requests were logged onto the Altiris
Helpdesk system and monthly reports on
the services rendered were supplied to each
directorate.

ͻ A draft OLA has been compiled and a pilot
project will be conducted with the NLRD in the
2008/09 financial year.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ Build intimate user

ͻ Monthly reports on incidents and the time

programme 1 - administration and support
Information Technology
(continued)

relationships in order to
gain an accurate picture
of their needs, pressures
and frustrations.

4. Build a service delivery
capability to ensure
that the availability
and capacity of the
information technology
infrastructure meet the
desired service levels of
each business unit.

ͻ Review and manage all
partners’ contracts to
ensure agreed service
levels have been met.

ͻ Build and implement
a set of best practice
processes and
procedures to meet
users’ expectations
(Information Technology
Infrastructure Library ).

ͻ Ensure that an optimal
organisational structure
exists to support
customers.

ͻ Build in controls and
standards for each
of the processes and
procedures to meet
Control Objectives for
Information and related
Technology (COBIT)
criteria.

5. Build a learning team by
providing performance
management and
opportunities for
development.

ͻ Recruit and maintain
a motivated staff
complement (ensuring
the goals of the IIP are
implemented).

ͻ Plan, design and
implement each
individual’s performance
management contract.

ͻ Plan, design and
implement a personal
development plan for
each individual.

6. Ensure financial control
and effective use of
assets.

Human Resources
Ensure the optimum development and support of SAQA
staff in line with best HR
practices.
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1. Provide adequately
and appropriately
organised training and
development for all staff
to ensure the acquisition
of the necessary skills,
knowledge and attitudes.

taken to address them are given to Directors.
This includes an analysis of the type of
incidents.

ͻ Monthly meetings were held with suppliers
and where applicable monthly reports were
received and distributed.

ͻ The management of incidents (Helpdesk
calls) was conducted in line with the ITIL
methodology.

ͻ The newly created position of Deputy Director
was filled on 1 February 2008.

ͻ Whereas ITIL addresses the operational
management of IT, COBIT focuses on
governance. In this regard, good progress
had been made in terms of the development
of a records management policy, which will
include a filing plan. This filing plan will also
be mirrored in the document management
system. An electronic records management
policy will also be developed to ensure
compliance in this regard.

ͻ Career paths and broad-banding grids were
developed for all staff in positions of AD and
below.

ͻ Performance management contracts and
personal development plans are in place.

ͻ Both the systems administrators have attended
a Storage Area Network administrator’s course
and a Linux operating system course.
ͻ Two IT staff members were broadbanded, justly
rewarding them for competencies acquired.

ͻ Leverage existing assets, ͻ All IT expenses were within budget and
maximise return on
assets and control
operating costs.

ͻ Implementation
of training and
development
interventions in line with
organisational needs.

according to SAQA’s financial policies and
procedures.
ͻ A quarterly report on application development
and capital expenditure is submitted to both
the Finance and I & IT Committees.

ͻ A training and development system workflow
and functional specification, the Learner
Management System, was established to assist
with the administration and coordination of
training. Attendance at workshops, courses,
seminars and learning by employees is
indicative of the learning success in this period.
ͻ Cost of interventions:
ͳ Study assistance - R 912 295
ͳ Workshops, courses and seminars R1 064 984
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ Skills gaps are identified

ͻ Core competencies, general competencies

programme 1 - administration and support
Human Resources
(continued)

through the proper
use of a personal
development plan (PDP).

2. Drive a performance and ͻ Improved staff
recognition culture.

performance as
measured by the
organisation’s
performance
management system.

ͻ Enhancement of staff
competencies and
reward through the
implementation of
broadbanding.

ͻ Monitoring of
commitment /motivation
levels of staff through
use of a staff satisfaction
survey.

3. Ensure the recruitment
and retention of
adequately qualified
staff.

ͻ Recruitment and
appointment of highly
skilled personnel.

ͻ Reduced staff turnover.

and functional competencies, which form
a foundation for the various learning
interventions identified, were addressed.
ͻ Career paths were developed for every job
in the job categories Assistant Director and
below. Self assessments were done by all nonmanagement employees. PDPs were informed
by these career paths.

ͻ 63 per cent of staff were assessed to establish
baseline competencies in order to develop
appropriate PDPs. 77 per cent of assessed
staff were level-progressed in terms of the
broadbanding policy.
ͻ Performance Management Contract (PMC)
and Broadbanding (BB) assessment for
management staff:
ͳ two Directors progressed
ͳ three Deputy Directors progressed

ͻ An exercise of assessing, recognising and
rewarding competencies through broadbanding
was carried out and completed as a basis
for performance contracting in the 2008/09
financial year.

ͻ The Investors in People (IIP) audit was carried
out in February 2007. A comprehensive plan
to address development areas as identified by
the survey was drawn up. For the period under
review the plan was implemented and a followup IIP audit will be conducted in November
2008.
Employment equity strategy:
ͻ Fifteen appointments were successfully made
within planned timeframes.
ͻ Employment equity trends during the period
under review indicate achievement of targets.

ͻ The staff turnover this year is 17 per cent,
which is higher than the previous year (13 per
cent). The national average staff turnover as at
August 2007 is 12,9 per cent. The heightened
uncertainty caused by the NQF review is the
main driver of staff turnover.

4. Provide an effective and
efficient support and
administration function.

ͻ Provision of accurate
personnel records and
leave administration.

ͻ Policies and procedures
that are in line with HR
best practice and current
labour legislation.

5. Counsel and advise staff
and management on the
promotion of healthy
employer-employee
relations, building
functional teams and
encouraging staff
motivation.

96

ͻ Fewer grievances from
staff.

ͻ The VIP system was upgraded to enhance HR
functionality in order to, inter alia, improve
management of the administration of
personnel records and leave.

ͻ All HR policies and processes were revised to
ensure they are in line with the organisation’s
employment equity strategy. These included
the grievance procedure, the study loan policy
and conditions of service.

ͻ Various counselling and leadership coaching
interventions with managers took place for
enhancement of the employer-employee
relationship. These were: SSU – Teambuilding;
DSSD – Managing poor performance; CEEQ
– Customer care and discipline; Finance –
Grievance handling.
ͻ Management staff were all provided with
guidelines on giving effective feedback and
taking effective follow-up action.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ Non-referrals of

ͻ Structured and regular meetings were held

programme 1 - administration and support

management /labour
disputes to the CCMA,
which would be
indicative of a healthy
management-labour
relationship.

6. Maintain employee
wellness programme.

7. Adhere to health and
safety regulations.

ͻ Maintain and retain IIP
Standard.

ͻ An increase in the
number of staff using
services such as
counselling on personal,
finance, family matters,
etc.

ͻ Existence of a fully
functional and
knowledgeable Health
and Safety and HIV
Committee.

ͻ Consistent application
and follow-up of the
IIP Action Plan by all
managers.

ͻ Improved
communication and
regular update to all
staff.

with employee representatives to proactively
deal with labour relations matters.

ͻ This item has been on hold to allow HR to
deal with issues requiring urgent attention.
Counselling was, however, provided when
required.

ͻ Health and safety regulations were rightly
adhered to. An HIV/Aids awareness campaign
was carried out successfully, backed by an
action programme carried out on World Aids
Day.

ͻ Suggested improvement actions on the
approved IIP action plan were implemented
holistically through various management and
HR interventions.
ͻ The next IIP audit is due in November 2008.

ͻ The SAQA Community Gateway is used
effectively to update staff on general and
HR-related issues through HR Corner, which
publishes regular information updates.

ͻ Equality of opportunities ͻ Learning and development is continuously
for learning and
development activities.

managed through PDPs.

ͻ All managers are required to report on their
learning and development activities, including
equality of opportunity.
ͻ SAQA submits its workplace skills plan and
reports to the ETDP SETA annually, in line with
the Skills Development Act.

8. Coordinate
implementation of the
employment equity
strategy.

Strategic Support
Communication
Advocate and market the
NQF and SAQA as the guardian of the NQF.

1. To provide strategic
advocacy and
communication direction
with respect to:
ͻ the identification and
development of key
messages.

ͻ Equitable representation ͻ Recruitment of staff takes place in line with
across all occupational
the organisation’s employment equity plan for
levels and categories in
2007- 2009 and targets.
terms of appointments, ͻ Employment equity trends during the period
under review indicate achievement of targets
promotions, training and
according to plan.
development.

ͻ Communications and
advocacy plan including
focused PR, advocacy,
and marketing drives
that will target different
audiences.

ͻ the selection of targeted ͻ SAQA staff to deal
audiences from both the
public and the private
sector and the public at
large.
ͻ the desired perceptions
of the NQF and SAQA
to be established as
deemed appropriate per
target audience.
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with advocacy,
communication and
where required with the
media. This will be in
line with a categorised
database.

ͻ SAQA designed a communications strategy with
the assistance of advertising agency Lesoba
Difference.
ͻ The SAQA communications strategy specifies
target audiences and how they would be
reached. All marketing and communication was
done in line with the strategy.

ͻ The database continues to be updated
with new contacts. It contains more than
3 000 contacts in different categories,
aligned with the target audiences as per the
communications strategy.

97

Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ Communications

ͻ A joint project between the communication

programme 1 - administration and support
Strategic Support

Forum established
with other education
sectors, focusing on
NQF advocacy as a key
objective.

Communication
(continued)

ͻ Annual Report
appropriate and targeted
publications that
effectively and efficiently
enhance understanding
and implementation
ͻ SAQA Update
and create positive
perceptions of the NQF
and SAQA in accordance
with the overall plan.

2. To produce quality,

ͻ SAQA Bulletins

staff of the CHE, DoE and Umalusi was
undertaken to produce a special edition on
education in South Africa. SAQA collaborated
with CHE and DoE in formulating frequently
asked questions on the Higher Education
Qualifications Framework (HEQF), which
were placed on the SAQA website. SAQA also
collaborated in the production of a brochure on
registered FET colleges and HIgher Education
institutions, which was placed on the SAQA
website.

ͻ 4 000 copies and 500 CDs of the Annual Report
were printed in August 2007. It was launched
at the Chairperson’s Lecture in November 2007
and distributed to stakeholders.

ͻ Volume 10 No 3, a special edition on quality
assurance and foreign qualifications, was
published in June 2007. Volume 10 No 4, a
double edition, was published in December
2007.

ͻ SAQA Bulletin Vol 10 No 2 was published in
August 2007 and distributed to stakeholders.
It contained articles based on the proceedings
of the second NQF Colloquium on the NQF as a
socially inclusive and cohesive system.
ͻ Two conference proceedings were also
published. 1 500 copies of the Chairperson’s
Lecture were published in March 2008, and
2 000 copies of the proceedings of the Q-Africa
conference were published in March 2008.

ͻ Research Reports

ͻ 1 500 copies of the report on Early Childhood
Development were printed in September
2007 and distributed to the ECD sector and
education policy-makers.

ͻ EO News

ͻ The last issue of this internal online newsletter
was produced in April 2007. The publication is
currently on hold.

ͻ Guidelines

ͻ A booklet entitled Governance Matters was
published in November 2007 to serve as
a guideline for members of the Authority,
committees and SAQA Directors.

ͻ Feedback from
evaluation forms and/or
client responses about
publications.

ͻ Quality of publications
both in terms of editing,
content accuracy and
appropriateness.

ͻ Publications produced
according to SAQA policy
guidelines.

ͻ A number of SAQA publications invited
feedback. Verbal feedback was also provided by
stakeholders and was generally very positive.

ͻ All publications had sound editing, accurate
content and appropriate messages.

ͻ All SAQA publications were produced according
to SAQA policy guidelines.

ͻ Promotional publications ͻ A full-colour information brochure entitled
produced to support the
overall plan.
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Quality Qualifications was published. The
brochure used cartoons to inform learners on
how to check that their education and training
service provider and the qualification they
register for are properly accredited.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

programme 1 - administration and support

ͻ A poster showing the covers of SAQA

Strategic Support

publications over the years was printed.
Communication
(continued)

ͻ Informative publications, ͻ A report on the Chairperson’s Lecture appeared
media releases and
campaigns to support
specific interventions
and/or the overall plan.

3. To host and participate
in strategically selected
events and activities
that support the
advancement of the
values of the NQF and
SAQA.

ͻ Feedback from event
evaluations.

ͻ Chairperson’s lecture

in Business Day. An interview with the EO
on JIPSA was published in the AsgiSA Special
Edition in December 2007. An interview with
the EO appeared in CEO magazine in March
2008. Press releases were issued on the launch
of the Trends in Higher Education report and
the registration of FET colleges and HEIs.

ͻ Feedback forms were completed at SAQA
events and suggestions and the views
expressed by stakeholders were taken into
account.

ͻ This was held on 7 November at the Premier
Hotel and attended by 100 delegates. The
theme was Enhancing system-wide quality
continuing education. The lecture focused on
SAQA’s role in the development of informal,
non-formal and formal learning.

ͻ NQF Conference

ͻ No NQF Conference was held during the
reporting period as this is a bi-annual
event. Planning for the next conference has
commenced.

ͻ Q-Africa

ͻ This was held on 22 to 23 November 2007
at Gallagher Estate and attended by 250
delegates. The theme of the conference was
Occupationally-directed qualifications within
qualifications frameworks. This was the 7th
Q-Africa conference co-hosted by SAQA and
the German Q-Federation. The conference
was important in that it created a platform for
debate on the proposed new NQF structures,
and specifically the proposed Quality Council
on Trades and Occupations.

ͻ NQF Colloquium

ͻ The Annual NQF Colloquium was held in June
2007 at the Velmoré Estate, Tshwane. Dr
Etienne Wenger was invited to South Africa
as a world authority on learning through
communities of practice. SAQA is taking this
notion forward in terms of the implementation
of the NQF, with a view to the improved
functioning of Standards Generating Bodies
(SGBs).

ͻ Study tours

ͻ SAQA hosted the following study tours: Zambia
in May 2007; Libya and Sudan in June 2007;
Malawi in July 2007; Tanzania in September
2007; Sudan, Botswana and Kenya in October
2007; Malaysia in November 2007; China in
December 2007 and in January 2008; Ethiopia,
Canada and an OECD delegation in February
2008; and Ethiopia in March 2008. The purpose
of these study tours is both for SAQA to share
the lessons learnt in the South African context
and to learn from other countries regarding
NQFs and related matters.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

Promotional events:

ͻ SAQA exhibited at the SHERCON exhibition in

programme 1 - administration and support
Strategic Support

ͻ Exhibitions
Communication
(continued)

ͻ Product launches

April 2007 at Sun City; the Vodacom exhibition
in April 2007 at Pretoria Showgrounds; the
HRDA exhibition in June 2007 at Gallagher
Estate; the conference of the Institute of
Municipal Personnel Practitioners of Southern
Africa (IMPSA) in August 2007 in Richards Bay;
the Q-Africa conference in November 2007; the
Researching Work and Learning conference in
December 2007; Sports and Recreation South
Africa in February 2008 in Boksburg; Science
Unlimited in March 2008 at the Tshwane
Showgrounds; and the Umalusi conference in
March 2008 in Tshwane.

ͻ The Trends in Higher Education report was
launched by the Minister of Education in June
2007 at the Agricultural Research Council in
Pretoria. This report is of national importance
as the information it contains will enable
policy-makers to make informed decisions
regarding skills development matters in the
country.

Strategic Support
Information Services
The primary source and
distributor of NQF and
related information in SA and
worldwide.

1. Maintain and improve
the wide range of
communication and
capacity-building
interventions that
have been developed
to effectively and
appropriately facilitate a
deep understanding of
the NQF and SAQA.

ͻ Ad hoc conferences
ͻ Special events

ͻ The 5th International Researching Work and

ͻ The NQF Gateway is a

ͻ The NQF Gateway was upgraded and more

resource that provides all
NQF-related information
in a more systematic and
friendly manner.

ͻ The SAQA website has
up-to-date and relevant
information on SAQA.

ͻ The third phase of the
NQF Support Link project
is successfully rolled out
to achieve its objective
of facilitating NQFrelated transformation
and systemic change
in the education and
training sector.
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Learning conference was held in December
2007 in Stellenbosch. The conference was cohosted by UWC, UCT, HSRC and SAQA. A total
of 350 delegates from 33 countries attended.
SAQA was responsible for the marketing
function.

features added to improve the collaboration
facilities and ease of navigation, making
information easily accessible and thus allowing
learners and practitioners to be more proactive
in their approach to learning and their work.
ͻ Since its inception in 2005, 3 109 users have
been registered on the NQF Gateway.
ͻ A research portal within the NQF Gateway has
been developed for the Research Directorate
and its partners.

ͻ Several documents, important notices, events
and articles on SAQA and the NQF and latest
developments in these and related areas were
placed on the SAQA website. These included
the appointment of the Fourth Authority and
the NQF Bill and draft amendments to related
legislation.

ͻ The NQF Support Link was actively marketed
during the year under report. Advertorials,
adverts and interviews on the NQF Support
Link appeared in several publications including
HR Highway, Government Digest, Business
Day, and Skills Portal. It was also promoted at
conferences and exhibitions including the HRD
Africa Exhibition, Southern African Regional
FET Conference, IMPSA Conference, Q-Africa
Conference 2007 and the Vocational Education
Conference.
ͻ Between June 2007 and February 2008 a total
of 14 workshops were held, attended by 212
participants. The enrolment has largely been
from the SETAs (49 per cent), due to high-level
marketing aimed at this target audience to
build the capacity of staff in order to accelerate
the implementation of the NQF.
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Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ The SAQA Community

ͻ The SAQA Community Gateway was upgraded

programme 1 - administration and support
Strategic Support

Gateway is used by staff
and Authority members
as an information
resource and a
communication and
capacity-building tool.

Information Services
(continued)

2. Effectively support
the NQF-focused work
of SAQA through the
collection, management
and dissemination of
high-quality information
resources and services.

ͻ The Resource and
Information Centre
has adequate
resources including
online databases and
publications that are
properly classified
and catalogued on an
on-going basis for easy
access.

ͻ Up-to-date and relevant
material is purchased
on a regular basis
and subscriptions to
periodicals, databases
and newspapers are
renewed.

ͻ Staff is kept informed

to facilitate easier and more effective internal
communication. The latest information, such
as news relating to the NQF, is posted on this
portal and members of staff are encouraged
to post comments in the Discussion Forum
thus encouraging strategic conversations
electronically. It also provides staff members
with access to internal and external documents,
presentations, staff forms and templates. The
HR Directorate also has a page dedicated to
communicating directly with members of staff.

ͻ SAQA renewed its subscription to 10 online
databases. These are used by the centre
and SAQA staff to retrieve information on
education, training, development and related
topics.
ͻ SAQA’s Resource Centre also houses an
RPL archive, including both published and
unpublished material, partly donated by the
Joint Education Trust (JET) Information Services.

ͻ During the reporting period 45 new
publications were purchased and catalogued.

ͻ SAQA subscribes to 28 international and local
journals and to Gauteng-based daily and
Sunday newspapers. Tables of content and
articles from these journals are made available
to staff.

ͻ News items on latest developments pertaining

about current
developments in
legislation and policy
that affect SAQA and the
ͻ
NQF, e.g. JIPSA.

to SAQA, the NQF and education, training and
development in general are placed on the
Community Gateway and staff members are
informed accordingly.
SAQA has undertaken a records management
project in order to manage its information
resources in terms of the broad policy
guidelines contained in the National Archives
and Records Service of South Africa Act (no
43 of 1996) and its regulations. This project is
managed by the DD: Information Services.
The first phase of the project, an organisationwide information audit, has been completed.
The development of a file plan will be the second phase of the project, to commence early in
the 2008/09 financial year.

3. Offer client-focused
information services
to NQF partners,
stakeholders and the
general public.

ͻ The front office services, ͻ A system to record details related to incoming
such as the reception,
are enhanced and
operationally optimised
to offer excellent
service to NQF partners,
stakeholders and the
general public.

ͻ SAQA has a client
relationship
management database
that is used to capture
and update contact
details of all its
stakeholders.
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calls at the switchboard was installed. It tracks
all calls received as well as dropped and
unanswered calls.
ͻ Details of walk-in clients, the nature of their
enquiries and the staff member they were
referred to are also recorded.
ͻ The receptionist was trained and is using
the Goldmine system to capture and track
complaints from customers.

ͻ The client relationship management database
is managed in the Executive Office.
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Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

programme 1 - administration and support
Research
Advise and inform policymakers on all matters relating
to the NQF.

1. To advise the Ministers

Research reports on:
and inform policy-makers
on all matters relating
ͻ The impact of the NQF
to SAQA and the NQF,
on lifelong learning
through conducting,
commissioning,
publishing and
presenting research on
national imperatives;
ͻ The usage of e-learning
NQF impact; NQF
as a mode of delivery
legislation and policy
for occupationally based
development; and NQF
qualifications
implementation.

ͻ Targeted qualitative
analysis of NLRD data

ͻ Targeted qualitative
analysis of CEEQ data

Research reports:

ͻ A peer reviewed journal article on the impact
of the NQF was published in the Asia Pacific
Education Review Journal (February 2008) and
will become a chapter in an international book
on lifelong learning.

ͻ As a result of the NQF review and the pending
establishment of the QCTO, the usage of
e-learning and occupational qualifications has
become a responsibility of the DoL. SAQA has
been working closely with the DoL working
group on occupational qualifications.

ͻ A report on a qualitative analysis of the NLRD
data has been completed.

ͻ An ethnographic study of CEEQ is underway
and will be completed in 2008.

ͻ Emerging NQF discourse ͻ SAQA completed a country report on RPL for
- involvement in local
and international
initiatives, e.g. OECD
RPL; Commonwealth
Teacher qualifications
project.

ͻ Uptake of qualifications,
e.g. in the engineering
field of learning

ͻ Critical and scarce skills

the OECD in September 2007 and the OECD
made a country visit to South Africa in February
2008.
ͻ SAQA completed the report on Commonwealth
Teacher Qualifications in 2007 and has been
requested to participate in a second phase of
the project in 2008.

ͻ A report on uptake of ECD qualifications has
been completed.

ͻ SAQA has participated fully in JIPSA

in support of JIPSA

ͻ Short courses

ͻ The SAQA Chairperson’s Lecture on short
courses was held in 2007 and a report of
proceedings has been published.

ͻ Policy development, e.g. ͻ Research on professional qualifications
Credit Accumulation and
Transfer – a case study

ͻ Policy breadth

conducted

ͻ A paper on policy breadth has been published
as part of the Institute for Justice and
Reconciliation’s Transformation Audit 2007.

ͻ Communities of trust

ͻ A paper on Communities of Practice and Trust
has been published in the SAQA Bulletin (Vol.
10, No. 2).

ͻ Professional
qualifications

ͻ Policy implementation
and evaluation, e.g.: NQF
Impact Study
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ͻ A report on professional qualifications has been
completed and was submitted to the DoE as
part of SAQA’s comments on the draft NQF Bill.

ͻ A report entitled The NQF and its Worlds,
examining the implementation of the NQF, has
been completed.
ͻ A paper on developing appropriate research
methodologies for impact studies has been
commissioned and will be completed in 2008.
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Actual

ͻ Systemic monitoring of

ͻ Systemic monitoring of the implementation of

programme 1 - administration and support
Research
(continued)

the implementation of
the NQF, e.g. monitoring
the links and articulation
possibilities between
the different Further
Education and Training
Certificates with a
particular focus on the
GMET SGB project.

the NQF. Reports on the following topics have
been completed:
ͳ FETC certificates
ͳ The GMET process
ͳ The simplification of assessment
ͳ Quality of learning

ͻ NQF conference
ͻ Dr Etienne Wenger, the world’s leading
develop a collaborative
ͻ 3rd NQF Colloquium
expert on Communities of Practice and Trust
attended by national and
education and training
was the key-note speaker at the 2007 3rd
international experts,
research agenda with the
NQF Colloquium and presented four minipolicy-makers and
purpose of enhancing
conferences/workshops in Johannesburg,
implementers.
the implementation of
Pretoria and Cape Town.
the NQF.
ͻ A collaborative research ͻ A collaborative research agenda has been
agenda is agreed and
established and partnerships with the
developed further.
University of the Witwatersrand (Wits) and
Rhodes University have been established. SAQA
has worked closely with the research divisions
of the CHE, HESA, Umalusi and the HSRC.

2. Maintain and further

ͻ Establish a NQF Research ͻ An NQF research committee has been
Forum.

established.

ͻ Conduct think tanks on

ͻ Four workshops/think tanks have been held:

key policy matters.

two on RPL and two on Communities of
Practice.

ͻ Support and participate
in the Researching Work
and Learning conference.

ͻ Chairperson’s Lecture.

ͻ SAQA presented a symposium on NQFs as
part of the Researching Work and Learning
Conference in December 2007. Eight SAQA staff
members participated in the conference.

ͻ The SAQA Chairperson’s Lecture on short
courses was held in 2007 and a report of
proceedings has been published.

ͻ RU supported studies.

ͻ Two staff members of the Research Directorate
are engaged in formal studies.

ͻ Pilot SAQA award.

ͻ SAQA has awarded three B.Ed (Hons)
scholarships to students at Wits and one
doctoral scholarship to a student at Rhodes.

3. Participate in
and contribute to
international NQF
forums to enhance NQF
implementation.

ͻ Actively support
the establishment
of the Southern
African Development
Community
Qualifications Forum
(SADCQF) and NQF
development in member
states.

ͻ Implement the
SAQA international
engagement plan.
ͻ Participate in
international NQFrelated research.
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ͻ SAQA staff have actively supported the
establishment of the SADCQF through
attendance at meetings, facilitating the
development of a major report on quality
assurance in the region and providing technical
services to the Seychelles, Ethiopia and Angola.

ͻ The SAQA international engagement plan is
being implemented and a Deputy-Director
has been deployed to the Executive Office to
manage this portfolio.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ International

ͻ The focus on international comparability/

programme 1 - administration and support
Research
(continued)

comparability
for qualification
development.
ͻ International
comparability/
equivalence/ evaluation
of foreign qualifications.

ͻ Attend and present
papers at local and
international education
and training conferences.

ͻ Publish papers in
academic journals.

ͻ Establish a research
page on the SAQA/NQF
Gateway website.

4. Support, oversee,
conduct and collaborate
in relation to studies
commissioned by the
Directorates.

ͻ Evaluation of DQAD
monitoring, moderation,
performance audits.

ͻ Collaborate with DSSD
on studies dealing with
generic qualifications
and the rationalisation of
qualifications.

ͻ Support staff in the
development and
presentation of papers
at local and international
education and training
conferences.

ͻ Develop occasional
papers, e.g.:
ͳ Defining an apex
organisation
ͳ Tracking policy
shifts for example
in relation to
integration

equivalence/evaluation of qualifications was
undertaken through SAQA’s participation
in the Commonwealth project on Teacher
Qualifications. SAQA completed the report
on Commonwealth Teacher Qualifications in
2007 and was requested to participate in a
second phase of the project in 2008. SAQA is
undertaking research for the Commonwealth
of Learning on the establishment of an NQF for
small commonwealth states as part of a virtual
university project.

ͻ SAQA staff presented papers at three local
conferences and one international conference.

ͻ SAQA staff published four articles in academic
journals.

ͻ The research page on the SAQA/NQF Gateway
website has been established.

ͻ An ethnographic study of DQAD/CEEQ is under
way and will be completed in 2008/09.

ͻ A report on generic qualifications has been
completed and was submitted to the Authority
in February 2008.

ͻ The research directorate assisted staff with
preparation of papers for the Researching Work
and Learning Conference.

ͻ Occasional papers have been produced on
the concept of an apex organisation and on
integration and were presented at SAQA staff
workshops.

ͻ Evaluation of the impact ͻ The evaluation of the impact of the NQF
of the NQF Support Link.
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Support Link has been put on hold following
the finalisation of the NQF review until the
future role of the NQF Support Link has been
clarified.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

programme 2 - standards setting
Partner major stakeholders
to ensure systemic
coordination, coherence and
resource alignment to the
benefit of learners in line
with the national Human
Resource Development
Strategy.
Continue to provide
leadership and professional
expertise to ensure that
high-quality, nationally
relevant and internationally
comparable unit standards
and qualifications are
registered on the NQF.

ͻ JIP processes increase in ͻ 26 JIPs were active in the report year, which
development of a
number and scope.
included 161 qualifications. Six JIPs were
sustainable and dynamic
completed and closed.
standards-setting system
for the NQF.
ͻ SAQA’s financial
ͻ The JIPs involved financial commitments by
commitment to the
the JIP partners to the value of R20 542 000
standards setting
thereby reducing the financial burden of the
process is shared so as to
Authority in terms of qualifications generation
decrease the burden for
and registration.
the Authority.

1. Ensure the continuing

ͻ New relationships are
developed with new
stakeholders to support
standards setting.

ͻ A database of experts
and stakeholders is
developed.

ͻ Consultative panels are
more broad-based and
Higher Education is more
involved.

2. Provide leadership,
strengthen and deepen
the quality of standards
setting and qualifications
registration.

African Management Development Institute
(SAMDI), City and Guilds, the Association
of British Executives, the Financial Planning
Institute, the Marketing Federation of SA,
the Department of Science and Technology
and a number of private providers for the
development of qualifications for their sectors.

ͻ DSSD continues to develop a database of
experts and stakeholders for involvement
with the various processes in the Directorate
and to serve on various committees e.g. task
teams, consultative panels, etc. At present the
database contains details of 121 people.

ͻ The consultative panels held 12 meetings
during the last year. Ninety-four people
representing 77 organisations served on the
panels. Sixteen people from Higher Education
were present.

ͻ Qualifications mapping is ͻ The development of qualifications is informed
undertaken in important
sectors as identified in
the Human Resource
Development Strategy.

ͻ JIPs are encouraged,
initiated and sustained
to support sectoral
needs.
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ͻ Relationships were established with the South

by the Human Resource Development Strategy
and JIPSA-identified scarce and critical skills.
The following are some of the qualifications
registered in response to these needs:
ͳ Nursing: Levels 5 to 8+
ͳ Water Reticulation: Levels 2, 3 and 4
ͳ Water and Wastewater Treatment: Levels
2 and 3
ͳ FETC: Plumbing
ͳ GETC: Transport
ͳ Freight Forwarding and Customs Clearing:
Levels 2 to 5
ͳ FETC: Early Childhood Development
ͳ Disability Employment: Level 5
ͳ Inclusive Education: Level 5
ͳ Automotive Repair and Maintenance:
Levels 2, 3 and 4
ͳ FETC: Counselling
ͻ The ITC Qualifications Framework was
developed and will be used to inform the
qualifications to be developed for the IT sector.

ͻ Whenever organisations/sectors approach
DSSD about generating qualifications, a JIP is
proposed e.g. additional unit standards for
SAMDI short courses, Bombela for Gautrain
training, Department of Health, Department
of Science and Technology re Indigenous
Knowledge Systems.
ͻ When JIPS are completed, partners are
encouraged to initiate new JIPS or amend or
extend existing ones e.g. Department of Sport
and Recreation for qualifications and unit
standards for 2010 training of volunteers etc.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ Scarce skills are

ͻ No qualification is generated without first

programme 2 - standards setting

addressed and
qualifications generation
is prioritised accordingly.

ͻ The level descriptors for

ͻ The adoption of the 10-level HEQF implies

the HET band are signed
off by the Ministers of
Education and Labour.

its acceptance, but formal approval by the
Minister of Education is awaited.

ͻ A review of the level
descriptors for the GET/
FET band is initiated.

ͻ Guidelines on the
conduct of international
comparability are
developed and
disseminated.

ͻ Recommendations
regarding the format
structure and content of
qualifications are made.

ͻ Direct engagement with
the NQF discourse is
undertaken in a variety
of forums and media.

3. Advocacy for the NQF
and its standards-setting
system to stakeholders
and the wider public.
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checking if it is a need in terms of identified
scarce skills. See previous section for
qualifications directly resultant from this
process.

ͻ Review process started in line with proposals of
the draft NQF Bill to allow for input by CHE, DoL
and Umalusi.

ͻ Guidelines have been reviewed and confirmed
to be satisfactory. Guidelines were an agenda
item at an inter-SGB meeting and workshop
with consultants held in 2007. Capacity
building has been done with DSSD staff and the
guidelines form an integral part of the new field
coordinator induction programme.

ͻ Recommendations were incorporated in the
DSSD document Strengthening and deepening
quality in standards setting, which forms
the basis for DSSD operations. The emphasis
is on high-quality, fit-for-purpose, relevant,
internationally comparable qualifications and
unit standards. These recommendations are
conveyed to each task team and consultant
engaged in qualifications generation and to all
field coordinators.

ͻ DSSD management and the entire staff have
been involved in a number of internal DSSD
workshops on the new NQF landscape and
draft legislation, e.g. the draft NQF Bill, the
HEQF Bill, etc.
ͻ DSSD has contributed to SAQA inputs in that
regard.
ͻ DSSD staff has given presentations on the
new landscape to numerous forums, including
the Department of Sport and Recreation
conference, CHIETA regional conferences,
Council of Supply Chain Management
Professionals Conference and the SAQA
colloquium.
ͻ DSSD management has been involved in DoL
QCTO strategic planning meetings and joint
SAQA/DoE and Umalusi meetings, and in the
development of the Foundational Learning
Certificate for the DoL.

ͻ SAQA’s relationships with Meetings have been held with:
a significant number
ͻ The North West provincial government and
of stakeholders and
institutions (universities,
DoL, DoE etc) are
enhanced.

the University of the North West, regarding
qualifications and unit standards to improve
service delivery in the province.
ͻ The Department of Health, regarding
qualifications for mid-level workers.
ͻ SANDF, regarding professional development
qualifications for commissioned and noncommissioned officers.
ͻ The SAPS, regarding advanced police
occupational training qualifications as well as
management training.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

programme 2 - standards setting

ͻ Western Cape Education Department,
regarding the FETC: School Business
Administration qualification to improve levels
of school administration, particularly in underperforming schools.
ͻ Department of Science and Technology and the
University of Limpopo, regarding Indigenous
Learning Systems.
ͻ University of Pretoria, regarding whole-school
evaluation and assessment.

ͻ A significant library
of unit standards for
use in qualifications is
established.

4. Support national
initiatives relating to
skills development
through the generation
and registration of
quality qualifications and
standards.

5. Position DSSD as a
knowledge-based
Directorate responsive
to the nation’s training
needs and objectives.

Output

Measure/indicator

ͻ Skills programmes
are supported by unit
standards and therefore
supported by SETAs and
DoL.

ͻ 12 281 unit standards are currently registered
on the NQF, covering all 12 organising fields.

ͻ DSSD has ensured there are registered
unit standards to cover numerous skills
programmes and short courses on request
from organisations and ETQAs. This has been
done through the addition of sets of elective
specialisation unit standards to existing and
new qualifications e.g. welding, banking,
generic management, human resource
management, transport, and automotive repair
qualifications. This enables learners to receive
accredited training with credits awarded for
successful learning.

ͻ JIP processes increase in ͻ There has been an increase in the number of
number and scope.

ͻ Relationships are
developed with new
stakeholders to support
standards setting.

Target

JIPs as well as the timeous amendment of JIPs
after the actual situation was evaluated against
SAQA policy and HRDS needs. Needs originally
articulated by JIP partners were amended after
scoping of the sector by DSSD.
ͻ Details are given in a previous section.

Actual

programme 3 - quality assurance
Provide leadership and
1. Provide leadership and
professional expertise and
professional expertise
engage with quality assurand engage with
ance bodies of education and
education, training
training on quality assurance
and quality assurance
policies and processes of
bodies on the policies
implementation.
and processes of
implementation
to ensure systemic
alignment with respect
to and unblocking of:
ͻ accreditation of
providers

ͻ quality assurance of
delivery

ͻ simplification of quality
assurance processes
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ͻ Level of agreement on

ͻ Attended strategic workshops with DoE and
accreditation and quality
Umalusi to seek agreement of accreditation
assurance processes for
and quality assurance processes.
education and training is ͻ Attended standardisation meetings with
Umalusi.
reached.
ͻ Engaged with CHE on an MoU solution.

ͻ Differences and
similarities between
models for provider
accreditation and quality
assurance is evaluated.

ͻ Models are created
and feedback given to
relevant stakeholders,
allowing for articulation
and progression.

ͻ Attended Working Group 2 and Working Group
3 of the DoL.

ͻ Evaluated quality assurance model and made
inputs on challenges and implementation
difficulties with reference to accreditation and
quality assurance models.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

programme 3 - quality assurance

2. Monitor and evaluate

Performance audit:
the implementation
ͻ A performance auditing
of the systems and
model is developed that
procedures on a systemic
meets the requirements
level for effectiveness,
of the NQF.
efficiency, economy and ͻ Implementation
is monitored on a
impact.
system-wide basis for
consistency.
ͻ Individual audit reports
on implementation
findings are provided to
ETQAs and Authority.
ͻ Prepare a possible
overall report on findings
with suggestions to
address identified
blockages in the system.

3. Review of systemic
models of quality
assurance for
consistency across
ETQAs.

4. Engage with the DoL to
assist in implementing
the QCTO.
Support implementation with policies and
procedures.

5. Fulfil a supporting role
within SAQA to engage
with the relevant
stakeholders in strategic
advocacy for the new
NQF.
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ͻ Review of systems and
processes is undertaken.
ͻ Report on the findings
is developed and
submitted to the
relevant ETQAs/Councils.
ͻ Review
recommendations are
implemented.
ͻ Legislation, and more
specifically regulations,
criteria and guidelines,
are reviewed where
required to address
possible standards drift.
Integration:

ͻ Model for performance audit developed,
workshopped with ETQAs and implemented.

ͻ Completed 18 performance audits.
ͻ Draft audit reports tabled at ETQA Committee
and six final audit reports approved by the
Authority and released to ETQAs.
ͻ Prepared an interim report on preliminary
findings.
ͻ The uptake of qualifications project is ongoing
with the new statistics from February 2008.

ͻ System-wide monitoring of assessment and
ͻ
ͻ
ͻ
ͻ

moderation practices was undertaken through
a SAQA moderation body.
Report tabled at ETQA Committee meeting and
Forum meeting.
Findings were on implementation differences
and did not require changes to criteria and
guidelines documents.
Research was undertaken on the
appropriateness and user-friendliness of SAQA
documents.
No changes were made to criteria and
guidelines documents, given the NQF review.

ͻ DoL quality assurance model was studied and

ͻ Model of quality

verbal inputs made at various working group
assurance studied and
meetings.
inputs made.
ͻ Inputs were made taking CHE and Umalusiͻ Evaluate proposed model
proposed models into account, with the aim of
for integration/linking
possible linking.
with other models.

ͻ Form part of the SAQA-

ͻ The performance audit system is aimed at
wide advocacy campaign
promoting the NQF principles, as it tested
on promoting the NQF
delivery at the level of the provider and learner.
ͻ Meetings with Umalusi, DoE and DoL were
principles with the aim
all aimed at reaching an integrated approach
of consensus-building
to promote principles of access, progression,
and in alignment with
articulation and portability.
the SAQA strategic
imperatives, with the
focus on:
ͳ an integrated
approach to
the models of
accreditation and
quality assurance.
ͳ fulfilment of the
NQF principles of
access, progression,
articulation and
portability within
the new system.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ A needs analysis of

ͻ Participation in JIPSA continued to be via

programme 4 - NLRD
Maintain and further develop 1. Market the NLRD to
through the NLRD, as the key
identified key clients in
national source of informathe public and private
tion for human resource
sector.
development in policy, infrastructure and planning.

HR development
information of the
targeted government
departments, public
research institutions,
and the private sector is
undertaken.

ͻ Partnerships with other
key data sources are
investigated.

ͻ Publications plan is
developed.

ͻ Key HR analysis reports
are produced.

2. Populate the NLRD with
all available data, ensure
that it is of acceptable
quality, and manage it
appropriately.
ͻ Ensure availability of
previously inaccessible
data.

ͻ Ensure that SAQA has
the authority to gather
this data.

ͻ Legislation enacts that
SAQA has the authority
to ensure access to – and
quality of – data that are
necessary for the NQF,
via the NLRD.

The major indicator is that
the NLRD contains data that
is accurate, complete, clean
and up-to-date.

SAQA’s EO, including the utilisation of NLRD
information, with specific interest in trade and
artisan issues.
ͻ JIPSA commissioned research into whether the
NLRD could become the national dataset on
skills. The NLRD had been put forward for this
because it is the only such database in South
Africa, and has now reached a critical mass in
the amount of learner data that it contains. The
report from the task team evaluating policies
and procedures is expected shortly, and the
evaluation of the NLRD datamodel and data
contents was completed during April 2008.
ͻ The need to capture information on trades was
identified, and completed.

ͻ The contract for NLRD support to the DoL’s
ESSA project was signed, and the work
commenced.
ͻ The Director: NLRD represented SAQA at the
DoL’s working group on ETD Training Providers
and Training Interventions / Learner Records.
ͻ The Director: NLRD represented SAQA on the
DoE’s Education Data Standards Committee.
ͻ SACE was assisted to prepare for the
development and implementation of its
Continuing Professional Teacher Development
(CPTD) information system.

ͻ The plan for producing and disseminating
publications was further developed, and
implementation continued.

ͻ The report, Trends in Public Higher Education
in South Africa 1995 to 2004, produced during
the 2006/07 financial year, was launched and
disseminated during 2007/8.
ͻ Work commenced, in cooperation with the
Research Directorate and a service provider,
to produce a similar report to analyse trends
for the new qualifications registered since the
inception of the NQF.

ͻ The NQF Bill included the NLRD’s mandate for
data collection and custodianship.

ͻ ETQA data (historical and current)
ͳ Minimum standard

ͳ
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A record 28 ETQAs met the January
application of the minimum standard for
data submission to the NLRD. This included
the submission of historical ETQA data.
Two league tables to measure ETQAs’
success rates were utilised:
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

programme 4 - NLRD
The major measurements will
be by the NLRD’s outputs (reports, NLRD outputs serving
at SAQA meetings, services,
searchable databases and
tracking devices such as the
ETQA league table), coupled
with exception reports and
gap reports specifically produced to check the problems
and gaps.
Key projects:
ͻ NLRD Gap Identification
and filling in the gaps,
including:
ͳ further historical
ETQA data

ͳ

further historical
ABET data

ͳ

ͳ
ͳ

The 28 ETQAs mentioned above achieved
green status on the compliance league
table (which measured compliance with
the minimum standard);
A performance league table was initiated,
to measure which ETQAs were now
submitting data that illustrated learners’
uptake of qualifications and unit standards.
Only six ETQAs had achieved green status
for performance thus far.
Throughout the year, the NLRD Partners
Forum meetings addressed how data
suppliers could optimise their datasubmission process.
Data suppliers continued to use the Edu.
Dex data-testing tool.
Information Administrator Learnership at
ETQAs:
Continued to support ETQAs with
incumbents on the Information
Administrator Learnership, who were
managing data destined for the NLRD.

ͻ The project with Unisa, to download their data
and assist with their own database, continued.

ͻ Work continued on loading historical Technikon
data.

ͳ

further CEEQ data

ͻ Although the CEEQ database was still not ready
to create datasets for loading onto the NLRD,
their computerisation developments brought
this closer to fruition.

ͳ

further private
provider data

ͻ The NLRD began a three-year project to
offer intensive assistance to the CHE’s Higher
Education Quality Council, to gather private
higher education information in an information
system and load it onto the NLRD. To this end,
a Higher Education Quality Council Information
System (HEQCIS) was designed and built by an
IT service provider and hosted by the NLRD on
a SAQA server. Load specifications including
a minimum standard for data submissions
were written, the Deputy Director: HEQCIS
was recruited, and the Edu.Dex version for
providers was prepared for rolling out to
approximately 100 private higher education
providers at workshops in April.

ͻ Ongoing data testing and ͻ On-line data capturing:
loading.
ͳ Qualifications and unit standards
ͳ

ͳ
ͻ Communication with

ͳ

data suppliers.

ͳ
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continued to be captured accurately and
timeously.
Information Administrator Learnership
at SAQA: eight learnership incumbents
continued to be the NLRD’s data capturers
of qualifications and unit standards.
Learning programmes continued to be
recorded on the NQF.
Alerts were sent out when information
on qualifications or unit standards was
corrected, and notifications were sent out
concerning replacement qualifications and
unit standards.
The NLRD Director facilitated the ongoing
Project for Qualifications Excellence within
SAQA, to ensure that the information about
qualifications, as well as their linkages to
other elements of the NQF, are correctly
recorded and reported upon.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

ͻ All users have

ͻ The levels of user access to the NLRD continued

programme 4 - NLRD

appropriate levels of
access to the NLRD,
maintaining the balance
between effective
use and protection of
sensitive information.

3. Provide appropriate
system and application
tools to exploit the
research potential of
the NLRD, including the
development of key
reports and services.

ͻ Key reports produced
and disseminated:
ͳ NLRD National
reports
ͳ NLRD outputs at
SAQA meetings

to be managed carefully.

ͻ The updated report, Trends in Public Higher
Education in South Africa 1995 to 2004, was
launched and disseminated.
ͻ NLRD outputs (rather than any other format)
continued to serve at all SAQA meetings.
ͻ Reports were produced for all ETQAs, showing
the details of the uptake (or lack thereof) for
each qualification for which the ETQAs were
responsible.

ͻ The number of high-level ͻ A large volume of national and international
referrals and queries to
queries, at all levels, was received and attended
the NLRD indicates that
to.
ͻ Presentations on the NLRD were made to
it is known to be the
delegations from Zambia, Kenya, Ethiopia and
key national source of
Canada, as well as to SAMDI, the conference
information for human
of the Careers Exhibitions and Information
resource development in
Association, and the Q-Africa Conference
South Africa.
(Information management for occupational
qualifications).
A request for information on how to commission and start up a system such as the NLRD was
received from the National Accreditation Board of
Malaysia, and responded to in detail.

ͻ Maintenance and
development of key
services, including
searchable databases.

ͻ The SAQA website’s searchable databases of
qualifications, unit standards and provider
accreditations continued to function well. The
following enhancements were made:
ͳ A searchable database of trades was
added.
ͳ The facility was added to search all
qualifications and unit standards at once,
regardless of their registration status.
ͳ A ‘word search’ option to search for a
word or words appearing anywhere in
the qualifications or unit standards was
created.
ͳ ABET Band became a search criterion.
ͳ Tables showing information on
replacements were included.
ͳ Last date for enrolment and last date
for achievement were included in the
information displayed.
ͻ The related XML service functioned well.

ͻ The standard reports on the NLRD, for the use
of SAQA staff members, were further refined
and training provided on how to use them.
ͻ A utility was developed to assist DSSD to
check whether specific qualifications meet
the requirements for reregistration without
undergoing an extensive review process.

ͻ
ͻ NLRD services generate
income for SAQA.

ͻ Several customised reports, which generated
income for SAQA, were produced.

ͻ The ESSA service generated income for SAQA.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

4. Provide a service for

ͻ Maintenance and

ͻ A total of 613 free verifications of people’s own

programme 4 - NLRD

the verification of
the achievement of
registered and ‘legacy’
qualifications by South
African learners.

development of
the service for the
verification of learner
achievements.
ͻ Utilisation of this service
ͻ The service generates
income for the NLRD.

ͻ

ͻ
ͻ
ͻ

5. Ensure system support
other than OnLineDBA
for the NLRD.

records were completed, more than double the
number in 2006/07.
A total of 912 third-party verifications,
concerning the qualifications of 548 people,
were completed for 47 subscribing clients
during this reporting period, an increase of
more than 50 per cent over the previous
period.
The total number of subscribing organisations,
including many national and provincial
government departments, rose to 79.
The bulk verification service was further
automated and developed, and was run for
several provincial government departments.
The verification service generated income for
the NLRD.

Maintenance and development of the data-model,
application and data-loading
scripts:
ͻ The NLRD functions
efficiently and
effectively.

ͻ The NLRD continued to run efficiently and

ͻ Continuous

ͻ NLRD enhancements continued to be

improvement of
the NLRD system is
undertaken.

effectively.

ͻ SAQA staff and external service providers
jointly ensured that the NLRD was well
supported, that database administration
was of the highest quality, that the required
enhancements and developments were
correctly specified and implemented, that
disaster recovery measures would be available
if required, and that the NLRD system
continued to function robustly.

implemented. At the end of the reporting
period, the NLRD Version Number was 1.6.1,
and was almost a replica of what NLRD Version
2 would be.

ͻ Batch-load programs run ͻ All of the batch-load programs continued to run
correctly.

Output

Measure/indicator

Target

correctly.

Actual

programme 5 - national centre for the evaluation of foreign qualifications (ceeq)
Maintain and develop the
role of SAQA as the national
recognition information centre for foreign and domestic
learning and qualifications.
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1. Build infrastructure and
resources to adequately
support the information
role and evaluation
function of the unit.

ͻ Evaluation of foreign
qualifications takes
place.

ͻ Applications increased by 20 per cent from
±100 to ±120 applications per day.

ͻ To achieve delivery in terms of the above,
substantive changes were implemented in the
course of the 2007/08 financial year, including
the following:
ͳ The permanent staff component of 22 was
supplemented with two Contact Centre
Support learners, eight independent
contract evaluators and 24 temporary
administrative staff members. Capacity
building was undertaken on a large scale.
ͳ Phase II of a comprehensive electronic
workflow system, which entails webbased evaluations, was developed and
implemented on a pilot basis.
ͻ As part of capacity building, a large area of
additional office space was refurbished for the
use of CEEQ.
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Output

Measure/indicator

Target

Actual

programme 5 - national centre for the evaluation of foreign qualifications (ceeq)

ͻ CEEQ is able to meet
information needs in
respect of both foreign
and domestic learning
and qualifications.

ͻ The service generates

ͻ Information is given to individuals, immigration
agencies and other applicants on an ongoing
basis.
ͻ A trends report will be published for the
2007/08 financial year, showing the trends
in applications for the evaluation of foreign
qualifications.
ͻ Criteria and guidelines document was reprinted
in the 2007/08 financial year.

ͻ The service continuously generated more

sufficient income to
support itself.

income than expected due to the increased
demand and the CEEQ was therefore selfsustainable during the 2007/08 financial year.

ͻ Strong relationships of
SAQA built relationships with major stakeholders
relationships to enhance
trust and mutual support through:
the function, expand
with major stakeholders. ͻ regular high-level meetings with the
ͻ Enhanced evaluation
Department of Home Affairs on issues of
capacity and build a
mutual interest and cooperation.
policies and practices.
favourable environment.
ͻ interaction/liaison with a number of
stakeholders/interest groups on importing
3. Monitor and coordinate, ͻ The evaluation
short-term critical skills and related matters.
where relevant,
function is aligned
ͻ
liaison and consultation with the Directorate:
national, regional
with international best
Global Partnerships and the Sub-directorate:
and international
practice.
Educator Qualifications and Programmes of
ͻ National perspectives
perspectives and
the DoE.
developments in the
on the recognition of
ͻ
meetings with professional bodies such as the
field.
foreign qualifications are
South African Council for Educators and the
co-ordinated into a single
South African Dental Technicians Council.
information source.
ͻ CEEQ forms part of the HESA Equivalence
Setting Task Team with a view to benchmarking
the prospective National Senior Certificate.
2. Build strategic

4. Provide leadership:
ͻ CEEQ is widely known
ͳ On a national basis
and recognised as the

ͳ

with regard to the
general evaluation of
foreign qualifications
in South Africa.
On a regional
basis with regard
to the role of a
national recognition
information centre.

5. Advocate CEEQ as the
national recognition
information centre for
foreign qualifications.

national recognition
information centre and
consulted as such.

ͻ CEEQ is widely known
and recognised as the
national recognition
information centre and
consulted as such.

International links were established and/or
enhanced by hosting a number of international
delegations, including:
ͻ Ethiopia
ͻ Zambia
ͻ People’s Republic of China
ͻ Canada

ͻ Regional capacity building was done by
ͳ hosting and training a Seychelles colleague

ͻ

ͻ

ͻ

ͻ

saqa annual report 2007/2008

for a period of two weeks.
supporting Namibian Qualifications
Authority, Seychelles and Botswana
colleagues on the evaluation of specific
qualifications on an ongoing basis.
Regular mutual consultation with overseas
sister organisations took place, including those
in the UK, Germany, The Netherlands, USA,
Australia, New Zealand and a number of SADC
countries.
CEEQ formed part of a DoE delegation to the
Russian Federation to pursue the refinement
and possible signing of a bilateral recognition
agreement.
Two CEEQ evaluators attended the Annual
Conference of the European Association for
International Education in Trondheim, Norway.
Valuable networking, information sharing and
mutual learning took place.
The above activities served to promote CEEQ as
the national recognition information centre for
foreign qualifications.

ͳ
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